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This 2014 Annual Report is about policies, strategies and 

performance of the SEC. We aim to supervise and develop the 

Thai capital market to become the essential mechanism driving 

sustainable economy and determined to perform that duty with 

knowledge, responsibilities and governance. This report 

applied part of the Global Reporting Initiatives Guideline 

(GRI) – G4 as appropriate, in order that the contents contain 

important information in accordance with international standards 

and beneficial to the readers.

ABOUT THIS REPORT

BUILDING BRIDGES 

• Building opportunity for the public and businesses to easily

  access and make fully use of the capital market

•  Building readiness and competitive advantage to support

 interconnectedness of global economy

•  Building confidence and foundation for sustainable growth of

  the capital market through transparency and fairness
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Global economic growth was low in 2014 with large economies 

experiencing diverse levels of growth and prospects. While the 

United States and the United Kingdom achieved satisfactory  

economic growth, many key nations such as Japan and China  

recorded a slowdown. The Eurozone was fragile while Russia faced 

economic problems and currency volatility from sharply declining 

crude oil prices towards the end of the year.

In the case of Thailand, greater clarity regarding the country’s 

political direction was a major positive factor. This is coupled by 

stimulus measures applied during the latter part of the year,  

bolstering consumer spending and private investment. However, 

the economic growth was subdued as the economy was still in a 

recovery stage and goods exports were weak, partly hampered by 

low economic growth among Thailand’s key trading partners,  

particularly China and Japan. The tourism industry was slow to 

recover as well.

Although global and domestic economic conditions were  

unsupportive, the Thai capital market exhibited strong performance 

and obtained confidence in 2014.  The SET Index closed the year 

at 1,497.67 points, an increase of 15.32 percent from the year 

before. The combined market capitalization of the Stock Exchange 

of Thailand and the Market for Alternative Investment was 14.24 

trillion baht, up 21.97 percent from 2013. The average daily trading 

volume of 45,466 billion baht placed Thailand highest in the ASEAN 

region for a third year.

Despite a challenging volatile environment, collaboration by all 

relevant participants helped the Thai capital market achieve a  

continual satisfactory growth. The SEC, as regulator and facilitator, 

remains committed to oversee and develop the Thai capital market 

to attain efficiency, transparency, integrity and be able to compete 

globally. This will enable the Thai capital market to serve as an 

important pillar to provide stability and sustainability for the Thai 

economy. To achieve these objectives, the SEC has established the 

foundations to strengthen confidence in the system through various 

measures driven in tandem. 

An important contributor to confidence is the effectiveness of 

enforcement. In principle, “justice delayed is justice denied.” The 

SEC is therefore continually increasing the capacity of enforcement, 

both through improvements in working procedures and through 

proposition of necessary regulations. As examples, we added 

Civil Sanction measures to the Securities and Exchange Act, and 

added more provisions on presumptive facts to reduce the burden 

of proof for certain offenses to expedite the law enforcement process. 

Furthermore, the scope of the law was broadened, such as, placing 

offences against tippees acting on insider information and  

toughening penalties for those committing unfair practices.

Apart from laws and regulations, the SEC established  

foundations for good governance, social responsibility, and  

anti-corruption. To drive social awareness towards sustainable 

development, as examples, we created additional tools to assist 

investors through the support of the Thaipat Institute by launching 

indicators to monitor listed companies in the areas of corporate 

social responsibility (CSR Progress Indicator) and efforts to combat 

corruption (Anti-Corruption Progress Indicator). Enhancements to 

the CG Thailand website (www.cgthailand.org) turns it into a source 

of information regarding laws, regulations, and framework for  

sustainable development. Regulated bodies were also encouraged 

to participate in the Collective Action Coalition (CAC) of private 

sector in fighting against corruption.

Amidst global economic volatilities which are increasingly 

evolving and shifting at a rapid pace, repercussions grow as  

regional economies become more inter-connected. The Thai  

capital market needs the capacity to stay resilient and compete in 

the global arena.  Apart from strengthening confidence in the 

capital market as described above, the SEC and participants in the 

capital market must still collaborate in many other areas. This may 

include aligning rules to international standards, improving the 

framework to oversee the stability of important processes to meet 

the challenges posed by volatile capital flows, or improving the 

supervision of the issuance of financial instruments. Implementation 

will hinge on achieving an appropriate balance between capital 

mobilization and investor protection. Other necessary measures are 

in the pipeline as well. Lastly, I would like to express my heartfelt 

appreciation for the cooperation from everyone who has helped 

contribute to the progress of the Thai capital market. With all of your 

contributions, I am confident that we can enable the Thai capital 

market to achieve solid sustainable growth in the future.
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(Mr.  Vorapol Socatiyanurak)
Secretary-General
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In 2014, the SEC’s numerous achievements to promote,  
develop, and oversee the Thai capital market were possible with 
the cooperation from all stakeholders who jointly helped strengthen 
the Thai capital market on a course towards sustainable growth.

In the area of supervision, with the concept of “quality attracts 
capital” and funds will flow to well-functioning capital markets, the 
SEC places considerable emphasis on ensuring the transparency, 
fairness and integrity of the Thai capital market. Implementation 
took on many levels, ranging from regulatory amendments that 
increased the effectiveness of enforcement, collaboration with 
other capital market authorities to tighten measures against  
wrongdoing, and harnessing the support from society to uphold 
transparency. Online information was improved to equip the  
general public with greater insight to the operations of listed  
companies with regards to good governance, social responsibility, 
and efforts to fight corruption. In addition, the SEC encouraged 
listed companies and capital market intermediaries to boost efforts 
at fighting corruption. These aforementioned measures contributed 
towards Thailand earning the highest score on the ASEAN CG 
Scorecard (a gauge administered by the ASEAN Capital Market 
Forum) in the region for a second consecutive year.

The SEC places considerable importance on enabling and 
strengthening the securities industry and lifting the level of the Thai 
capital market to international standards by taking into account risk 
management capability that responds swiftly to threats and  
providing appropriate level of investor protection. Over the past year, 
the SEC improved important regulations, such as, establishing  
regulatory frameworks to meet the standards of the International 
Organization of Securities Commissions (“IOSCO”) and establishing 
a general framework to expedite the offering of new financial  
instruments without the need for new specific regulations.  
Amendments to regulations covering the offering of complex and 
risky financial tools and services now requires investors to complete 
an assessment test to confirm understanding of the products or 
services, as well as ensuring analytical reports are regularly  
available to assist investors.

We also widened regulations to promote the Thai capital  
market as a vehicle for investment in the ASEAN Economic  
Community, emerging countries in Asia and the global community. 
Mutual funds, private funds, and provident funds are now allowed 
to invest in the financial instruments of the Greater Mekhong  
Subregion (GMS), thereby supporting projects in the high-growth 
economies of Laos, Myanmar, and Cambodia. Furthermore, we 
established a regulatory framework to support the offering of unit 
trusts for funds investing in ASEAN through the ASEAN Collective 
Investment Schemes (ASEAN CIS) for retail investors in Thailand, 
widening the range of investment product choices. Creation of 
Baht-denominated bonds for a Laos public company, mobilizing up 
to 6,500 million baht, was another successful initiative.

For our role in the global community as a regulator, 2014 was 
a milestone year for the SEC as we received tremendous recognition 
on the international stage. The SEC was elected as a representative 
of Asia-Pacific capital market regulators on the Board of  
International Organization of Securities Commissions (IOSCO Board), 
where the SEC takes part in the formulation of global standards on 
capital market supervision alongside other prominent member 
countries. Furthermore, the SEC is also a part of IOSCO Growth 
and Emerging Market Steering Committee and is involved with the 
works of IOSCO Policy Committee on Issuer Accounting, Audit and 
Disclosure and IOSCO Policy Committee on Retail Investors.

In another important area, we promoted the capital market as 
a channel for fund mobilization for providing companies and helping 
reduce inequality with regards to access to funds, activities which 
are important for economic growth and implemented nationwide. 
We also encouraged structural changes to transform the Thai 
economy from a production-based economy to a value-driven 
economy, such as, supporting companies having core business in 
the areas of research, technology, innovation, knowledge, culture, 
and creativity. The SEC has been administering its “Pride of the 
Provinces” project for a third consecutive year and initiated the “The 
Pride in Thai Innovative and Creative Businesses.” Support  
extended to businesses includes providing a deeper understanding 
of the capital market, instilling good governance in management, 
and preparing the capacity to mobilize capital going forwards. Over 
300 companies have enrolled in the project.

Investors play an important role in the capital market and 
overall economy of the country, but the SEC has observed that 
investors are still plagued with the three problems, namely,  No 
knowledge and financial literacy, No financial discipline, No regard 
for the problems at hand. The SEC is addressing these issues with 
public projects like the “Financial Literacy in Workplace” to raise the 
knowledge and financial skills among the young working class. This 
is implemented through corporates, with 168 employers already 
enlisted in training workshops covering a total of over 200,000 
employees. Making investments a more personal matter was  
another initiative that builds the discipline to save and invest, through 
schemes such as “A thousand baht, start a journey to your dream.” 
That project enables one to start investing just 1,000 baht at a time 
systematically through mutual funds on a monthly basis. There are 
now already 10,000 new mutual fund accounts of this type.

The SEC achieved considerable success in 2014 with the 
valuable cooperation received from all parties involved. On behalf 
of the management and employees of the SEC, I would like to take 
this opportunity to thank everyone. Going forwards, the SEC remains 
committed to strengthening the Thai capital market towards  
sustainable growth. This will be with keen concern for economic, 
social, and environmental issues, as well as the implications on 
stakeholders and both domestic and global factors. The vision is 
for the Thai capital market to be outstanding as an attractive  
investment destination and market for capital mobilization in Asia 
or globally.
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Mr. Achaporn Charuchinda obtained an LLB from Thammasat University and a  
Barrister at Law from the Thai Bar Association. He is well-recognized for his expertise 
within the legal profession. Prior to taking office as Chairman of the SEC board, he served 
in several key positions, including, Secretary-General of the Council of State, member of 
the Constitutional Drafting Committee, board member and Chairman of the Audit  
Committee of Financial Institutions Development Fund (the Bank of Thailand), board  
member and Chairman of the Legal Committee of the Bank for Agriculture and  
Agricultural Cooperatives, board member and executive committee of Siam City Bank Plc., 
board member and Audit Committee of Sukhumvit Asset Management Co., Ltd., member 
of Financial Institutions Policy Committee (Bank of Thailand), member of Extraordinary 
Committee for Scrutinizing Draft Laws in the House of Representatives and the Senate, 
member of the Special Extraordinary Civil Service Sub-commission on Certification of State 
Sector Lawyers.

At present, he also served in the positions as board member and member of Audit 
Committee of the Bank of Thailand, board member, Chairman of the Remuneration  
Committee, member of the Corporate Governance Committee and member of the Audit 
Committee of PTT Exploration and Production Plc., board member of the National  
Economic and Social Development, member of Insurance Commission, board member of 
Thai Smile Airways Co., Ltd., member of the Special Extraordinary Civil Service  
Sub-Commission on Manpower Planning of Government Agencies.

Mr. Rungson Sriworasat obtained a Bachelor Degree in Accounting from Ramkamhaeng 
University, an LLB from Sukhothai Thammathirat and an MBA from Prince of Songkla 
University. Prior to taking office as Permanent Secretary of the Ministry of Finance, he served 
in several key positions in both public and private sector, including Deputy Permanent 
Secretary of the Ministry of Finance, Executive Board of Courts of Justice, Executive Board 
of Broadcasting and Telecommunications Research and Development Fund, Director 
General of Comptroller General's Department, board member of East-Water Plc. In an 
academic area, he was a special lecturer on taxation law at Prince of Songkla University 
and Sukhothai Thammathirat. 

His current key posts include Chairman of the Board of the Government Pension Fund, 
member of Audit Committee of the Thai Bar Association and Chairman of the Board of 
TMB Bank Plc.

Ms. Chutima Bunyapraphasara obtained a Bachelor of Science in Political Science 
from Chulalongkorn University and a Master Degree in Economics from Western Michigan 
University. Prior to taking office as Permanent Secretary of the Ministry of Commerce, she 
served in several key positions in the Ministry of Commerce, including Inspector General, 
Director-General of the Department of Internal Trade, Director-General of the Department 
of Foreign Trade, and Director-General of the Department of Trade Negotiations.

At present, she also serves the position as Director of National Science Museum and 
board member of Suvarnabhumi Airport Hotel Plc.

Mr.  Achporn Charuchinda
Chairman
(since July 2, 2013)

Mr. Rungson Sriworasat
Permanent Secretary, 
Ministry of Finance 
Ex-officio Member 
(since October 28, 2013)

Ms.  Chutima Bunyapraphasara
Permanent Secretary, 
Ministry of Commerce
Ex-officio Member
(since June 27, 2014)

Mr.  Prasarn Trairatvorakul 
Governor, Bank of Thailand 
Ex-officio Member
(since October 1, 2010)

1

4

3

2

Mr. Prasarn Trairatvorakul obtained a Bachelor of Engineering (1st Class Honors) in  
Electrical Engineering from Chulalongkorn University, a Master of Engineering in Industrial  
Engineering and Management from Asian Institute of Technology, an MBA and a Doctorate in 
Business Administration from Harvard University. With versatile experience in the financial market,  
he held key positions in various public and private organizations. Before taking office as Governor  
of the Bank of Thailand, he was SEC Secretary-General and President of Kasikorn Bank Plc. 
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Mr. Kumchai Jongjakapun holds an LLB (Honors) from Thammasat University, an LLM 
in International Business Law (with Merit) from UCL, University of London, and a Doctorate 
from King's College, University of London. A distinguished legal scholar with almost 30-year 
extensive experience in the field, he has held several posts including Dean of the Faculty 
of Law, Vice Rector for Personnel and Vice Rector for Student Affairs at Thammasat  
University. 

Apart from being Professor of Law at Thammasat University, he actively contributes 
to academic services in a variety of roles, including director of the Finance and Banking 
Law Certificate Program and International Trade Law Certificate Program. In addition, he 
also extends his academic service as members of the Law Reform Commission of Thailand, 
the Law and Order Sub-committee, the National Anti-Corruption Commission, Legal  
Sub-committee of the National Broadcasting and Telecommunications Commission,  
Political Development Council and Independent National Rule of Law Commission.

Ms. Sopawadee Lertmanaschai obtained an LLM, a Bachelor and a Master of Science 
(Accounting) from Thammasat University. She has versatile experiences and served in 
several key positions in the capital market, for example, Secretary-General of the  
Government Pension Fund, Chief Marketing Officer-Markets and Post-Trade Services of 
the Stock Exchange of Thailand, Chief Executive Officer of Thailand Securities Depository 
Co., Ltd., Chairman of the Capital Market Opportunity Center of the Stock Exchange of 
Thailand, Chairman of Advisers to the Market for Alternative Investment (mai) and member 
of Directors’ Discipline Committee of the Securities and Exchange Commission.

Her other current posts include board members of the Federation of Accounting 
Professions , Intouch Holdings Plc., CIMB Thai Bank Plc. , Provincial Waterworks  
Authority, the Government Pharmaceutical Organization, and adviser to the Federation of 
Thai Capital Market Organizations.

Mr. Prasong  Poontaneat obtained a BBA (Accounting) from Rajamangala University, 
an LLB from Sukhothai Thammathirat University, an MBA from Dhurakij Pundit University 
and a Doctorate in Public Administration, Management for Development College, Thaksin 
University. He served in several key positions, including Director-General of Customs De-
partment, Inspector General, Ministry of Finance and Deputy Director-General of Revenue 
Department.

At present, he served in several key positions, including, Chairman of the Board of the 
Export and Import Bank of Thailand, Deputy Chairman of  Financial Institutions Develop-
ment Fund, Chairman  of the Board of Airports of Thailand Plc., and  board member of 
Bangchak Petroleum Plc..

Apart from his work, he devotes his time to social and academic causes, for example, 
by serving as Executive Director of the Thai Red Cross Society and expert member of 
Chulalongkorn University Council. 

Mr. Kumchai Jongjakapun 
Expert Member 
(since March 1, 2011, second term)

Ms. Sopawadee Lertmanaschai 
Expert Member
(since October 19, 2013)

Mr.  Prasong  Poontaneat
Expert Member
(since April 8, 2014)

5

6

7



9ANNUAL REPORT 2014
THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Mr.  Vikrom Koompirochana
Expert Member
(since October 8, 2012) 

Mr. Somchai Kuvijitsuwan
Expert Member
(since October 8, 2012,

the second term)

Mr.  Vorapol Socatiyanurak
SEC Secretary-General
Ex-officio Member and  
Secretary of the Board
(October 4, 2011)

10

Mr. Vikrom Koompirochana obtained a BA (History) from Chulalongkorn University, an 
MA and a Doctorate in History of International Relations from Michigan State University. He 
was also accorded Honorary Doctorate in Humanities from Schiller International University. 
He had served in many significant positions in the Ministry of Foreign Affairs, including 
Ambassador Attached to the Ministry, European Affairs, Ambassador of Thailand to several  
countries, namely, Singapore, Malaysia, New Zealand, Deputy Permanent Secretary, Ministry  
of Foreign Affairs, Ambassador of Thailand to Italy and Ireland. He served in the position 
as Ambassador of Thailand to the United Kingdom until his statutory retirement. 

He is now board member, Chairman of the Corporate Governance Committee, and 
Executive Committee of Bangchak Petroleum Plc., Independent Director and Chairman of 
Audit Committee of Oishi Group Plc., Chairman of the Board of Country Group  
Development (CGD) Plc., Chairman of the Board of Sports and Recreation Management 
Co. Ltd., Independent Director, member of Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee 
of MFC Asset Management Plc.,  and Honorary Adviser to the British Chamber of  
Commerce Thailand.

Mr. Somchai Kuvijitsuwan obtained an LLB from Ramkhamhaeng University, a  
Barrister at Law from Thai Bar Association, and a Master of Political Science from  
National Institute of Development Administration.  A well-recognized legal expert, he  
previously served as Deputy Director-General of the Department of Intellectual Property 
and International Trade Litigation, Deputy Director-General of Department of Southern 
Bangkok Criminal Litigation, Director-General of Department of Policy, Strategy and 
Budget Planning and Director-General of Department of Public Prosecutor Commission. 

Currently, he is the Director-General of Economic Crime Litigation, the Office of the 
Attorney General.

Mr. Vorapol Socatiyanurak earned a Bachelor Degree in Science from Chulalongkorn 
University, a Master Degree in Business Administration from the National Institute of  
Development Administration (NIDA), a Master Degree in Business Administration (Finance) 
from Syracuse University, and a Master Degree and a PhD in Finance from the Wharton 
School, University of Pennsylvania. He has played an active role in Thailand’s economic 
development and held several key positions involving policy making and advice giving in 
the specialized areas of finance and economic policies. His previous posts include Vice 
Chairman of the National Economic and Social Advisory Council, Chairman of the  
Investment Management Advisory Committee of the Thai Red Cross Society, and expert 
member in several national committees such as the National Industrial Development Board, 
the Trade Competition Commission, the Senate Committee on Research and Development, 
and the National Science and Technology Development Board.

His key current posts also include member of Financial Institution Policy Committee, 
the Bank of Thailand, member of Insurance Commission, board member of Government 
Pension Fund, board member of National Savings Fund, board member of Public Debt 
Restructuring and Domestic Bond Market Development Fund, and member of Financial 
Sector Master Plan (Phase II) Supervisory Board.

8

9
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Mr. Vorapol Socatiyanurak earned a Bachelor Degree in Science from Chulalongkorn 
University, a Master Degree in Business Administration from the National Institute of  
Development Administration (NIDA), a Master Degree in Business Administration (Finance) 
from Syracuse University, and a Master Degree and a PhD in Finance from the Wharton 
School, University of Pennsylvania. He has played an active role in Thailand’s economic 
development and held several key positions involving policy making and advice giving in 
the specialized areas of finance and economic policies. His previous posts include Vice 
Chairman of the National Economic and Social Advisory Council, Chairman of the  
Investment Management Advisory Committee of the Thai Red Cross Society, and expert 
member in several national committees such as the National Industrial Development Board, 
the Trade Competition Commission, the Senate Committee on Research and Development, 
and the National Science and Technology Development Board.

His key current posts also include member of Financial Institution Policy Committee, 
the Bank of Thailand, member of Insurance Commission, board member of Government 
Pension Fund, board member of National Savings Fund, board member of Public Debt 
Restructuring and Domestic Bond Market Development Fund, and member of Financial 
Sector Master Plan (Phase II) Supervisory Board.

Mr.  Chalee Chantanayingyong
SEC Deputy Secretary-General
Ex-officio Member
(since October 14, 2011)

1

2

Mr.  Vorapol Socatiyanurak
SEC Secretary-General
Chairman
(since October 4, 2011)

Mr. Chalee Chantanayingyong obtained a BBA in Money and Banking from  
Thammasat University, and an MBA in Finance from Texas A&M University. His profound 
knowledge and experience in money and capital markets include eleven-year service at 
the Bank of Thailand (BOT) during which he had very much involvement in drafting the 
Securities and Exchange Act (SEA). When the SEA was enacted in March 1992, he was 
transferred from the BOT to work for the newly established SEC as Deputy Director of 
Corporate Finance Department, Director of Corporate Finance Department, Director of 
Investment Management Supervision Department and Assistant Secretary-General,  
respectively. 

Besides working at the SEC, he was appointed as members of the Board of  
Supervision of Auditing Practice, and the Trade Competition Commission, member of and 
secretariat to the National Corporate Governance Committee. He was also member of the 
Investment Management Sub-committee of the Social Security Fund and the  
Investment Management Advisory Committee of the Thai Red Cross Society.
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Mr. Kampanart Lohacharoenvanich obtained a Bachelor of Art in Economics from 
Thammasat University, and a Master of Science in the same field from Kansas State  
University. He is a renowned expert in the capital market industry with extensive  
experiences in relevant to securities and derivatives businesses as well as listed companies. 
His prominent roles in several important positions include President of Trinity Securities Co., 
Ltd., Chairman of Association of Securities Companies, Vice Chairman of the Stock  
Exchange of Thailand (SET), Vice Chairman of the Federation of the Thai Capital Market 
Organizations, member of the SET Executive Committee, and board member of Thailand 
Futures Exchange Plc. 

Mr. Pratib Yongvanich obtained a BBA in Accounting from Chulalongkorn University 
and an MBA (Marketing) from Case Western Reserve University. His extensive experiences 
in the securities industry include his services as Senior Manager of Siam Commercial Bank 
Plc., President of Asia Plus Securities Plc., board member and Vice Chairman of the Stock 
Exchange of Thailand, and Adviser to the Executive Board of Directors, Association of Thai 
Securities Companies. 

Mr. Kampanart 
Lohacharoenvanich
Expert Member
(since January 18, 2012,

second term)

Mr.  Pratib Yongvanich
Expert Member
(since January 18, 2012)

4

5

Mr.  Krisada Chinavicharana 
Director-General,  
Fiscal Policy Office
Ex-officio Member 
(since June 27, 2014)

3
Mr. Krisada Chinavicharana obtained an LLB from Chulalongkorn University and an 

MBA from the University of New Haven. He served in several key positions at the Fiscal 
Policy Office, Ministry of Finance, including Adviser in Economics and Financial Affairs, 
Director of the Bureau of Legal Affairs, and other organizations, such as, board member of 
Krung Thai Bank Plc., board member of Bangkok Commercial Asset Management Co., 
Ltd., board member of Islamic Bank of Thailand.

His current posts also include board members of the Bank of Thailand, the Financial 
Institutions Policy Committee (BOT), and Government Pension Fund.
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Ms. Pornanong
Budsaratragoon
Expert Member
(since April 8, 2014) 

Mrs. Suchada Pavananunt
Expert Member
(since April 8, 2014)

Ms. Pornanong   Budsaratragoon holds a BBA in Quantitative Analysis from Chulalongkorn 
University, an MBA in Management Information System from University of Dallas and a DBA in 
Finance, Chulalongkorn University. Previously, she served in several key positions, including 
expert member of the Institute of Internal Auditors of Thailand, member of Risk Management 
Committee of One Asset Management Co., Ltd. At present, she served as Associate Professor 
of Banking and Finance, Faculty of Commerce and Accountancy, Chulalongkorn University, 
board member of the Agricultural Futures Exchange of Thailand (AFET), and member of  
Education Committee of Thai Financial Planner Association.

Mrs. Suchada Pavananunt obtained a BBA in Finance and Banking from Chulalongkorn 
University and a Master Degree in Public and Private Management, School of Public  
Administration, National Institute of Development Administration. She has versatile  
experiences in money and capital market and served several key positions, such as, President 
and Chief Executive Officer of Thanachart Fund Management Co., Ltd. and Managing Director, 
Marketing and Deposit Products of Thanachart Capital Plc.

6

7



2. Mr.  Chalee Chantanayingyong
 Deputy Secretary-General

5. Mrs.  Waratchya Srimachand
 Assistant Secretary-General

8. Mrs.   Duangmon   Chuengsatiansup
 Assistant Secretary-General

Executives

1. Mr.  Vorapol Socatiyanurak
 Secretary-General

4. Mrs. Tipsuda Thavaramara
 Deputy Secretary-General 

7. Mr. Prakid Punyashthiti
 Assistant Secretary-General

10. Mrs. Nataya Niyamanusorn
 Assistant Secretary-General

3. Mr.  Vasant Thienhom
 Deputy Secretary-General

6. Mrs. Paralee Sukonthaman
 Assistant Secretary-General

9. Mr. Sakkarin Ruamrangsri
 Assistant Secretary-General
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Organizational Structure

Internal Management and Business Affairs

Deputy Secretary - General
Mr. Chalee Chantanayingyong

Deputy Secretary - General
Mr. Vasant Thienhom

Deputy Secretary - General
Mrs. Tipsuda Thavaramara

Securities Regulation
Department

Mrs. Jantima Phienveja

Legal Counsel and 
Development Department
Mr. Thawatchai Pittayasophon

Office of Internal Audit
Mrs. Usana Chanama

Assistant 
Secretary - General

Mrs. Paralee Sukonthaman

Assistant 
Secretary - General

Mr. Sakkarin Ruamrangsri

Assistant 
Secretary - General

Mrs. Nataya Niyamanusorn

Intermediaries Super-
vision and Development 

Department
Mrs. Charuphan 

Intararoong

Litigation Department
Mr. Saengsiri 

Sirisansneeyawongse

Office of the 
Secretary - Genaral

Mr. Thawatchai 
Pittayasophon

(Acting)

Intermediaries Inspection
Department

Mrs. Pattanaporn Tripipat

Enforcement
Department

Ms. Supa Thamthitivat

Human Resources
Department

Mrs. Duangiai Dhanasthitya

Licensing 
Department

Mrs. Sureerut Suradecha

Administrative 
Appeals Center

Mr. Siwakorn Karnasuta

Information and Commu-
nication Technology

Department
Mr. Kumpol Sontanarat

General Administration 
Department
Ms. Nidaporn 

Assawateerakiat

Stakeholder 
Relations Department

Mrs. Nataya Niyamanusorn
(Acting)

Capital Market 
Promotion Center

Ms. Sarica Apiwatthakakul

Assistant 
Secretary - General

Mrs. Duangmon 
Chuengsatiansup

Assistant 
Secretary - General

Mr. Prakid Punyashthiti

Assistant 
Secretary - General

Mrs. Waratchya 
Srimachand

Market Supervision
Department
Mrs. Suwanna 
Chuerboonchai

Accounting Supervision 
Department

Mr. Thawatchai 
Kiatkwankul

Corporate Monitoring
Department

Mr. Anek Yooyuen

Satrategy and Planning 
Department 
Mrs. Praoporn
Senanarong

Corporate Finance - Equity  
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SEC Governance
“Governance” is the key driving SEC mission in supervising and developing the Thai capital market to reach its goal in creating  

sustainability in three dimensions: the SEC’s sustainability, the Thai capital market’s sustainability and the Thai capital market as a 

tool to create the nation’s sustainability. The SEC Board, executives, and employees adhered to governance guidelines, which are in 

accordance with those of OECD (The Organisation for Economic Co-operation and Development) and IOSCO (International Organization 

of Securities Commission). The guidelines were reviewed yearly to be in line with relevant standards and the changing condition of 

global capital market. The implementations are as follows:

Pursuant to the Securities and Exchange Act (No.4) B.E. 2551, 

the SEC is comprised of two boards:

• The SEC Board is entrusted with policymaking for overall

market supervision and development including appointment of  

various sub-committees to support the operation of the SEC. 

• The Capital Market Supervisory Board is in charge of

issuance of rules and regulations pertaining to business 

undertaking in the capital market and reports the  performance to 

the SEC Board.

The SEC Office operates in accordance with policies  

assigned by the SEC Board with the Secretary-General as the  

highest chief executive.

1.1 SEC Board

The SEC Board structure as stipulated in the Securities and 

Exchange Act consists of 1) Chairman- appointed by the Cabinet 

2) Three ex-officio members comprising the Permanent Secretary

of the Ministry of Finance, the Permanent Secretary of the Ministry 

of Commerce and the Governor of the Bank of Thailand 3) Four to 

six expert members by the nomination of the Selection Committee  

and appointed by the Minister of Finance, at least one each in 

the legal, accounting and finance fields and 4) Secretary-General 

of the SEC as board member and secretary. The Chairman, the 

expert members and the Secretary-General shall hold the office for 

a four-year term and may be re-appointed, but not more than two 

consecutive terms. 

1.2 Capital Market Supervisory Board

The Capital Market Supervisory Board as stipulated in the 

Securities and Exchange Act consists of 1) the Secretary-General 

as Chairman 2) the Deputy Secretary-General appointed by the 

Secretary-General 3) the Director-General of the Fiscal Policy Office 

or the appointed Deputy Director-General, and 4) not more than 

four expert members appointed by the Minister of Finance upon the 

Selection Committee’s recommendation. At least two of the expert 

members must have experiences managing listed company or  

securities company. The expert members’ term in office is four years 

and shall not hold the office for more than two consecutive terms.

2. Check and Balance Mechanism

To support operation of the SEC Board to ensure transparency, 

fairness and integrity, the SEC Board has appointed committees and 

sub-committees to be important mechanism of check and balance.

2.1 Audit Committee

Audit Committee is responsible for supervising and reviewing  

internal control, internal audit and risk management, as well as 

reviewing financial reports to satisfy various rules, regulations and 

standards. The Securities and Exchange Act stipulates that the 

Audit Committee consists of not less than three but not more than 

five members. Of this total, at least two members must be expert 

members of the SEC Board and at least one member shall be  

competent or have experiences in finance and accounting. The term 

of office for the Audit Committee shall be as follows: 

1. SEC Structure
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(1) Audit Committee that is SEC Board shall have term of office 

that is identical to their terms on the SEC Board.

(2) The others shall hold office for a term of four years.

2.2 Risk Management Sub-Committee

The Risk Management Sub-Committee’s duty is to consider 

the framework and guidelines for all risk management aspects of 

the SEC. The Sub-Committee consists of two expert members from 

the SEC Board and one expert member from the Capital Market 

Supervisory Board, each holding the office for a two-year term. 

2.3 Remuneration Sub-Committee

The Remuneration Sub-Committee is responsible for studying  

guidel ines for determining compensation, considers the  

appropriateness of compensation for the SEC Board and other  

Sub-Committees appointed by the SEC Board, and proposes  

recommendation to the SEC Board. The Sub-Committee is also  

responsible for evaluating the performance of the Secretary-General 

in accordance with the strategic plans and the key performance 

indicators (KPIs) of the SEC and KPIs of the Secretary-General. The 

Sub-Committee consists of three expert members from the SEC 

Board, each holding the office for a two-year term. 

3. Remuneration of the Boards and Executives

3.1 Details of the remuneration of the boards and sub-committees

The Securities and Exchanges Act contains provisions on the remuneration of the SEC Boards. The sub-committees appointed by 

the SEC Board shall receive compensation in accordance with that set by the Minister of Finance. The Capital Market Supervisory Boards 

shall receive compensation in accordance with that set by the SEC Board. The details of the remuneration are as follows:

unit: baht

Remuneration

SEC Board Capital Market  

Supervisory  Board

Audit Committee Risk Management

Sub-Committee

Remuneration  

Sub-Committee

Chair Member Chair Member Chair Member Chair Member Chair Member

Monthly stipend 50,000 40,000 50,000 40,000 50,000 40,000 - - - -

Attendance fee/

meeting

25,000 20,000 25,000 20,000 - - 5,000 4,000 5,000 4,000

3.2 Details of the remuneration of the executives

In 2014, SEC executives consisting of the Secretary-General, Deputy Secretaries and Assistant Secretaries, altogether ten persons, 

received compensation including salaries and provident fund totaling 67,083,392 baht, compare with 61,541,394 baht for the year 2013, 

an increase of nine per cent due to the number of executives which increased from nine to ten. The increasement rate is in line with the 

average salary increase of employees.

4. Details of the Meeting Attendance of the SEC Boards and Sub-Committees
The SEC Board holds pre-scheduled, monthly meeting. The Secretary-General presents a draft meeting agenda to the Chairman 

for approval. Once approved, the draft will be placed on the meeting agenda and submitted to the SEC Board for consideration not less 

than seven days prior to the meeting. In order to make careful and prudent decision, the SEC Board may ask for additional information 

from the board’s secretary and also attend training programs related to the capital market.

In the meeting, the Chairman of the SEC Board shall chair the meeting. In case the Chairman is unable to attend the meeting, the 

Permanent Secretary of the Ministry of Finance shall assume the duties of chairing the meeting. 
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The members attending the meeting shall not be less than half to constitute a quorum. Members of management may attend the 

meeting on relevant topics. Any member of the SEC Board having conflicts of interest in any agenda item is required to declare such 

conflict in advance and excluded from participating in the consideration of such item agenda. In this respect, the meetings of the Capital 

Market Supervisory Board, the Audit Committee, the Risk Management Sub-Committee and the Remuneration Sub-Committee have  

similar guidelines. 

Details of the meetings of each Board and Sub-Committee for the year 2014 are as follows:

(1) SEC Board: Total of 12 meetings

SEC Board Total attendance/
No. of meetings

Remarks

Chairman Mr. Achaporn Charuchinda 12/12

Ex-officio members Permanent Secretary of the Ministry of 

Finance

- Mr. Rungson Sriworasat

Permanent Secretary of the Ministry of  

Commerce

- Ms. Srirat Rastapana

- Ms. Chutima Bunyapraphasara

Governor of the Bank of Thailand

-Mr. Prasarn Trairatvorakul

9/12

5/6

2/6

12/12

Holding office until June 25, 2014 

Holding office from June 26, 2014 

Expert members Mr. Nontaphon Nimsomboon

Mr. Kumchai Jongjakapun

Ms. Sopawadee Lertmanaschai

Mr. Prasong Poontaneat 

Mr. Vikrom Koompirochana

Mr. Somchai Kuvijitsuwan

3/3

12/12

12/12

8/9

11/12

12/12

Holding office until February 21, 2014 

Holding office from April 8, 2014

Member and Secretary SEC Secretary-General

- Mr. Vorapol Socatiyanurak 12/12
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(2) Capital Market Supervisory Board: Total of 14 meetings

Capital Market Supervisory Board Total attendance/
No. of meetings

Remarks

Chair SEC Secretary-General

- Mr. Vorapol Socatiyanurak 14/14

Ex-officio members SEC Deputy Secretary-General

- Mr. Chalee Chantanayingyong

Director General, Fiscal Policy Office

- Mr. Somchai Sujjapongse 

- Mr. Krisada Chinavicharana 

14/14

5/7

5/7

Holding office until June 26, 2014

Holding office from June 27, 2014

Expert members M.L. Pakakaew Boonliang

Mr. Kampanart Lohacharoenvanich

Mrs. Dayana Bunnag

Mr. Pratib Yongvanich 

Ms. Pornanong  Budsaratragoon

Mrs. Suchada Pavananunt

0/3

14/14

3/3

14/14

9/11

10/11

Holding office until April 7, 2014 

Holding office until April 7, 2014 

Holding office from April 8, 2014

Holding office from April 8, 2014

Secretary Director, Office of the Secretary-General

Mr. Thawatchai Pittayasophon 13/14

Note: M.L. Pakakaew Boonliang and Mrs. Dayana Bunnag held office until November 18, 2013 and continued their duty until the 

appointment of new members on April 7, 2014.

(3) Audit Committee: Total of 13 meetings

Audit Committee Total attendance/
No. of meetings

Remarks

Chair Mr. Somchai Kuvijitsuwan 13/13

Members Mr. Nontaphon Nimsomboon

Mr. Vikrom Koompirochana

Ms. Sopawadee Lertmanaschai

2/2

13/13

11/11

Holding office until February 21, 2014 

Holding office from February 22, 2014

Secretary Director, Internal Audit Department

Mrs. Usana Chanama 12/12
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(4) Risk Management Sub-Committee: Total of one meeting 

Risk Management 
Sub-Committee

Total attendance/
No. of meetings

Remarks

Chair Mr. Kampanart Lohacharoenvanich 1/1

Members Mr. Pratib Yongvanich 

Ms. Pornanong  Budsaratragoon 

Mr. Prasong Poontaneat

1/1

1/1

0/1

Secretary Director, Enterprise Risk Management Center

Mrs. Sittasri Nakasiri 1/1

(5) Remuneration Sub-Committee: Total of two meetings

Remuneration Sub-Committee Total attendance/
No. of meetings

Remarks

Chair Permanent Secretary of the Ministry of 

Finance

- Mr. Rungson Sriworasat

2/2 Holding office from June 18, 2014 

Members Mr. Somchai Kuvijitsuwan 

Mr. Vikrom Koompirochana

2/2

2/2

Holding office from June 18, 2014

Holding office from January 22, 2014

Secretary Director, Human Resources Department

Mrs. Duangjai Dhanasthitya 2/2
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Sustainable Development
2014 is our debut year towards making the SEC a full-fledged sustainable organization as envisioned by the 

Sustainability Development Roadmap for listed companies endorsed by the SEC Board in late 2013. There are 

three guiding principles:

CG in substance The organization’s governance structure should enable the organization to operate and 

achieve its functional objectives while imbued with proper checks and balances in place. Risk management oversight 

should be on par with the standards of listed companies, government agencies in Thailand, as well as the standards 

of international capital market regulators. Important measures implemented in 2014 include:

•	  The SEC applied the International Framework: Good Governance in the Public Sector launched in 

2014 by the IFAC (International Federation of Accountants) and CIPFA (The Chartered Institute of Public Finance 

and Accountancy). The framework helped the SEC identify strengths as well as areas to develop further. It also  

highlighted the importance of maintaining alignment of the organization’s vision with that of the capital market 

itself, as this would allow the SEC to cater effectively to the demands of stakeholders. This led to a decision to 

draft a “framework for the sustainable development of the SEC, capital market, and society” and an initiative to 

integrate the use of tools such as checklist of questions into our operations. Such proposed undertakings were 

further discussed with the top executives, expert member of the Capital Market Supervisory Board, and the Audit 

Committee. Test implementation of the checklist-based style of work was piloted with staff in the development 

and deterrence fields who were briefed on the concept and subsequently applied checklists in actual tasks of 

issuing notifications or restructuring existing work. The outcomes indicated a better ability to provide solutions 

for stakeholders. The formulation of checklists will be further refined for better effectiveness and ensure important 

issues are covered. The guidelines will also be developed into case studies to educate staff.

•	  We reviewed standards and guidelines to seek ways to improve the policies and operations of 

the SEC, by applying the principles of good public governance as laid out by the Office of the Public Sector  

Development Commission and the ASEAN Good Regulatory Practice (ASEAN GRP). We also deployed Regulatory 

Impact Analysis (RIA).

•	  The integrity of the SEC as a whole, including individual employees, are assessed against established  

international standards through numerous means. The SEC Board reports regarding internal controls and  

preparation of financial reports are in place. The operations of the SEC Board, the Capital Market Supervisory 

Board, and the Audit Committee are reviewed to ensure good corporate governance. Complaint handling and 

channels are also maintained to facilitate feedback regarding wrongdoing by SEC employees.
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CSR in process Carrying out one’s duties effectively should be a process that is instilled with social  

responsibility, providing fair treatment and inclusiveness to all stakeholders in the capital market. With stakeholders 

playing an important part in shaping the development and sustainability of the capital market, the SEC is therefore 

committed to cater to the demands of stakeholders to facilitate progress. While stakeholders may occasionally 

have different demands, the SEC will seek to achieve solutions with the best balance, to strive for overall progress 

of the market. 

Inclusion of stakeholders is an important key to help drive improvement in market supervision and  

development. As such, the SEC welcomes inputs from stakeholders in the capital market through a variety of 

means and channels. Stakeholders have continually provided excellent collaboration, whether through meetings 

with associations on market development issues or various consultation sessions conducted for wide participation 

or specific parties. Seminars and conferences are other common ways to work together and share know-how.

Having external individuals as representatives on sub-committees that review or formulate new regula-

tions was another effective way of collaboration between the SEC and stakeholders. Representatives frequently  

include participation by organizations such as the Thai Listed Companies Association, Thai Investors Association,  

Association of Thai Securities Companies, Association of Investment Management Companies, Investment Analysts 

Association, Thai Bond Market Association, Association of Provident Funds, the Thai Real Estate Association, the 

Stock Exchange of Thailand, the Custodian Club, legal and other experts in their fields. Ten such sub-committees 

working on various capital market matters were active in 2014. 

Anti-corruption in practice To be a corruption-free organization, whether as a recipient or provider, 

is the ultimate aim. The organization should also have international-levels of procedures and framework to fight 

corruption.

To be in line with the anti-corruption guidelines that the SEC encouraged the related entities in the Thai capital 

market to comply with, the SEC implemented the followings in 2014:

- The SEC conducted a self-evaluation to determine how the organization fared against guidelines of the 

Collective Action Coalition Against Corruption (CAC), established by the Institute of Directors (IOD). On all major 

categories, the assessment revealed that the SEC already has effective measures to clamp down corruption.

- A new initiative called “SEC: A Corruption-free Organization” was approved by the SEC Board on November 

5, 2014.

- The Anti-corruption Progress Indicator for measuring listed companies was adopted and applied to the SEC’s 

own investment activities. The fund manager of the SEC’s Provident Fund was requested to only invest in listed 

companies achieving a score of 1 or higher (further details regarding the scores of the Anti-corruption Progress 

Indicator is available under the heading “Anti-corruption in the Thai Capital Market”). Changes to the provident 

fund took effect January 2015.
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To achieve sustainable development of the Thai capital market, the SEC continued to emphasize that 

listed companies operate their businesses with a keen awareness of the impact on society, embrace good  

governance principles, and commit themselves against corruption.  Their successes could represent change agents 

to positively influence the rest of the country's business sector. 2014 was a milestone year for the anti-corruption 

movement in the Thai capital market.

  The SEC required listed companies to declare their anti-corruption policies in the annual registration 

statement (form 56-1), annual report, and registration statement (form 69-1), effective January 1, 2014 onwards, 

and subsequently worked with the Thaipat Institute in the development of the Anti-corruption Progress Indicator 

to assess listed companies in this area. Furthermore, the Thaipat Institute will view a company's decision to join 

the IOD's Collective Action Coalition Against Corruption (CAC) as a factor in its assessment.

The Anti-corruption Progress Indicator ranks organizations into five levels. 

Score Description

1 - Committed Indicating commitment of top executive and the organization with board of directors’ 

resolution and policy not to involve with corruption.

2 - Declared Indicating determination by means of declaration to join CAC Project by Thai private 

enterprises.

3 - Established Indicating policy to oppose bribing government officials and those related to  

corruption as well as policy to communicate and educate employees regarding  

anti-corruption policy and practices.

4 - Certified Indicating an implementation audited by audit committee or SEC-approved auditor, 

a certification by CAC or an audit by independent external organizations.

5 - Extended Indicating anti-corruption policy which extends to business partners, consultants, 

intermediaries and business representatives.

- The SEC will post anti-corruption declaration messages on all its procurement and contracts documents, 

as well as its website as of January 2015 onwards.

- The SEC urged its contacts and organizations it typically engages with to refrain from presenting gifts to 

SEC executives and employees; an initiative now in its second year. 

Anti-corruption in the Thai Capital Market
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The results of the Anti-corruption Progress Indicator announced by the Thaipat Institute on October 15, 2014 

revealed that 60% or 344 out of the total of 567 listed companies evaluated achieved a score of one or higher. 

Nineteen listed companies achieved a score of four, the highest level that can be attained in this particular evaluation 

exercise. Subsequently, during the remaining part of the year, another nine listed companies (equivalent to a score 

of four on the indicator) became fully certified members of the CAC, bringing that total to 28. For listed companies 

which have not addressed the issue of corruption (equivalent to a score below one), the SEC has sent written notices 

to the chairman of the board of the respective companies to urge that prompt action be considered.

The results of the Anti-corruption Progress Indicator are available on www.sec.or.th and www.cgthailand.org. 

The SEC’s efforts to help fight corruption extend beyond listed companies also include measures aimed at 

producing positive change in other sectors:

•	  Securities companies and asset management companies

- The SEC urges all securities companies and asset management companies to join the private business  

sector’s CAC within 2015. They are also encouraged to provide information to profile themselves on the  

Anti-corruption Content Index, enabling the Thaipat Institute to assess and disclose their Anti-corruption Progress 

Indicator scores just like listed companies. 

- A listed company’s Anti-corruption Progress Indicator score should also be revealed on analyst reports.

- Encourage mutual funds to only invest in listed companies that receive a score of three or above. Further-

more, the SEC will help provide information to the public to promote such funds.

•	 Institutional investors, through their respective associations such as the Association of Thai Securities 

Companies and the Association of Investment Management Companies.

- From 2014 onwards, institutional investors were requested to question and assess listed companies  

regarding policies and efforts to stem corruption during annual general meeting of shareholders.

- Issue proxy voting guidelines that incorporates factors related to corruption when making a decision to 

vote at shareholder meetings.

•	 The Thai Investors Association

- Provide training on how investors could ask question to listed companies on policies and measures against 

corruption by exercising the right of shareholders to raise such matters at annual shareholder meetings 2014 

onwards.
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Risk Management
The SEC strongly believes that effective development of the capital market and meet stakeholders’ needs 

require embedding Enterprise Risk Management into staff’s normal work routines.  Risk management must be an 

integral part of the corporate culture, driving direction and policy implementation.  Keeping up with external and 

domestic risks and drawing feedback from all fronts are vital.

Volatile capital flows, disruptive monetary policies abroad, domestic political instability, and many other issues 

can add up to a very challenging operating environment for the SEC as regulator of the capital market, financial 

intermediaries, and market infrastructure.  The SEC works closely with other financial market regulators, such as, 

the Bank of Thailand and the Office of Insurance Commission to share views on problems and ultimately work 

together to adopt preventive measures.

Business Continuity Management is equally important to ensure the capacity to operate, or quickly  

recover, vital functions in the midst of unexpected events or crises.  This includes running practice drills to test the  

effectiveness of the plan against extraordinary events ranging from natural disasters, terrorism, pandemics, or 

volatilities to the financial system.
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The global economy grew at a rather slow pace of 3.3% in 2014 

with nations achieving different levels of recovery. Major economies 

such as the US and the UK grew at a satisfactory pace but many 

other nations had fragile economic recoveries, particularly the  

Eurozone and Japan. As such, the economic policies prescribed by 

the major economies deviated considerably. China, the emerging  

markets, as well as ASEAN, experienced a slowdown. Russia faced 

an economic crisis and currency volatility and struggled with the 

sharp 60% decline in crude oil prices towards the latter part of the 

year, sliding from 115 USD to 48 USD per barrel in 2014. But in an 

overall context, the steep consolidation in oil prices may be positive  

towards helping the global economy recover by bringing down 

inflationary and cost pressures.

For 2015, the International Monetary Fund ( IMF) is  

forecasting global growth at 3.5%, a slightly higher pace than 2014. 

It also expects this to be another challenging year as many countries, 

such as, the US, Eurozone, and Japan pursue markedly different 

economic policies. For example, the US’s Federal Reserve System 

(Fed) is expected to begin raising interest rates mid-year onwards 

while the European Central Bank (ECB) and the Bank of Japan (BOJ) 

are anticipated to continue loosening monetary policy through Public 

Quantitative Easing (QE) to fend off deflation. An important factor 

to watch is the appetite of fund flows towards risk assets, such as 

emerging markets. Furthermore, when the Fed decides to raise 

interest rates and the US dollar appreciates as a consequence of 

QE measures taking place in other countries, it will be interesting to 

see whether this will work against the US’s road towards economic 

recovery. Other issues to watch in 2015 include the uncertainty 

regarding new global energy price equilibriums amidst a supply 

glut coming from both the US and the Organization of Petroleum 

Exporting Countries (OPEC) on the backdrop of subdued demand 

from a sluggish global economy. 

A power shift to China is another phenomenon as the nation  

progresses technologically, its large companies dominate the 

Economic Overview and Capital Market in 2014 & 
Prospects for 2015

GDP Growth Rate (%)

US Eurozone UK Japan China Thailand

The Office of the National Economic and Social Development 

Board (NESDB) estimated that the Thai economy grew 0.7% in 

2014, slowing down from 2.9% in 2013 due to political instability 

in the earlier part of the year and a weak global economic recovery. 

However, reduced tension and greater clarity on the political front 

combined with economic stimulus helped the economy pick up 

towards the latter part of the year. Domestic growth, exports and 

tourism could only recover at a moderate pace, partly because key 

trading partners such as China and Japan experienced an economic 

Global Economy

Thai Economy

global scene, and China turns into an outward investor. The digital  

landscape is also changing online lifestyles and increased  

sophistication of communications technology (i.e. cloud) in storage 

and accessibility will mean more intense competition in e-commerce 

than in traditional forms of businesses. On the macro front, greater 

volatility and global financial risks being fuelled by low interest 

rates and prolonged periods of excess liquidity, may cause many 

to underestimate the risks. Any country that sharply reverses its 

economic policies to compensate for inadequate preparation could 

cause unwanted repercussions on the global financial markets.

Economic Growth in 2014 and  
Forecast for 2015
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GDP Growth Rate (% yoy)

between 0.0-1.0% in 2015 would be a plus for economic stability, 

while low oil prices would be advantageous for producers.

However, certain risks may cause the Thai economy to 

underperform expectations. Factors include potential delays in 

government policy implementation, weak private demand, potential  

weakness in the currencies of Thailand’s key trading partners 

and competitors, and a rise in real interest rates. Public finances 

may raise concerns, too. While the short term outlook of public 

finances is not alarming as public debt remains within prudent levels,  

the long term outlook warns of impending risk posed by a flat 

revenue collection profile against rising expenditures. Additionally, 

that flat revenue collection projection also has a tendency to drop 

if tax cuts are deployed as stimulus measures. Over the long term,  

government expenditures will increase along with infrastructure 

and welfare spending as the population ages. As such, a prompt 

restructuring of public finances and other reforms must take shape 

such as state enterprise reform, infrastructure investment reforms, 

tax collection, and government expenditures. Also, accommodative  

and sound monetary policies are vital for growth and stability.

Thailand’s Economic Growth Rates and Forecast for 2015

slowdown. Furthermore, the prices of Thai agricultural exports were 

subdued. From an economic stability standpoint, inflation softened 

to 1.9% in 2014 owing to declines in oil and global commodity prices 

as well as impact from the government’s restructuring of domestic 

energy price structures.

The NESDB expects GDP to regain momentum and grow  

3.5-4.5% in 2015. Purchasing power and consumer spending will 

benefit from declining oil prices. Private investment will increase 

as a result of stimulus from higher government spending and the  

fast-tracking of many investment projects such as transport 

megaprojects. The economy will also benefit from better global 

demand; tourism should recover as visitors become more  

comfortable with the progress of Thailand’s internal politics. New 

economic opportunities will emerge from collaboration with regional  

neighbors, particularly the Greater Mekhong Subregion (GMS) which 

consists of Thailand, China, Myanmar, Vietnam, Cambodia, and 

Laos; all exhibiting high growth prospects. Thailand’s advantage  

as a potential capital market hub for the region can provide  

opportunities for economic growth in 2015. Moderate inflation of 
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Throughout 2014, the capital market faced many challenging 

elements: economics, politics, global volatility from tapering of US’ 

quantitative easing, health of key countries and plunging oil prices. 

Yet, capital market investments managed to produce reasonably 

good returns in 2014, particularly global and Thai government 

bonds which produced total returns reaching the 7-9% level. The 

performance of equities showed greater disparity, depending on 

geographical location. The US and Japanese equities gained about 

7%, Asian stock markets continued to appreciate, led by China with 

a 50% surge of Index over 2013 to earn world’s best performing 

market. Among the ten best performing equity markets, seven were 

Asian markets including Thailand which rose 15%.

The Thai market’s trading volume improved in 2014 as political 

tensions eased and financial markets became more composed. As a 

result, the SET Index climbed 15.32% to close the year at 1,497.67 

points. The equity market rose as high as 1,600.16 points on 26 

September 2014, compared with the lowest point of the year at 

1,224.62 points on January 3, 2014. Daily trading volume averaged  

41,605 million baht with enthusiasm boosted by the entry of 17 

newly listed companies in 2014 as well. The SET’s total market  

capitalization expanded to 13,856,283.31 million baht in 2014, up 

21% from the previous year. Total foreign net sales was 36,584 

million baht.

In 2014, the Thai capital market made strides in developing 

good governance, international standards of risk management, 

and establishment of important foundations. The SEC helped 

expand the variety of products and services for investors and fund  

mobilization through relaxation of investment restrictions such as 

allowing investment in unrated securities, streamlining the launch 

of products and services which are complex and contain risks, 

introducing common offering rules for new financial products not 

falling within a scope of any existing rule to facilitate private sector’s 

issuance of new financial products in response to market needs. The 

SEC also increased foreign investment products offered in Thailand 

such as primary listings of foreign companies, local subscription of 

stocks listed abroad as a secondary listing, sale of foreign securities 

underlying depositary receipts, and regulations on cross-listings 

of ASEAN stocks. Efforts were also made to increase the public’s  

deployment of the capital market for their long term investment 

needs by formulating regulations for investment planners, increasing  

payment channels (paying agent) for investment in mutual 

funds through counter services and leading retail shops, and  

collaborating with the Thai Bond Market Association to establish 

the Bond Supermart information center. We also established more 

capital mobilization channels for small and medium-sized enterprises 

(SMEs), support target industries through schemes, such as, Private 

Equity Trust (PE Trust), Pride of the Provinces and The Pride in Thai 

Thai Capital Market
Equity Market

Thai Exports to Major Trading Par tners and their Growth Rates in 2013 and 2014
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SET Index and Net Foreign Trading in 2014
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In 2014, the short sale value was equivalent to 2.3% of the total 

trading value of stocks in the SET100, similar to the year before. At 

its peak, short sale value reached 4.5% in January 2014 triggered 

by concerns over weaknesses in the China and US economies as 

well as the Fed’s bias towards QE tapering in February.

Innovative and Creative Businesses. Improving financial literacy 

remains an on-going mission; we provided training tailored for the 

young working class, guidebooks on mutual funds, and launched 

the "A thousand baht, start a journey to your dream" project to build 

investment discipline. To strengthen foundations for sustainable 

development and governance, we created measurements to gauge 

listed companies on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) and  

anti-corruption. The SEC remains committed to continue driving 

such issues forward in 2015, determined to ensure the Thai capital 

market will be resilient against volatilities from global economic 

conditions or rapidly shifting capital flows.
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% Change of Stock Market Index 2014 (%YoY)

China  52.9%

India  30.1%

Philippines  22.8%

Indonesia  22.3%

Thai  15.3%

US  7.5%

Japan  7.1%

Singapore  6.2%

MSCI Asia ex JP  2.2%

Euro  1.2%

Malaysia  -5.7%

Russia  -45.2%

Short sale 

Source: SET Market Analysis and Reporting Tool (SETSMART) 
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Equity issuance and offering 

The Thai economy and financial markets gradually recovered 

after the National Peace and Order Maintaining Council took  

leadership in May and internal political tensions subsided. A  

strengthening SET Index coupled with prolonged low-interests 

worldwide prompted investors switch into the equity market for  

better returns. IPOs were well-received, encouraging more new 

listings to follow. In total, 224,516 million baht was raised through 

share issues, up 9% from 205,880 million baht in 2013. This  

consisted of 37 IPOs raising 57,637 million baht, an increase of 45% 

from 39,870 million baht in 2013. Bangkok Airways Public Co., Ltd. 

was the largest IPO issue at 13,000 million baht. Secondary share 

offerings amounted to 166,880 million baht, an increase of 870 

million baht from 166,010 million baht in 2013.

Issuance and offering for sale of Real Estate 
Investment Trusts

Real Estate Investment Trusts (REITs) were offered to 

Thai retail investors for the first time in 2014 with a combined 

value of 27,226 million baht. Regulations on REITs, launched 

January 1, 2013, are based on principles similar to regular property  

funds but offers greater flexible and closer al ignment to  

international norms. These REITs can tap a wider range of assets  

and take on higher leverage. Subsequently, the SEC ceased  

approvals of new property funds from January 1, 2014 onwards; 

existing funds may continue to operate but prohibited from  

expanding their investments. REITs launched in 2014 include:

•	 LH Shopping Centers Leasehold Real Estate Investment Trust 

(LHSC), valued at 4,978 million baht;

•	 TICON Freehold and Leasehold Real Estate Investment Trust 

(TREIT), valued at 3,425 million baht;

•	 WHA Premium Growth Freehold And Leasehold (WHART), valued 

at 3,108 million baht; and

•	 Impact Growth Real Estate Investment Trust (IMPACT), valued 

at 15,714.5 million baht.

Bond Market

The bond market continued to grow in 2014 and the combined 

value of all debt instruments rising 3.3% to 9.3 trillion baht by year-

end. The market is still largely dominated by government bond of 7 

trillion just as in 2013. Outstanding private sector debt instruments 

totaled 2.2 trillion baht, an increase of 17.2% over 2013. Eighty-three 

billion baht of foreign capital flowed into the Thai bond market in 

2014, as political uncertainty improved and monetary easing meant 

yields elsewhere were less attractive. Total foreign holdings of Thai 

debt securities reached 740 billion baht, up marginally by 1.2% over 

2013. A falling interest rate environment, both domestic and external, 

plus interest rate cuts by the Thai Monetary Policy Committee from 

2.25% to 2.0% on March 12, 2014 shifted the entire government 

yield curve lower with short term tenors declining 0.25% and the 

yield of long term bonds falling by 0.6-1.1%.

For 2015, the private sector is expected to continue tapping the 

bond market to raise funds in 2015, given the prevailing low interest 

rate environment while the economy has yet to fully recovered and 

inflationary pressures are moderate. Adoption of quantitative easing 

in the Eurozone and Japan may encourage foreign capital to head 

this way. On the other hand, a US recovery coupled with hikes in 

US interest rates could produce an opposite effect of prompting a 

rise in Thai interest rates and impact bond market.
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Yield Curve for Government Bonds 
(27 December 2013, 30 June 2014, 
and 30 December 2014)
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In 2014, total outright trades of debt instruments averaged 

77,009 million baht a day, 9.7% below 2013 levels. Fewer issuance 

meant trades of Bank of Thailand (BOT) bonds had lower value and 

trades were predominantly between dealers and investors or 71% 

of total trading value. Mutual funds represented the most active 

group at 61% of total, followed by foreign investors at 14%, local 

companies 7% and insurance companies 5%. 

Trading Value in Bond Market according to 
Investor Types in 2014

Debt Securities Held by Foreign Investors 
in 2014

Debt Instrument Issuance and Offering 

The total value of debt instrument issuance and offering in the 

domestic market in 2014 amounted to 9.8 trillion baht, a decline of 

2.6 trillion baht or 21% over 2013. New issues were predominantly 

government debt totaling 6.3 trillion baht, while the private sector 

raised 3.5 trillion baht. New government debt issues were 670  

billion baht or 10%, less than the amount raised in 2013. There were 

fewer BOT and state enterprise bond issues, although government 

bonds, treasury bills and promissory notes were more active. Yet, 

BOT bond issues remain dominant in value, accounting for 4.7  

trillion baht or 74% of new public debt issues in 2014.
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Government Debt Instrument Offering by Type Debt Instrument Offering in Private Sector 
by Type

Private debt issued domestically by Thai and foreign  

companies amounted to 3.5 trillion baht in 2014, declining sharply 

by 36% compared to 2013. Of the amount issued, shorter term debt 

totaled 2.9 trillion baht, down 42%, while long term debt totaled 5.9 

trillion baht, up 27%. As a group, non-listed companies raised 54% 

of the amount, followed by banking sector at 25%, the property 

development sector at 5%, the energy and utilities sector at 3.2%, 

and finance and securities sector at 3.1%. Thai companies issued 

2.6 trillion baht of debt, 6% more than 2013, with long term debt 

issues reaching a record high as companies were strategically trying 

to lengthen the structure of their debt to lock in low yields.

Baht denominated bond issued by foreign companies  

(including foreign bank branches) declined from 2.9 trillion baht 

in 2013 to a mere 850 billion baht in 2014, which mainly due to a 

decrease in short-term debt offering by 2.1 trillion baht, accounting 

for 99% of debt instrument. 

Futures Market

The Thailand Futures Exchange Plc (TFEX) saw an expansion 

of volume and investor base in 2014 with 36.02 million contracts 

traded during the year. This is equivalent to 147,025 contracts 

per day or an increase of 116% from 2013 where average trading 

volume was at 68,017 contract per day, with Single Stock Futures, 

SET50 Futures, and Gold Futures being the most popular. A record 

volume of 864,479 contracts was achieved on December 15, 2014. 

Open interest at the close of the year stood at 918,187 contracts, 

169% higher than 2013. Retail investors accounted for slightly 

over half of activity in the futures market, or 55%, followed by  

institutional investors at 36% of total and foreign investors at 9%. Online  

trading was vibrant, accounting for 43% of total trades. The growth 

of the futures market also saw the number of investors rise by 15% 

to 100,650 trading accounts this year.

Source: Bank of Thailand (BOT)
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In 2014, the size of the SET50 Index Futures was reduced 

by lowering the multiplier from 1,000 to 200 baht per index point. 

By bringing contract prices down by a fifth, liquidity improved  

substantially and trades surged by 153% compared to 2013.  

Improvements to the trading and settlement systems, expansion 

of trading hours into the afternoon, and services to physically  

deliver gold and USD for the respective futures contracts were other 

highlights achieved in the past year. 

Year 2015 is expected to be another growth year for TFEX, 

spotlighted by the merger of TFEX and the Agricultural Futures 

Exchange of Thailand (AFET). Potential approval for more brokers 

of USD Futures, larger credit lines to trade them, and settlement 

via USD would also contribute to TFEX’s progress. 

Net Open Position and Future Contracts Trading Volume per Day in 2014

Source: Thailand Futures Exchange Plc.
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At the end of 2014, there were 40 securities firms, of which 

a total of 34 firms carried out brokerage business. The brokerage 

business was characterized as high competition from the continuing 

entry of new business players from the previous year, leading to the 

decrease of market shares of the top ten players from 55.66% in 

2013 to 52.96% in 2014. Besides brokerage operation, the securities 

firms also operated other securities businesses such as securities 

underwriting, investment advising, issuing derivatives warrants and 

structured notes, and managing investment for private fund. The 

total revenue derived from these businesses increased to the level 

of 31% of total revenue from 28% in the previous year.

Throughout the year 2014, Thailand received much attention  

from the global investors due to the clearer and more stable  

political situation, and the effect of economic stimuli policies from  

developed economies. This had led to the continuing expansion 

of the securities business industry. The industry combined assets 

were 290,054 million baht, an increase of 19% from the previous 

year of 243,967 million baht, while the combined unappropriated 

profits increased to the level of 2,779 million baht. However, the 

industry combined profits for the year was down to 11,046 million 

baht due to the reduction of the daily average trading value from 

the level of 50,329 million baht to 45,466 million baht. As a result, 

the revenue from brokerage business declined by 14% while other 

revenues slightly decreased by 3%. 

With respect to market trading activities, domestic investors 

remained major player with an increasing share of trading value from 

57% in 2013 to 62% in 2014. Internet trading gained popularity 

among domestic players, thereby increasing the proportion of internet 

trading to the level of 37.2% from 31.6% in 2013. Further, the industry 

total margin loans as at the end of year elevated to the level of 56,468  

million baht from 45,850 million baht in 2013, and peaked at the level 

of 60,000 million baht during the year. The value of collateral from 

margin loan also increased to 203,693 million baht or approximately 

3.6 times of the total margin loans.  

Securities Business

Financial Position1 2

 unit: million baht

 2013 2014

Total Assets 243,967 290,054 

 Cash, cash equivalent, and deposits 91,704 120,301 

 Investment, net 31,692 38,700 

 Receivables – securities and derivatives business 87,262 96,635 

 Receivables – clearing house 17,634 18,552 

Total Liabilities 159,301 201,564 

 Loans and debt instruments 21,239 34,660 

 Payables - securities and derivatives business 118,091 143,925 

 Payables – clearing house 8,224 10,107 

Shareholders’ Equity 84,667 88,490 

 Common stock 40,119 40,988 

 Retain profit (Loss) 33,247 36,026 

Note: Only selected items are shown. 

1 Financial data presented was collected from unaudited financial statements.
2 Financial data was of 38 out of 40 securities firms, excluding securities firms solely operating investment advising business. 

Industry Overview: Securities and Derivatives Business
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Comprehensive Income Statement
 unit: million baht

 2013 2014

Revenues 49,598 44,113 

 Fee – brokerage 35,499 30,454 

 Profit (Loss) – own trading account 7,122 6,408 

Expenses 30,871 30,593 

 Operating expenses 25,297 25,199 

Comprehensive profit (loss) 14,783 11,046 

Note:  Only selected items are shown.

Margin Loan

 2013 2014

Margin loan (million baht) 45,850 56,468

Collateral (million baht) 143,004 203,693

SET Index (point) 1,299.71 1,498.67

Net Liquid Capital

All securities firms maintained net liquid capital higher than regulatory requirement. As at the end of 2014, the industry net liquid 

capital increased to 74,444 million baht, while net capital ratio decreased to 94% in 2014 from 102% in the previous year.

 
2013 2014

Net Liquid Capital (million baht) 70,762 74,444

Net Capital Ratio (%) 102 94

Note: Minimum regulatory requirement - Net Liquid Capital 25 million baht, and Net Capital Raito 7%.
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Derivatives Agent Operators

With the total 43 licensed derivatives operators, there were seven firms that solely operated derivatives businesses. These firms 

specialized in derivatives with gold underlying. During the year 2013, gold price had been steadily decreasing as a result of the speculation 

on QE tapering and possible interest rate normalization. This pressured Gold Futures trading volumes to a lower mark. Subsequently,  

derivatives agent firms sought expanding their business to offer other derivatives products. The combined market shares of these  

derivatives agent firms declined from 10.92% in 2013 to 8.77%, leading to the decrease of total revenue by 29 million baht to the level of 

268 million baht. Nevertheless, the group’s business performance improved with the reduction in total loss to the level of 86 million baht 

in 2013 from the mark of 119 million baht the year before. This marked the group better cost management.

Financial Positions3 4

 unit: million baht

 
2013 2014

Total Assets 2,196 2,056 

 Cash, cash equivalent, and deposit 1,176 1,031 

 Receivables – clearing house 685 707 

Total Liabilities 1,215 1,121 

 Loans and debt instruments 33 33 

 Payables - securities and derivatives business 1,126 1,045 

Shareholders’ Equity 982 935 

 Common stock 1,145 1,195 

 Retain profit (Loss) (163) (260) 

Note: Only selected items are shown.

Comprehensive Income Statement
 unit: million baht
 

2013 2014

Revenues 297 268 

 Fee – brokerage 172 111 

 Profit (Loss) – own trading account 69 92 

Expenses 419 354 

 Operating expenses 324 274 

Comprehensive pro�t (loss) (119) (86)

Note:  Only selected items are shown.

3 Financial data presented was collected from unaudited financial statements.
4  Financial data of the 7 derivatives agent firms.
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Net Liquid Capital

All derivatives agents’ firms maintained net liquid capital higher than regulatory requirement. As at the end of 2014. The industry 

net liquid capital was at 699 million baht, close to the previous year level of 714 million baht, while net capital ratio slightly increased to 

102% in 2014.

 2013 2014

Net Liquid Capital (million baht) 714 699

Net Capital Ratio (%) 171 177

Note: Minimum regulatory requirement - Net Liquid Capital 15 million baht, and Net Capital Raito 7%.
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Industry Overview: Mutual Fund Industry
The total asset under management (AUM) of the mutual fund industry reached the record of 3.8 trillion baht at the end of 2014, an 

increase of 0.74 trillion baht or a growth of 24%. All types of mutual fund, specifically fixed income fund, equity fund, and mixed fund, 

increased in AUM size. Further, 2014 marked the very first year that REITs were launched with a number of three funds and the total size 

of 2.4 billion baht. The combined AUM size of REITs and property funds (Type 1) was at 0.3 trillion baht.

With respect to mutual fund concentrating overseas investment, the proportion slightly increased to 24% from last year mark at 23% 

of the industry total AUM but the size increased by 0.2 trillion baht or a growth of 31%

The number of industry players was at 22 firms similar to last year’s. Most of the players’ AUM increased, where bank-subsidiary 

firms remained dominant players with the combined market share of more than 94%. Additionally, there were two new firms licensed to 

operate as REIT managers in 2014.

Number of Funds NAV (million baht)

2013 2014 2013 2014 Change %Change

Mutual Fund and Trust Fund

Fixed income fund 696 711 1,694,296 2,060,707 366,411 22%

Equity fund 324 388 429,106 603,077 173,971 41%

Mixed fund 292 326 191,691 278,644 86,953 45%

Property fund (Type 1) 47 52 232,913 279,036 46,123 20%

Infrastructure fund 3 3 129,779 142,945 13,166 10%

Real Estate Investment Trust (REIT) - 3 - 24,168 24,168 n.a.

Total Mutual Fund and Trust Fund 1,362 1,483 2,677,785 3,388,578 710,792 27%

Domestic concentrated fund 925 964 2,045,738 2,560,050 514,312 25%

Foreign investment fund (average > 80% nav) 437 519 632,047 828,528 196,481 31%

Specialized Fund

Property fund (Type 2-4) 60 53 138,200 106,429 -31,771 -23%

Vayupak 1 Fund 1 1 255,920 316,811 60,890 24%

Country fund 2 2 748 628 -120 -16%

Total Specializes Fund 63 56 394,869 423,868 28,999 7%

Grand Total 1,425 1,539 3,072,654 3,812,446 739,792 24%
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Asset Management Company
2013 2014

NAV
(million bht)

Market
share

NAV
(million bht)

Market
share

NAV 
Change

% Change

Mutual Fund and REIT

Kasikorn Asset Management Company 710,466 27% 872,604 26% 162,138 23%

SCB Asset Management Company 669,413 25% 791,245 23% 121,832 18%

BBL Asset Management Public Company 310,279 12% 416,894 12% 106,615 34%

Krung Thai Asset Management Public Company 219,891 8% 283,442 8% 63,551 29%

Krungsri Asset Management Company 146,738 5% 215,914 6% 69,175 47%

TMB Asset Management Company 161,186 6% 194,623 6% 33,436 21%

Thanachart Fund Management Company 104,013 4% 135,495 4% 31,482 30%

UOB Asset Management (Thailand) Company 100,500 4% 123,590 4% 23,090 23%

MFC Asset Management Public Company 58,226 2% 65,796 2% 7,569 13%

Aberdeen Asset Management Company 32,997 1% 43,734 1% 10,737 33%

Land And Houses Fund Management Company 27,809 1% 39,158 1% 11,348 41%

One Asset Management Company 32,048 1% 36,265 1% 4,217 13%

Tisco Asset Management Company 23,752 0.9% 29,645 0.9% 5,893 25%

CIMB-Principal Asset Management Company 15,825 0.6% 27,028 0.8% 11,203 71%

Phatra Asset Management Company 18,862 0.7% 26,379 0.8% 7,517 40%

Asset Plus Fund Management Company 16,876 0.6% 22,300 0.7% 5,424 32%

Finansa Asset Management Company 20,316 0.8% 20,862 0.6% 546 3%

Solaris Asset Management Company 4,093 0.2% 15,459 0.5% 11,367 278%

Manulife Asset Management (Thailand) Company 3,471 0.1% 6,789 0.2% 3,317 96%

Phillip Asset Management Company 533 0.02% 1,421 0.04% 888 167%

Maybank Asset Management (Thailand) Company 481 0.02% 758 0.02% 276 57%

Merchant Partners Asset Management Company 8 0.0003% - - -8 -100%

REITS

RMI Company - - 16,063 0.5% 16,063 n.a.

WHA Real Estate Asset Mangement Company - - 3,115 0.1% 3,115 n.a.

Total 2,677,785 100% 3,388,578 100% 710,792 27%

Note:  Exduding Vayupak 1, property fund (Type 2-4) and country fund

In term of operating performance, the industry combined profit for the first half of 2014 increased by 89 million baht to the level of 

2,887 million baht, an increase of 3% from last year period. This was due to the increase in total AUM which led to the increase in revenue 

by 10% from last year period.

 
Unit : million baht

1H2013 2013 1H2014

Revenue 10,142 19,069 11,089

 Revenue - Fee & Service 9,853 18,638 10,905

Net Profit 2,798 4,824 2,887

Note:  1. Financial year of Aberdeen Asset Management Company and Phillip Asset Management Company ended June.

   2. Only selected items are shown.
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Key Achievements
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1.1 Facilitate the public to utilize the capital market for their long 

term savings through development of intermediaries and access 

channels. 

•	  Regulations issued for investment advisors to assist investors 

on the basics of asset allocation. This would help clients derive a 

good investment plan that meets financial objectives while keeping 

risks at acceptable levels, as profiled by a proper suitability test;

•	 Regulations issued to create investment planners in the 

capital market that could advise individuals on a one-on-one 

basis to customize investment plans that genuinely fit the clients’  

objectives and risk tolerance;

•	 Number of channels increased to facilitate retail investors to 

invest in unit trusts by approving new paying agents such as counter 

services and popular retail outlets. More channels will mean easier 

access to investment products. 

1.2 Promotion of financial literacy to trigger public awareness 

of the importance of financial planning and investment to meet 

future needs and prepare for retirement. In 2014, the SEC  

administered various schemes described below.

•	 The “Financial Literacy in Workplace” project was rolled out 

to the working population to sharpen their financial knowledge and 

skills, enabling them to meet current financial needs and save for 

retirement. In 2014, 168 organizations (which had over 200,000 

employees) ranging from state enterprises, listed companies,  

educational institutions, and general companies from various sectors 

enrolled in the program. 

•	 The “A thousand baht, start a journey to your dream” project, 

on the other hand, worked on promoting savings and investment 

discipline among the working population. The product to kick start 

these lessons enabled investors to put in 1,000 baht each month 

into a fund of their choice. Currently, seventeen asset management 

companies participated in the scheme, offering 58 such funds. As 

of now, over 10,000 new accounts have been created under this 

program;

•	 The SEC with its partners from the “Financial Literacy: Road 

to Thailand’s Prosperity” project jointly held the seminar entitled 

“Preparing for a Happy Retirement” to equip individuals approaching 

retirement with the necessary financial skills to plan, manage, and 

navigate the world of financial products;

•	 Provide on-going education on financial management and 

investments, through a variety of activities and media:

 °  The www.start-to-invest.com, the website that provides 

basic investment knowledge plus tools to help with investment 

decisions and financial planning. In 2014, the website had 800,000 

visitors. We also used social media channels such as Facebook and 

Twitter to reach audiences and our e-newsletters now have 47,000 

subscribers. The “start-to-invest” application on the mobile platform 

has attracted over 100,000 users; 

 ° We participated in the SET in the City 2014 event with 

our booth promoting the “Be Smart, Ask First” theme this year. 

Under this theme, we emphasized the importance that investors 

first understand the products and services before they invest. 

1 
Reaching out to various segments both businesses and the public

The SEC engaged with both businesses and the public with a particular aim of encouraging them 
to make greater use of the capital market.

The SEC’s accomplishments in 2014 were guided by the SEC Strategic Plan for 2014-2016 and implemented under challenging 

conditions of a fragile domestic economy, political instability, and fragile global recovery. Yet, progress was achieved in the areas of  

supervision and capacity building of the SEC to adhere more closely to International Organization of Securities Commissions (IOSCO) 

standards. Listed companies and capital market participants were effectively monitored, while market stability was ensured to foster 

sustainable growth of the Thai capital market. Key achievements for the year are described in further details below.

Key Achievements
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1.3 Creation of new channels for fund mobilization catering to 

small-to-medium sized enterprises (SMEs) and strategic sectors.

•	  Establishment of the regulations for Private Equity Trust 

(PE Trust) will enable investments to be pooled into new business 

ventures, SMEs, restructured businesses, or scientific/technology 

startups. Growth of PE Trust will also further widen the range of 

solutions the capital market can offer;

•	  We provided support to strategic sectors to familiarize them 

on ways to tap the capital market for funds and what it takes to 

prepare themselves. Two projects were rolled out. 

(1)  Activities conducted in the provinces through the “IPO, 

Pride of the Provinces” scheme is now in its third year with 99  

companies enrolled in 2014. Over three years, up to 289 companies 

from 42 provinces have taken part in this project.

(2) A similar “Pride in Thai Innovative and Creative  

Businesses” project debuted in 2014, drawing 51 companies into  

the scheme which is geared particularly to support the creative 

economy.

In 2014, the SEC also held 14 trainings, seminars, visits and 

fairs, reaching out to 900 attendees

2

The SEC along with alliances held a training course on “Financial Literacy in 

Workplace Project,” having executives and representatives from public and private 

sector participate in the event. 

The SEC jointly with capital market associations launched a project called “A thousand 

baht, start a journey to your dream.” 

Laying down foundations for sustainable development

Laying the right foundations for sustainable development requires consideration for the environment,  
society, corporate governance, and lack of corruption. We also need a healthy capital market, 
investors, and mechanisms that encourage market discipline and sound business practices.  
Strong intermediaries and effective regulatory enforcement are also necessary components.  

2.1 Encouragement of listed companies to progress forwards 

on three important areas: corporate governance, which focuses 

on practice (CG in substance), a holistic view of running the business 

by integrating social and environmental concerns (CSR in process), 

and serious efforts to fight against corruption (Anti-corruption in 

practice). To accomplish this, we deployed both market discipline 

and self-discipline. 

•	  Market discipline: Market pressure can yield positive 

results by increasing social awareness regarding sustainable  

development. These include support for new tools created by the Thaipat  

Institute, namely the CSR Progress Indicator and the Anti-corruption 

Progress Indicator which score how well listed companies fare in 

these areas. Other measures include improving to the CG Thailand 

website (www.cgthailand.org) into a central source of information 

regarding regulations and principles of sustainable development. 

Establishment of proxy voting guidelines for institutional investors 

is another example of how the capital market can apply pressure 

for positive change in listed companies. Today, the Association of 

Investment Management Companies have already applied voting 

guidelines in actual use.



48

The SEC jointly with alliances launched “The Pride in Thai Innovative and Creative 

Businesses” Project, to promote raising fund through capital market for innovative 

and creative businesses. 

•	 Self discipline: The SEC encouraged entities under our 

supervision to stand up against corruption by aligning their  

organizations with the business sector’s Collective Action Coalition 

Against Corruption (CAC) to give it critical mass. Four-hundred and 

six companies in Thailand have pledged alignment, including 212 

listed companies, 26 securities companies, 22 asset management  

companies. Seventy-eight companies are now fully-certified  

members, 28 of which are listed companies, seven securities  

companies and six asset management companies.

2.2 Inclusion of Civil Sanction provisions into the Securities  

Exchange Act (Civil Sanction). This brings regulations towards  

international norms where charges against wrongdoing are more 

streamlined, and additional provisions on presumptive facts  

reduces the burden of proof for certain offenses to expedite the law 

enforcement process. Amendments recently received ministerial 

approval and currently being reviewed by the Judicial Council before 

submission to the National Legislative Assembly. Such improvements 

help quicken the regulatory enforcement process.

2.3 Amendment of regulations for more effective supervision of 

personnel in the securities business. Regulatory amendments  

enhanced powers to enable swift and effective response against 

wrongdoers. In a related move to improve supervision, registration 

will be required of industry executives overseeing important  

customer services, staff in high-risk roles, and individuals who have 

committed offences. 

2.4 Tightening of requirements now stipulate that at least one 

out of four board of directors of intermediaries must be an  

independent director. Inclusion of independent directors will enable 

intermediaries to have independent view in executive level and can 

lead to a more effective internal operations of the companies, ensure 

of running businesses of integrity and fairness and uphold the  

interests of customers.

2.5 Addition of requirements on directors and executives of  

intermediaries. Directors and executives of intermediaries will be 

required to receive training on corporate governance to spotlight 

the importance of establishing good corporate governance, sound 

management practices and ethical business practices demanded 

in such professions. 

2.6 Amendment of regulations to ensure the strength of  

intermediaries. Additional measures help reduce risks and raises 

the confidence of investors that utilizes the services of these  

intermediaries.

•	 Tightening of capital adequacy requirements for investment 

advisory firms, brokers, dealers, and underwriter of investment units 

to ensure resiliency against risks and business sustainability.

•	 Amendments to regulations imposed on distressed  

securities companies, such as prescribing time frames for  

restructuring or requiring that business activities be scaled down 

to mitigate potentially risky impact on customers, counterparties or 

the capital market’s clearing and settlement system.

2.7 Inspection of the operations of intermediaries. In 2014, the 

SEC inspected 19 securities companies and nine asset management 

companies. We also reviewed the integrity of the auditing process 

at 113 audit firms and inspected the annual registration statement 

(form 56-1) filed by 223 listed companies.

The SEC presented awards to 16 companies participating in the “Pride of the 

Provinces” Project in recognition of their success in obtaining IPO.
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2.8 Inspection and handling of wrongdoing covered 15 cases 

where executives of securities firms committed offences or fraud, 

13 cases of unlicensed activities involving securities or futures  

trading, and 60 cases of unfair trades (price manipulation,  

dissemination of false news, and insider trading).

The SEC held an orientation for the “Pride of the Province Project III” and “The 

Pride in Thai Innovative and Creative Businesses” Project

Requiring intermediaries to have greater responsibilities 

Intermediaries are required to take on greater responsibilities, especially with regards to the  
thoroughness of information presented to investors.  

3.1 Ensured securities companies have adequate risk  

management of daily activities of proprietary trading. Securities 

companies need to be well in control of the fast nature of proprietary 

trading that the firms conduct each day. This mitigates potential 

adverse impact on the overall capital market and investor base.

3.2 Establishment of new requirements that business operators 

involved in unit trust sales must provide performance data of a 

comparative nature. The point of sale must readily provide data of 

highs, lows, and average performances of similar types of funds as 

well as risks (standard deviation) to give investors sufficient  

information to make a proper decision about the fund they are  

interested in. 

3.3 Tightening of procedures for the handling of certain products 

and services. Securities companies offering high risk or complex 

products to investors, such as Basel III instruments, are required to 

follow tighter procedures such as confirm that customers fully  

understand the product or service. Business operators must present 

sufficient documents explaining the characteristics of the product 

or service and investors will need to take an assessment test to 

confirm understanding of the investment. Investors will also be 

warned of the risks and complexity.

The SEC hosted the 3rd meeting of “Mekong Capital Markets Cooperation (MCMC),” 

having five capital market regulators in Mekong region participated in the event. 

Building opportunities and raising competitiveness of the Thai securities industry and 
capital market to international levels

In building opportunities and raising the competitiveness of the Thai securities industry and capital 
market to international levels, we needed to inject flexibility into the system to lower barriers to 
development and evolution. Regulating authorities should also be able to respond swiftly where 
needed and its supervisory capabilities well regarded globally.

3

4
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4.1 Establishment of general regulations to facilitate the issue 

of securities for instruments that are not yet covered by any  

specific regulation, but devoid of excessive risk or complexity to 

require one. The general regulations expedite the issuing of new 

securities thereby facilitate market expansion, promote fund  

mobilization and investment without unnecessarily being burdened 

by over-regulation.

4.2 Regulations issued for the launch of Infrastructure Trusts.  

These trusts will be geared for launch in 2015 as a channel to draw 

funds into infrastructure development in Thailand and the region. 

It simultaneously promotes Thailand as a hub to mobilize funds for 

infrastructure development in the region.

4.3 Expansion of the range of foreign currency denominated  

investment products that securities companies can offer to  

clients. Institutional and accredited investors are permitted to invest 

in financial instruments denominated in a foreign currency with the 

same r isk level  and complexi ty offered for sale in the  

domestic market such as unrated bonds, accredited investor funds, 

foreign sukuk bonds, and foreign currency bonds. The regulations 

were also amended to allow securities companies to offer products 

denominated in foreign currencies to clients, according to the type 

of operating licenses held.  For instance, securities companies 

holding brokerage, dealing and underwriting license would be 

permitted to act as brokers of Collective Investment Schemes (CIS). 

All these measures further open Thai investors to foreign  

investments while increasing the competit iveness of our  

intermediaries. It is also a move towards the eventual plan by the 

Bank of Thailand to liberalize the flow of outbound capital around 

2016, when Thais will be allowed to invest abroad directly without 

going through a Thai intermediary.

4.4 Regulations issued for the launch of Basel III instruments. 

This supports the fund mobilization of commercial banks to match 

the intentions of the Bank of Thailand that require Thai registered 

banks to adopt Basel III requirements, which had qualified certain  

instruments as additional Tier 1 and Tier 2 to have characteristics 

more like equity. These instruments must be able to absorb losses 

while the bank is in operation (a going concern) or when the bank 

is insolvent (gone concern) through features allowing conversion 

to equity, write-downs, or write-offs, as stipulated in the terms and 

conditions. Due to the risk and complexity of Basel III instruments 

compared to other financial instruments, the SEC will initially restrict 

investments in these instruments to just institutional and  

accredited investors and require that intermediaries offering these 

products adhere to a strict sale conduct process. 

4.5 Overall infrastructure of the Thai capital market reviewed to 

ensure competitiveness and integration with the global capital 

market, for example, we analyzed discrepancies between the  

existing framework of the Thailand Clearing House and Thailand 

Securities Depository against IOSCO’s Principles for Financial 

Market Infrastructures (“PFMI”) standards.

The SEC booth in “SET in the City 2014” under the theme “Be Smart, Ask 

First,” aiming to encourage the general public to ask the questions and gain 

more understanding about capital market products and services before making  

investment decision.

General Prayut Chan-O-Cha Recheck Prime Minister, presided over an event and 

gave an opening speech in "Hand in Hand-Reform the Fight for Sustainable Victory,"  

having over 40 public and private organisations including the SEC joining forced 

to fight against the corruption. 
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4.6 The SEC was elected as a representative of Asia-Pacific 

capital market regulators on the Board of International  

Organization of Securities Commissions (IOSCO Board) through 

a vote at the annual IOSCO conference on September 28, 2014 in 

Brazil. The SEC will undertake this role between 2014-2016,  

enabling participation in IOSCO affairs and contribution in the 

formulation of global standards for the supervision of capital  

markets alongside other prominent member countries. In addition, 

the SEC is on the steering committee of IOSCO’s Growth and 

Emerging Market Committee encompassing 75% of IOSCO’s 

members.

Mr. Ming Bankosal, Director General of the Securities and Exchange Commission  

of Cambodia (SECC) and Mr. Vorapol Socatiyanurak, Secretary-General of the  

Securities and Exchange Commission of Thailand (SEC) signed an MoU to 

strengthen capital market cooperation. 

Mr. Ryutaro Hatanaka, Commissioner of Financial Services Agency (FSA), financial 

and capital market regulator of Japan exchanged Letters for Cooperation with 

Mr. Vorapol Socatiyanurak, SEC Secretary-General to strengthen collaboration 

on regulatory frameworks and seek cross-border business opportunity between 

the two capital markets. 

5.1 Issuance of baht bond by CLMV countries. This was possible 

with the help of the Public Debt Management Office ("PDMO") in 

relaxing restrictions on the issuance of baht bonds by foreign issuers. 

It permitted the issuing of bonds rated investment grade or higher 

for issuers from CLMV countries, namely Cambodia, Laos, Myanmar, 

and Vietnam. The effort enabled the Laos power producer  

EDL-Generation Public Company to successfully raise 6.5 billion baht 

worth of baht bonds, receiving overwhelming investor response and 

twice oversubscribed.

5.2 Allowing of mutual funds, private funds, and provident funds 

to invest in the financial instruments issued by GMS countries.  

This supports the growth of large projects in the high growth GMS 

countries of Laos, Myanmar, and Cambodia by providing financing 

sources. Investors, on the other hand, would profit from the growth 

of these GMS economies. 

5.3 Launch of regulations for the offerings of ASEAN Collective 

Investment Schemes ("ASEAN CIS") to retail investors in  

Thailand.  Such ASEAN CIS must have already been approved by 

relevant home regulator. At present, nations participating in this 

cross-border ASEAN CIS scheme include Thailand, Malaysia and 

Singapore. It is yet another interesting investment vehicle to help 

increase Thai investors’ investment options. Thai asset  

management companies will also have the opportunities to offer 

Thai-domiciled mutual funds to ASEAN investors under ASEAN 

CIS scheme, which will ultimately enhance linkages among 

ASEAN capital markets. 

Creating opportunities from the growth of emerging Asia

The Thai capital market can serve as a center for investment into the emerging Asia region by having 
compatible regulatory systems and collaborating in the areas of supervision and law enforcement.5
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5.4 Building foundations for a solid long term relationship with 

our ASEAN neighbors. We have been increasingly engaging with 

our counterparts in neighboring countries by providing capacity 

building through knowledge sharing. The SEC sent representatives 

to share experiences with the Securit ies and Exchange  

Commission of Cambodia (SECC) in Phnom Penh, the Lao  

Securities Commission Office (LSCO) in Vientiane, as well as 

other relevant authorities on topics such as offerings of equity and 

debt securities, inspection of capital market intermediaries, and 

accounting standards. 

5.5 Signing of Letters of Cooperation with the Financial  

Services Agency ("FSA") of Japan. The collaboration will assist 

Thailand in further modernize its regulatory standards as well as 

explore opportunities to promote cross-border capital market 

activities between Thailand and Japan.

5.6 SEC hosted the 3rd meeting of capital market regulators  

in the Mekong sub-region (the Mekong Capital Market  

Cooperation - "MCMC"), namely Cambodia, Laos, Myanmar,  

Vietnam and Thailand. High on the agenda were discussions on 

laying the foundations for capital markets to enable sustainable 

growth in the region, including raising regulatory standards to 

international norms, developing mutual fund industry, promoting 

financial literacy, and lifting corporate governance standards 

through establishment of Institute of Directors. The aim is to  

facilitate cross-border investment and mobilization of funds to 

generate economic growth and prosperity across the region.

5.7 Establishment of new regulations to draw more foreign  

financial products into Thailand. Securities of foreign companies 

can be offered in Thailand as a primary listing on the Stock  

Exchange of Thailand (“SET”) or foreign securities listed abroad 

may issue shares in Thailand to seek a secondary listing here. The 

SEC also approved depositary receipts, all of which helped widen 

product choices available in the Thai capital market and investors 

can more easily invest in foreign firms.

The SEC jointly with alliances and partners organized an event on “Preparing for Happy Retirement.” 
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Training and Development
In 2014, training and development focused on three areas: 

1. Leadership and management skills: In addition to training 

held for executives, the SEC provided leadership training to officer 

level staff as well to harness the skills of empowered leadership. We 

believe everyone is capable of producing positive change for both 

themselves and their organization.

2. Development of perspectives and job skills: Training  

sharpened skills in assessing and anticipating global economic 

and capital market trends, providing good preparation for our 

entry to the AEC in 2015 as well. We also took an in-depth look 

at the economic, political, and social structures of the world's  

superpowers to better understand the potential impact they could 

have on Thailand's capital market. Making leadership conferences 

more effective, and English and Chinese language skills training 

were also part of job skills development in 2014.

3. Collective learning and knowledge building in the workplace: 

We are trying to structure a workplace that is conducive towards 

knowledge building that extends beyond classroom training.  

Examples include a site visit to examine the successes of the Khao 

Kwan Foundation, a pioneer in knowledge building. Other activities 

focused on building a knowledge sharing culture in the organization, 

the exchange of know-how, and recognition of work done well.

The SEC also provided staff development in many important 

areas by engaging in a variety of other activities.

1) SEC: Capital Market Leader Program: Executives of the 

SEC and other leaders involved in capital market development  

enrolled in the SEC: Capital Market Leader Program administered  

in conjunction with the assistance of the Sasin Graduate Institute of 

Business Administration of Chulalongkorn University. Prominent 

speakers from the Kellogg School of Management, The Wharton  

School, and INSEAD Business School, provided valuable  

perspectives on the demands placed on the leaders of today's 

Staff

Corporate Social Responsibilities

The SEC is committed to creating a globally competitive capital market with international standards of supervision and development. 

Attaining such goal requires high caliber individuals as human resources are an entity's most valuable asset. Under this principle, it is 

important that staff receive opportunities for personal development, including a good career path. Remuneration must be commensurate 

and fair with pay-scales that are competitive with the job market. Welfare should provide a safety net for both the staff and their family 

members. The workplace should also foster a collaborative working environment. 

 

The SEC and Asian Development Bank cohosted the APEC FRTI Regional Seminar. The SEC organized “SEC: Capital Market Leader Program” (CMLP), a training 
course for top executives.
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organizations in this rapidly advancing world. The program also 

fostered opportunities for closer cooperation between the SEC 

and other capital market organizations. 

2) Awarding of master’s degree scholarships to high-caliber  

 employees: The SEC awarded scholarships to four  

 employees in 2014 to pursue further studies abroad in the  

 fields of law and finance. Last year, another two employees  

 took leave to pursue further studies abroad as well.

3) Supported staff in secondment roles abroad

3.1) The SEC sent staff to the Visiting Fellow Program (VFP) 

that is organized by Asian Finance Partnership (AFPAC), a 

division of the Japan Financial Service Authority (JFSA) to 

study the financial and capital markets of Japan, including  

its oversight capabilities. The secondment included  

participating in the actual process of the launching of 

financial instruments and introduction of new products 

and services. 

3.2) Extend support to our scholarship recipients possessing  

a Master’s Degree in Law from a US institution with 

the opportunity to receive hands-on experience in a  

regulatory enforcement role at the US Securities and 

Exchange Commission. This provides our staff with 

international-level exposure.

4. The SEC and the Asian Development Bank co-hosted the 

APEC FRTI (The Asia-Pacific Economic Cooperation Financial  

Regulators Training Initiative) Regional Seminar on Derivatives 

Markets and Products, HFT (high-frequency trading) and the Use 

of New Trading Technologies. The conference had 54 participants, 

which included staff of the SEC as well as capital market regulators 

from 15 nations.

5. The SEC encouraged employees to explore job rotation  

opportunities as a way of developing new skills. In 2014, sixteen 

employees took on job rotation. A variety of training sessions were also 

provided throughout the year, ranging from basic training aimed at all 

staff levels or job-specific courses to sharpen functional competencies. 

Eighty-eight courses were held in 2014 with a total staff development  

expenditure of 39,152,530 baht, equivalent to 6% of the organization’s  

total wages expenditure. Of this amount, 15,519,900 baht was allocated for  

mid-level staff, 6,480,000 baht went to scholarships, and 17,152,670 

baht was allocated to various divisions for training on technical  

competencies.

Employees’ field trip on “Knowledge Management” at Khao Kwan Foundation, 
Suphan Buri.

The SEC held “SEC Culture” an orientation for new employees.
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Career Advancement
The SEC administers a Performance Management System 

to gauge its performance as an organization and the quality of its 

staff. Staff compensation is closed tied to their contributions through 

Performance Based Pay. The SEC provides career advancement 

for strong performers through opportunities to promote to higher 

position as their competency levels rise. Whether advancement 

takes place through administrative roles or through expertise roles, 

employees will develop a wider job perspective and gain greater 

exposure through schemes such as job rotation and secondments, 

either domestically or abroad. Job-swaps can be arranged with 

other organization as well.

Welfare and Safety
The SEC provides a full range of employee benefits through 

an employee welfare package that is fair and provides a safety net 

for employees. Staff receives medical coverage that also extends 

to family members. Annual health check-ups and vaccinations 

against infectious diseases are offered as well. Staff’s children are 

entitled to education cost support up to university level (bachelor’s 

degree). The welfare package also features meal subsidies, accident  

insurance for staff on work trips, and other provisions such as  

infirmary facilities and workplace safety (i.e. fire drills). 

Evening aerobics class for SEC staff’s good health.Annual trip for employees “Cultural Heritage of Prip Pri Land,” Petchaburi Province.

Work Life Balance
The SEC upholds a healthy work life balance for its workforce 

as this leads to contented employees. It also caters to the character 

of a modern workplace that draws strength from relationships and 

teamwork.

 1.Work hours and leave entitlements are flexible.

 2.Fitness and recreational activities are available with one floor 

of the office building dedicated for this purpose. At present, the staff 

of the SEC has formed 15 fitness and recreational clubs ranging 

from yoga, badminton, football, music, water painting, etc. Massage 

therapy services are also available twice a week to alleviate  

stressful symptoms of office syndrome.

 3.The annual staff outing is another activity that builds  

character. The trip held in Petchaburi Province in 2014, entitled 

“Cultural Heritage of Prip Pri Land,” highlighted the heritage of the 

region to instill pride in Thailand’s past. It was also a good setting 

for team-building among SEC’s staff.

 4.Activities are regularly held to strengthen staff relationship 

and reduce work-related stress. Family days, merit-making events 

on auspicious days, SEC anniversary events, and celebrations of 

important festivals are typical examples
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Human Resources Statistics 2014 2013 2012

1. Number of employees 518 504 451

• Male 151 145 125

• Female 367 359 326

2. Employment classified by sex (%)  

• Male 30 30 30

• Female 70 70 70

3. Employment classified by type of contract (%)  

• Full-time employee 91 92 93

•  Permanent worker 5 3 3

• Temporary worker  2 2 2

• Outsource 2 2 2

4. Employment classified by level (no. of staffs)  

• Support officer 60 60 57

• Officer 302 318 281

• Assistant director 127 98 85

• Director 20 20 20

• Top management 9 8 8

5. Employment ratio classified by level (%)  

• Support officer 12 12 13

• Officer 58 63 62

• Assistant director 25 20 19

• Director 4 4 4

• Top management 2 2 2

6. Number of new employees (no. of staffs) 48 79 53

• Male 14 32 18

• Female 34 47 35

7. New employees classified by age (no. of staffs)  

• Below 30 years old 28 61 34

• Between 30-50 years old 19 18 19

• Over 50 years old 1 - -

8. New employees: total employees ratio (%) 9 16 12

9. Number of employees whose term end (no. of staffs) 

 (resignation and retirement)

34 26 26

• Male 8 11 11

• Female 26 15 15
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Human Resources Statistics 2014 2013 2012

10.  Number of employees whose term end classified by age 34 26 26

• Below 30 years old 22 12 12

• Between 30-50 years old 11 11 11

• Over 50 years old 1 3 3

11. Resignation/retired employees: total employee ratio (%) 7 5 6

12. Average training hours of total employee (no. of days: year)  

• Male 12 6 n/a

• Female 12 6 n/a

13.  Average training hours classified by employee’s level (no. of days : year)  

• Support officer 4 5 2

• Officer 6 5 3

• Assistant director 6 8 9

• Director 22 17 8

• Top management 23 2 5

14. Male-female employee wages ratio classified by employment level   

• Support officer  5.55 : 1 6.12 : 1 6.02 : 1

• Officer  2.50 : 1 2.40 : 1 2.67 : 1

• Assistant director  2.34 : 1 2.45 : 1 2.42 : 1

• Director  2.30 : 1 2.38 : 1 2.22 : 1

• Top management  0.94 : 1 1.19 : 1 1.46 : 1

The SEC, staff, and executives regularly donate to society. 

Key events in 2014 included the donation of money and basic 

necessities to the Phramongkutklao Hospital Foundation to aid 

injured and disabled soldiers assigned to the three southernmost 

provinces. We also contributed funds towards the construction of 

the H.M. Queen Sirikit Building, serving as the Phramongkutklao 

Hospital’s emergency and trauma center. We donated cash to the 

Veterans General Hospital to help expenses on prosthetic limbs 

for handicapped or deprived patients. In the education sector, the 

SEC added books to the library of the Ban Khlong Song School in 

Chumphon province, for the benefit of faculty and students.

In its contribution to the environment, the SEC adopted a variety 

of measures in 2014 to minimizing the consumption of resources. 

In the organization’s electricity conservation plan, we reduced the 

usage of electrical equipment without significant impact on users. 

This was accomplished by carefully scheduling the operating hours 

of air conditioning equipment or lighting. Replacement of electrical 

equipment such as light bulbs with modern efficient LED bulbs was 

another measure. Efforts to reduce consumption of other resources 

such as water or paper were implemented as well. This boosts the 

awareness to consume energy wisely and helps contribute towards 

sustainable development. The work to assess the SEC’s carbon 

footprint in 2014 is currently nearly completed and the next step 

is registration with the Thailand Greenhouse Gas Management 

Organization (Public Organization) (“TGO”).

Social and Environment



61ANNUAL REPORT 2014
THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Expenses relating to employees, communities, society and environment

Items Total (baht)

Salary, over-time, wage, provident fund, medical expense, other compensation and long-term benefits 670,265,137.76

Scholarship and employee development 24,736,575.23

Donation and support for community, social and environment responsibility activities of outside entities 3,248,130.84 
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Note: Gasoline expenses in 2014 increased from 2013 as the year 2014 as

the SEC's operations required more travelings. 

Note: Expense of electricity in 2014 increased from 2013 as the SEC 

has used the entire area in the building in 2014.

Note: Water expense in 2014 increased from 2013 as the SEC has used the 

entire area in the building in 2014.
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Addit ional circumstances 

(A) Capital �ow �uctuation

- Uneven economic recovery

- Geopolitical risk

 Build trust and confidence to 

 attract patient capital

(B) Extraterritorial rules

- Regulatory uncertainty

- Substituted compliance resulting 

 in comparable regulatory regime

 Raise standards of rules and 

 regulations

(C) Market-based �nancing 

- Playing a key role to reduce 

 inequality and enhance growth 

 Promote various accesses to 

 source of funds and build 

 confidence of all related parties as 

 well as enhance efficiency of 

 enforcement

(D) Search for high yield 

- Mis-selling risk with alternative 

 asset investment 

 Establish tools to facilitate new 

 development with limited risks

(E) Interconnectedness with more 

 intensi�ed competition

- Capital market niche, exchange 

 linkage, and collaboration to 

 support fund passport scheme

- Opportunities and threats from 

 growing frontier markets

 Positioning Thai Capital as GMS

 connector

(F) Technological innovation

- Cybercrime

- Facilitate market access to 

 investors

 Utilize data intensive to follow 

 up risks and trends coherently 

(G) Global enforcement trend to support emerging trends and new risks

Global megatrends

Financial instabi l i ty

Ris ing of emerging Asia

Interconnectedness

Environment and 
natural resources 
problem

Aging society

Inclusive growth

SEC Strategic Plan for 2015
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1.1 Keep SEC’s regulatory standards on 

par with internationally accepted standards by  

measuring its regulatory effectiveness against the  

International Organization of Securities Commissions' 

2013 Assessment Methodology. The operations 

of the Thailand Clearing House and the Thailand  

Securities Depository will also align with the Principle 

of Financial Market Infrastructure (“PFMI”).

1.2 Strengthen the stability of the system 

against volatilities, such as by ensuring asset  

management companies have a strong capital base, 

business operators have adequate IT security against 

cybercrime, and the system can withstand systemic 

risks. Stress tests will also be conducted.

1
Attaining high regulatory standards on par with internationally accepted  
standards 
Expected outcomes:  Contemporar y  regu la tor y  s tandards  accepted 
wor ldwide , producing qual ity l isted companies with sustainable growth 
and a f inanc ia l  system that i s  res i l ient to volat i l i t ies  and ef fect ive ly  
addresses problems.

1.3 Move forwards along the sustainability  

development roadmap to lay a solid foundation for 

listed companies and financial intermediaries. For 

good corporate governance, the SEC will create a 

handbook for directors to spotlight the essential roles 

and responsibilities. For corporate social responsibility,  

the Environment, Social, and Corporate Governance  

(ESG) Disclosure Index will be developed. To  

improve transparency, quantify the progress of tackling  

corruption, the Anti-Corruption Progress Indicator of 

listed companies will be disclosed.

To stay resilient in an environment that continuously affects development and policy implications, 

the SEC hinges its strategic plan for 2015 on pursuing an open and competitive capital market which will  

embraces the various needs of investors and businesses. Essential to this aim is the need to further 

strengthen the confidence of stakeholders by enhancing efficiency of preventive measures and enforcement  

mechanisms, lifting business operators to have greater responsibility, creating responsible and  

knowledgeable investors, as well as building capacity of the SEC.  Oversight and development of the capital 

market will take on three key areas:

(1) Integrity and Resiliency: The caliber of the capital market and levels of investor protection must be 

on par with internationally accepted standards.

(2) Competitiveness: Develop conditions for capital market that enables business operators to add 

value, attracts global sources of funding, and serves as a source of competitively priced capital.

(3) Inclusiveness: All businesses should have the ability to tap some form of market-based financing, 

enabling the capital market to function as alternative to fund mobilization and investment channel.  At the 

same time, this can offer the public a wider range of investment choices. 

The SEC's strategic plan for 2015 consists of six key elements:

Strategy
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3
Increasing market width and depth to promote the Thai capital market 
as a regional financial connector
Expected outcomes : The Tha i  cap i ta l  mar ket  and i t s  s takeho lder s 
can add value , attract g lobal investment, and ser ve as a gateway for  
investments in the Greater Mekong Subregion (“GMS”). As a center for 
capital mobil iz ing in this region, Thai land can showcase qual ity financial 
products from the GMS and attract global attention.

3.1 Widen the product range in the domestic capital 

market through means such as relaxing investment 

restrictions for funds tailored for accredited investors 

or permitting more investments in non-investment 

grade or unrated bonds.  In other cases, assessment  

tests may also be prescribed before investors 

purchase complex financial instruments to confirm 

familiarity with such investments.

3.2 Create new paths to draw more foreign products 

into the capital market, particularly financial products 

from the GMS, by establishing the framework to  

create Unsponsored Depositary Receipts and  

encourage the launch of Thai mutual funds investing  

in the GMS.  Investor protection will be stepped up 

accordingly such as by deploying intermediaries 

and industry professionals to assist with information 

disclosure, prescribing assessment tests to confirm  

investors’ understanding, as well as providing  

comparisons of the Thai laws and targeted countries.

3.3 Establish channels to market Thai and GMS 

financial products to key markets and make relevant 

regulations available in English.

3.4 Assist capacity building in Laos, Cambodia and 

Myanmar by rolling out the SEC Thailand Academy 

program for mid-to-upper level executives.

Strategy

2.1 Monitor, provide preventive measures and  

supervise securities companies, asset management 

companies, the Thailand Clearing House, listed 

companies, and securities trading and deliver a 

prompt response where needed. Keep regulations 

and measures up to date. 

2.2 Improve work processes to tackle wrongdoing 

2
Enhancing ef f ic iency of preventive measures and enforcement  
mechanisms in response to technology advancement 
Expected outcomes: A capital market that is effective , transparent, and 
fa ir where stakeholder s operate responsibly, provide qual i ty ser vices 
and readi ly comply with regulat ions.  Enforcement is ef fect ive where  
wrongdoing is addressed swift ly and punishment is propor tionate .

more rapidly such as by improving complaint handling 

procedures, internal operations, and the information 

database.

2.3 Ensure cases are prosecuted effectively and 

proper penalties are applied. Prepare readiness for 

cross-border handling of civil violations and regulatory 

enforcement. 

Strategy
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4

5

6
Enhancing SEC efficiency to attain sustainable growth and drive the 
success of policy implementation  
Expected outcomes: An effective resource management that gives highest  
bene f i t  for  s takeho lder s  under  appropr i a te  cos t , exh ib i t ing  g loba l  
awareness and ful ly-capable to dr ive pol icy implementation forwards

4.1 New venues to enable companies at various  

stages in its development to be able to source  

appropriate types of funding. For instance, new 

regulations may permit fund mobilization through 

the internet (equity crowdfunding) whereby adequate 

protection is provided to investors and portals are 

supervised. 

Promoting market based financing for all businesses
Expected outcomes:  Promis ing Thai  companies at  var ious stages of  
development or those belonging in the countr ies' strategic sector s should 
be able to tap the capital market competit ively through market-based 
financing means.

Creating quality investors and promoting financial literacy and capital 
market knowledge among the public to lessen social inequality 
Expected outcomes: A society that can easi ly access the capital market, 
embraces an investment culture , and under stands the benefits of the 
capital market towards helping them attain their per sonal financial goals

4.2 Through the SEC's programs, potential 

companies can develop competency and increase 

their readiness to tap the capital market by improving  

internal operations and explore the capital market 

through fund mobilization tools such as IPOs and 

Private Equity Trusts. 

5.1 Ensure investors can arm themselves 

with sufficient knowledge regarding their roles and  

responsibilities.  More legible product information 

such as factsheets for all fixed income instruments 

are other such examples. 

6.1 Equip staff with proficient awareness of 

global trends.

6.2 Increase efficiency of capital market  

professional’s approval process and improve public 

hearing process.

6.3  Possess database management capabil-

5.2 Improve financial literacy through various 

media channels to help the public attain goals in life 

with respect to retirement and other financial needs.  

The “Financial Literacy in Workplace” is one such 

project that aims to sharpen the financial planning 

skills among the working class.

ity that addresses current and future needs, and 

provides reliable information for day-to-day work and  

policy-making. 

6.4 Communicate effectively with stakeholders 

with regards to notifications and regulations through 

easily-understood means and materials.

Strategy

Strategy

Strategy
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Equity offerings  

 unit: million

Types of offering 2012 2013 2014

Initial public offering   15,670 39,870 57,636

Secondary public offering 1/ (SPO) 257,936 166,010 166,880

Total 273,606 205,880 224,516

1/ Source: The Stock Exchange of Thailand 

Real Estate Investment Trusts (REITs) offerings in 2014

 unit: million

Types of offering

Initial public offering  27,226

Total 27,226

Debt securities offerings 

 unit: million

Types of offering 2012 2013 2014p

Domestic offering 3,777,125 5,441,826 3,496,768

 By Thai juristic person 2,131,008 2,502,923 2,642,205

  Short-term debt securities 1,606,067 2,062,083 2,063,398

   Public offering 477,211 126,786 57,187

   Institution / High net worth  investor 771,978 1,352,104 1,372,558

   Private placement 356,878  583,194 633,653 

  Long-term debt securities 524,940 440,840 578,807 

   Public offering 366,763 153,351 159,393

   Institution / High net worth investor 138,421 263,415 369,411

   Private placement  19,756 24,075 50,003 

* Last update as of the making of this report.

Statistical Highlights*
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Types of offering 2012 2013 2014p

 By foreign juristic person 1,646,118 2,938,903 854,563 

  Short-term debt securities 1,615,848 2,913,553 842,973

   Public offering - - -

   Institution / High net worth investor 1,615,848 2,913,553 842,973 

   Private placement - - -

  Long-term debt securities 30,270 25,350 11,590 

   Public offering - - -

   Institution / High net worth investor 25,800 23,350 11,590

   Private placement 4,470 2,000 -

   Overseas offering 169,506 150,420 147,422

Total 3,946,631 5,592,246 3,644,190 

p = preliminary data 

Government debt securities offerings classified by types of securities

 unit: million

Types of securities 2012 2013 2014

Domestic offering 8,934,394 6,981,731 6,311,984

 Government bond 687,095 517,866 534,995

 Treasury bill 142,135 389,907 833,657

 Promissory note 114,350 - 133,810

 State enterprise bond 1/ 191,544 223,606 132,070

 BOT bond and FIDF bond 7,799,269 5,850,352 4,677,452

Overseas offering - - -

Total 8,934,394 6,981,731 6,311,984

Source:  Bank of Thailand

Note:   1/Excluding debentures issued by state enterprises that are limited companies.

 unit: million
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Asset management business

Types of fund

2012 2013 2014

No. of funds NAV 

(million baht)

No. of funds NAV 

(million baht)

No. of funds NAV 

(million baht)

Mutual fund 1,272 2,324,466 1,315 2,571,762 1,428 3,259,868

Property fund 105 333,671 107 371,113 105 385,465

Infrastructure fund - - 3 129,779 3 142,945

Private fund 2,083 326,492 2,668 437,519 3,100 488,107

Provident fund 441 696,144 426 748,123 418 837,075

Number of mutual funds and net asset values 1/

Investment policies

2012 2013 2014

No. of funds NAV

(million baht)

No. of funds NAV

(million baht)

No. of funds NAV

(million baht)

1. Local investment fund 489 1,050,474 507 900,264 491 987,108

 A. Local fund 485 1,037,872 505 899,516 489 986,480

  (1) Equity fund 190 314,427 211 376,047 208 476,312

  (2) Fixed income fund 214 472,276 199 436,943 171 412,266

  (3) Mixed fund 73 239,936 87 75,080 102 85,783

  (4) Other fund 8 11,233 8 11,446 8 12,119

 B. Country fund 4 12,602 2 748 2 628

  (1) Equity fund 4 12,602 2 748 2 628

2. Foreign investment fund 783 1,273,992 808 1,671,497 937 2,270,760

 A. Totally invested overseas  2/ 421 605,275 437 632,047 519 828,528

  (1) Equity fund 78 23,411 93 36,269 159 104,433

  (2) Fixed income fund 210 471,595 224 527,097 225 587,359

  (3) Mixed fund 43 26,756 36 18,886 55 87,076

  (4) Other fund 90 83,512 84 49,796 80 49,660

 B. Partially invested overseas 3/ 362 668,717 371 1,039,450 418 1,444,232

  (1) Equity fund 20 16,003 20 16,790 21 22,332

  (2) Fixed income fund 274 614,242 273 730,257 315 1,061,083

  (3) Mixed fund 50 31,515 61 285,696 67 353,148

  (4) Other fund 18 6,957 17 6,707 15 7,669

Total 1,272 2,324,466 1,315 2,571,762 1,428 3,259,868

Notes: 1/ Excluding mutual funds being liquidated and Thai Trust Fund.

 2/ Funds with a policy to invest overseas, as an average in an accounting year or as at a particular time, not less than 80 percent of NAV.

 3/ Funds with a policy to invest overseas, as an average in an accounting year or as at a particular time, less than 80 percent of NAV.
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Number of property funds and net asset values1/ 

Investment policies

2012 2013 2014

No. of 

funds

NAV

(million baht)

No. of 

funds

NAV

(million baht)

No. of 

funds

NAV

(million baht)

1. Property fund for individual investor 41 152,819 47 232,913 50 185,831

 A. Specific fund 38 149,651 44 225,293 48 183,699

 B. Non-specific fund 3 3,168 3 7,620 2 2,132

2. Property fund for resolving financial institution 

 problems (Type II Fund)

17 42,423 15 28,507 14 30,384

3. Mutual fund for resolving financial institution 

 problems (Type III Fund)

8 8,972 7 7,115 6 16,296

4. Property and loan fund 

 (Type IV Fund)

39 129,457 38 102,578 35 152,954

Total 105 333,671 107 371,113 105 385,465

Note:   1/ Excluding mutual funds being liquidated

Number of infrastructure funds and net asset values1/ 

Investment policies

2013 2014

No. of funds NAV 

(million baht))

No. of funds NAV 

(million baht)

Infrastructure fund 3 129,779 3 142,945

Note:   1/ Excluding mutual fund being liquidated

Issuance and offering of derivative warrants (DW)

  unit: issue 

2012 2013 2014

Total 633 723 1,373
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Provident fund status 

  2013 2014 Change (%)

NAV (million baht) 748,123 837,075 11.89

No. of funds 426 418 (1.88)

No. of employers 13,622 14,505 6.48

No. of employees 2,605,702 2,676,545 2.72

Investment of provident funds

Investment types

2013 2014 Change

Value 

(million baht) 

% NAV Value 

(million baht) 

% NAV Value 

(million baht) 

%NAV

Cash and bank deposit 195,647 26.15 235,838 28.17 40,191 20.54

Government bond, treasury bill and debt 

instrument guaranteed by the Ministry of Finance

228,850 30.59 186,049 22.23 (42,800) (18.70)

Bill of exchange and promissory note 15,138 2.02 5,050 0.60 (10,089) (66.64)

Debenture 159,029 21.26 213,613 25.52 54,584 34.32

Common share, preferred share and warrant 100,096 13.38 129,420 15.46 29,324 29.30

Investment unit 49,558 6.63 64,340 7.69 14,782 29.83

Other 5,261 0.70 7,203 0.86 1,942 36.91

Liabilities (5,457) (0.73) (4,438) (0.53) (1,018) (18.66)

Net Asset Value 748,123 100.00 837,075 100.00 88,952 11.89

Provident funds with employee’s choice policy 

2013 2014 % Change

No. of master funds 134 159 18.66

No. of participating employers 5,223 5,314 1.74
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Tender offers for business takeover

Tender offers 2013 2014

For business takeover

 Tender offer value (million baht)

 Acquired share value (million baht) 

 No. of cases

308,922

230,863

9

320,779

5,846

10

For delisting

 Tender offer value (million baht)

 Acquired share value (million baht) 

 No. of cases

466

62

2

5,238

4,392

3

Total

 Tender offer value (million baht)

 Acquired share value (million baht) 

 No. of cases

309,388

230,925

11

326,016

10,238

13

Tender offer waivers
unit: case

Types of waiver 2013 2014

Granted waiver 14 9

(1) No changes of control 

(2) Rehabilitation 

(3) Granted approval from shareholders’ meeting (white wash)

(4) Necessary and appropriate

(5) Partial tender offer

8

2

3

1

-

4

1

4

-

-

Waiver of procedure or method for making tender offer - 1
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Actions against related party transactions and acquisition and disposal of assets 

Actions

No. of companies Value (million baht)

No. of companies Value 

(million baht)

No. of companies Value 

(million baht)

Related party transaction and acquisition and disposal of 

assets proposed for approval at shareholders’ meeting 

30 408,501 59 284,392

Ordered rectification  10 22,924 12 26,359

Released investor alert  3 3,420 5 3,919

Ordered rectification, transaction postponed or cancelled - - 2 2,822

Financial statements review
 unit: company

Actions 2013 2014

No. of listed companies randomly reviewed 49 113

% reviewed / total listed companies (SET+ mai) 8% 18%

No. of IPO applications 49 57

Special audit order 1 -

Consulting with the Accounting and Corporate Governance Steering Group 1 2

Rectification order 1 4

Rectification orders categorized by issues
 unit: company

Relevant accounting standards 2013 2014

Auditor’s opinion on audit limitation imposed by the management 1 3

Under record liabilities - 1
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Applications for securities and derivatives business licenses in 2014
 unit: company

Types of license Filing application Approved In progress

1. A - All types of securities business 

2. C - Mutual fund management, private fund management, investment 

 advisory service, venture capital management, and brokerage, dealing and 

 underwriting of investment units

3. D - Brokerage, dealing and underwriting of investment units 

4. Sor-1 – All categories of derivatives business

5. Derivatives advisory service

6. Derivatives fund management

7. Trustee

3

1

2

1

1

1

2

1

1

2

1

1

1

2

2

-

-

-

-

-

-

Total 11 9 2

Approval of securities businesses in 2014 

Types of business No.

Securities brokerage 2

Securities dealer 2

Bond dealer 3

Securities borrowing and lending business 2

Private fund management 1

Brokering, dealing and underwriting of investment unit 5

Investment advisor 2

Derivatives brokerage 2

Derivatives fund management 1

Derivatives dealer (institutional investor) 2

Securities registrar 1

Trustee 3
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Securities and derivatives business operators

Types of business 2013 2014

Securities business - Brokerage

- Dealing

- Underwriting

- Investment advisory service

- Securities borrowing and lending

- Inter-dealer brokerage 

- Securities financing

- Full branch

- Cyber branch

40

37

40

48

28

2

1

540

11

40

37

40

50

32

2

1

556

10

Asset management - Mutual fund management

- Private fund management  

- Brokerage, dealing and underwriting of  investment units

- Venture capital management 

23

38

32

2

24

39

38

2

Derivatives business - Derivatives brokerage 

- Derivatives fund management

- Derivatives advisory service

- Derivatives brokerage

 (Providing services for institutional investors only)

- Derivatives dealing

 (Providing services for institutional investors only)

44

16

2

1

49

44

16

2

1

49

Other - NAV verifier of PVD

- Custodian

- Fund supervisor 

- Mutual fund credit rating agency

- Credit rating agency   

- Registrar

13

14

14

4

2

17

13

14

14

4

2

17

Number of securities companies

Types of business 2013 2014

Securities company 40 40

Asset management company 23 24

Investment advisory business 11 11

Investment unit brokerage (excluding commercial bank) - 2

Total 74 77
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Approval of independent professionals in 2014

Types
Approval Total of approved  

independent professionals 

as of end of 2014New Renewal

Financial advisor (company) 4 10 76

Financial advisor supervisor (person) 52 125 328

Auditor (person) 15 31 154

Approval of personnel in the capital market    
 unit: person

Types
2013 2014 Total of approved 

personnel in the capital 

market in 2014Approved Active Approved Active

Director or executive of securities company

Securities business 695 695 702 702 7

Derivatives business 491 491 545 545 54

Total 1,186 1,186 1,234 1,234 48

Investment Analyst Consultant

Fundamental Investment Analyst on Capital 

Market*

154 120 167 121 13

Fundamental Investment Analyst on Securities 963 540 964 537 1

Technical Investment Analyst - - 103 88 103

Total 1,117 660 1,234 746 117

Investment Consultant

Investment Planner - - 3,356 3,212 3,356

Capital Market Investment Consultant* 6,537 5,553 6,971 5,689 434

Securities Investment Consultant 29,917 28,698 36,446 32,314 6,529

Fund Investment Consultant 518 348 802 802 284

Equity Investment Consultant 75 76 108 91 33

Debt Instrument Investment Consultant 94 82 101 72 7

Total 38,258 35,417 44,102 42,926 5,844

Fund manager

Securities 377 270 416 307 39

Derivatives 151 89 157 106 6

Property 55 39  59   43 4

Total 583 398 632 456 49

Note * Fundamental Investment Analyst on Capital Market included Fundamental Investment Analyst on Derivatives. Capital Market Investment Consultant included 

Derivatives Investment Consultant.
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Inspection of market intermediaries 

Types of business
No. of

companies
Results and actions

Routine Inspection

Securities brokerage, dealing and under-

writing, and derivatives brokerage

19 Most companies maintained an acceptable level of risk management. In case a 

company failed to comply with regulations or violated the law, the SEC ordered 

/reiterated the company to rectify and pursued legal actions against violations 

of law.

Common findings were related to:

- know you customer (KYC) and customer due diligence (CDD);

- approval of customer’s credit limit; 

- supervision on improper trading order;

- supervision on investment consultant;

- deficient control of client’s asset.

Asset management company 9 Most companies maintained an acceptable level of risk management. In case a 

company failed to comply with regulations or violated the law, the SEC ordered 

the  company to rectify and pursued legal actions against violations of law  

according to the seriousness of misconduct. Common findings were:

- negligent selection of securities brokerage to submit trading orders based on 

the fund’s benefit;

- supervision on subscription and allocation of securities needed to be  

transparent, fair and based on the fund’s benefit;

- management of property fund needed to be in accordance with project  

description and specified law as well as be based on unitholders’ benefit, for 

example, supervision of revenue raising and collecting, expenses reimbursement, 

asset insurance management, asset supervision and administration to ensure 

assets availability and completeness.

Fund supervisor 10 Most companies maintained an acceptable level of risk management. Common 

findings were matters regarding an investment of asset management company 

that needed to be in line with project description and specified laws. In case of 

mutual funds, control of investment proportion and appropriateness of expense 

allocation to each fund must be improved. In case of property fund, control on 

revenue collection and expense reimbursement of the fund must be improved. 

In this case, the SEC reiterated fund supervisor to better understand their roles 

and improve their operations. The SEC pursued legal actions against violations 

of law as appropriate. 
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Types of business
No. of

companies
Results and actions

Theme inspections

Proprietary trading 14 To supervise proprietary trading of securities company to ensure that risk  

management and appropriate operation are in place and in line with related 

law, the SEC inspected such trading of securities company and did not find any 

significant issues. 

Limited broker, dealer and underwriter 

(LBDU) ( in case of providing investment 

advice on investment unit) 

16 The SEC has randomly inspected and monitored commercial banks  

undertaking LBDU business (mystery shopping). Common findings were that 

some of employees provided investment advice without licenses and some of 

investment consultants do not have knowledge and understanding about the 

funds they are selling and cannot provide sufficient advice to customers. In this 

case, the SEC has taken actions as appropriate and hastened the company to 

immediately improve its service. 

Public complaints

Types of complaint 2013 2014

1. Unfair activities (market manipulation, false news, insider information) 30 41

2. Unlicensed business 70 34

    2.1 Unlicensed securities and derivatives businesses 58 25

    2.2 Unlicensed investment advisory service 12 9

3. Investment consultants’ misconduct 18 25

4. Other complaints 331 294

Total 449 394

Investigations classified by types of offence

Types of offence Number of cases

Market manipulation/dissemination of false news 28

Insider trading 32

Corporate fraud or malpractice committed by executive of listed company/issuing company and 

falsification of document or account

15

Unlicensed securities/derivatives business 13

Other offence 4

Total 92
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Administrative sanctions and others in 2014

The SEC sanctioned 46 offenders, including 44 investment consultants/analysts, one securities company executive/authorized person, 

and one fund manager, with details as follows:

Types of approved

person

Misconducts
Sanctions

Public reprimand Suspension Revocation

Investment consultant/

Investment analyst

Breach of professional conducts

1. Dishonest acts

 1.1  Fraud/embezzlement - - 1

 1.2  Using client’s trading account to trade securities for 

   himself or another person

- - 3

 1.3  Using another person’s name and forging the signature 

   to open a trading account and trade securities for himself

- - 1

 1.4  Changing the name of deposit account owner and 

   submitting to the company to increase credit limit

- - 2

 1.5  Concealing or submitting false document to securities company - - 1

 1.6  Failing to conduct KYC/CDD process to verify and 

   record the beneficial owner’s identity

- 1 -

 1.7  Making up the record of receiving  trading order - 5 -

 1.8  Signing the buy/sell order form of investment units 

   without contacting or giving advice to a client

- 1 -

2. Unprofessional acts

 2.1  Giving biased and inappropriate advice to investor - 2 -

 2.2  Providing incomplete information - 1 -

 2.3  Accepting authorization to make securities trading decision - 14 -

 2.4  Trading securities without client’s order - 4 -

 2.5  Failing to follow client’s order - 2 -

 2.6  Guaranteeing returns on investment to client - 1 -

3. Violation of laws or regulations

 3.1  No record of investment advice and clients’ trading order 4 16 -

4. Involving in misconduct of another investment consultant - - 1

5. Helping another investment consultant on misconduct - - 1

Securities company 

executive/

authorized person

Lack of qualifications 

Neglecting to examine operations under supervision - 2 -

Fund Manager Failing to perform duty honestly and breaching professional 

ethics and standards

- - 2

Total 4 49 12

Note: As some of the offenders failed to comply with several regulations, the number of offenders, therefore, is less than the number of misconducts.
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Legal actions taken under the Securities and Exchange Act B.E. 2535 (1992)

Types of offence

Criminal complaint Settlement

No. of

persons

No. of

persons

Fine (baht)

Securities business

- Securities brokerage - 13 3,062,737.50

- Securities company executive

- Unlicensed securities business

-

6

1

-

75,000

-

Total 6 14 3,137,737.50

Asset management business

- Mutual fund - 6 549,200

- Asset management executive - 1 225,000

Total - 7 774,200

Unfair securities trading activities

- Market manipulation 23 35 89,250,761.93

- Insider trading - 13 31,049,099.90

Total 23 48 120,299,861.83

Takeover - 3 715,100

Total - 3 715,100

Securities issuance and offering

- Issuer failed to prepare and submit financial information and operating 

 performance in accordance with the SEC regulations.

35 35 5,564,685

- Executive of issuing company punished due to the company’s failure 

 to prepare and submit financial information and operating performance 

 in accordance with the SEC regulations.

35 32 4,426,230

- Executive of issuing company failed to report their acquisition 

 and disposal of securities in accordance with the SEC regulations.

- 1 203,000

Total 70 68 10,193,915

Misconduct 

- Corporate fraud committed by issuing company executive 3 - -

Total 3 - -

Grand Total 102 140 135,120,814.33
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Criminal complaints filed under the Derivatives Act B.E. 2546 (2003)

Types of offence No. of persons

Operating unlicensed derivatives business 7

Total 7

Court judgments on 27 cases in 2014

1. Three cases on embezzlement of listed company’s executives

Offences Sections Judgments

1.1 Four alleged offenders as company’s  

executives made false information or allowed 

others to make false information in the company’s 

minutes to deceive the bank that the company’s 

board of directors had a resolution to guarantee 

loan of related company, which caused damages 

to the company’s asset. (The complaint was filed 

on October 13, 2000.)

307 311 312 of the SEA and 

Section 83 of the Penal Code 

On August 7, 2014, the Appeal Court affirmed the verdict 

of the Court of First Instance that sentenced the first, 

second and third defendant to 20-year imprisonment 

each and sentenced the fourth defendant to two-years  

and six-month imprisonment. (The case is under  

consideration of the Supreme Court.)  

1.2 Alleged offenders jointly falsified documents  

and accounting records, and defrauded  

corporate’s assets (The criminal complaint was 

filed on October 4, 2005.)

307 308 311 313 and 315 of 

the SEC and Sections 264 

and 268 of the Penal Code

On October 28, 2014, the Criminal Court sentenced:

the first  defendant to 12-year and 66-month  

imprisonment and a fine of 1,507,500 baht the second 

defendant to 10-year and 54-month imprisonment and 

a fine of 1,256,000 baht the third defendant to 10-year 

and 54-month imprisonment and a fine of 1,256,000 baht

the fourth defendant to pay a fine of 1,000 baht the 

fifth defendant to four-month imprisonment and a fine 

of 1,000 baht and the sixth defendant to four-month  

imprisonment and a fine of 1,000 baht. The imprisonment  

terms of the first, second, third, fifth and sixth were 

suspended for a period of two years for each defendant.

1.3 The defendants jointly falsified or allowed 

a falsification of accounting records by posting 

revenue recognition from conducting feasibility 

study and providing source of funds for construc-

tion project in the company’s financial statements 

year 2004, which was not actually happened. 

(The criminal complaint was filed on November 

8, 2006.)

306 312 315 of the SEA and 

Sections 83 and 343 of the 

Penal Code

On December 29, 2014, the Criminal Court sentenced 

the first, second, third and fourth defendant to eight-year 

imprisonment without suspension and ordered the first 

defendant to pay the sufferer back 878,169.19 baht.
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2. One case on price manipulation 

Offences Sections Judgments

Al leged offenders had traded shares in  

concealment and continuous manner, which 

caused shares trading to be inconsistent with 

the normal market condition to mislead and lure 

the public into the trading. (The complaint was 

filed on December 28, 2010.) 

243 (1) in conjunction with 

Sections 244 and 243 (2) of 

the SEA and Section 86 of 

the Penal Code

On March 4, 2014, the Appeal Court affirmed the verdict 

of the Court of First Instance that dismissed charges 

against the second and the third defendant who are the 

aiders. (The case reached final judgment.)

3. One case on unlicensed business

Offences Sections Judgments

An alleged offender operates securities business 

without license. (The complaint was filed on July 

26, 2011.)

90 of SEA On July 8, 2014, the Appeal Court sentenced the  

defendant to two-year imprisonment. However, the 

defendant’s deposition was beneficial to the case. The 

Court, therefore, reduced penalty by one-third to one 

year and four-month imprisonment without suspension. 

(The case is under consideration of the Supreme Court.)

4. Three cases on unlicensed derivatives businesses

Offences Sections Judgments

4.1 Alleged offenders operated derivatives  

business without license. (The complaint was 

filed on June 26, 2008.)

16 of Derivatives Act of 2003 On March 25, 2014, the Criminal Court sentenced eight 

defendants to two-year and six-month imprisonment 

and a fine of 27,200 baht each. The imprisonment term 

was suspended for three years. (The case reached final 

judgment.)

4.2 Alleged offenders operated derivatives  

business without license. (The complaint was 

filed on September 20, 2013.)

On July 7, 2014, the Criminal Court sentenced the  

second defendant to six-month imprisonment and 

ordered the first and second defendant to pay a fine 

of 20,000 baht each. The imprisonment term was  

suspended for two years. (The case reached final  

judgment.)

4.3 Alleged offender operated derivatives busi-

ness without license. (The complaint was filed 

on August 7, 2010.)

One July 31, 2014, the Criminal Court of Southern  

Bangkok dismissed the defendant, who was the  

company’s executive. (The case reached final judgment.)
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5.Nineteen cases on listed companies' failure to submit financial statements and operating  
performance in accordance with the SEC notification. (All cases reached the final judgment.)

Offences Sections Judgments

5.1 A listed company failed to prepare and submit 

the financial statements for Q4/2012, the financial 

statements for 2012, annual registration statement 

for 2012 (form 56-1), annual report for 2012. An  

executive responsible for the company’s operation 

was also liable to the penalty. (The criminal complaint 

was filed on July 31, 2013.)

-  the company violated Sections 

56 and 199 in conjunction with 

Section 56 of the SEA.

-the executive violated Section 

300 of the SEA.

On March 19, 2014, the Criminal Court of 

Southern Bangkok ordered both defendants to 

pay a fine of 145,900 baht each and a further 

fine of 100 baht for everyday during which the 

contravention continued.  

5.2 A listed company failed to prepare and submit 

the financial statements for Q4/2012, the financial 

statements for the year 2012, annual registration 

statement for 2012 (form 56-1), annual report for 

2012. An executive responsible for the company’s 

operation was also liable to the penalty. (The criminal 

complaint was filed on July 31, 2013.)

On March 22, 2014, the Criminal Court of 

Southern Bangkok ordered both defendants to 

pay a fine of 173,750 baht each and a further 

fine of 1,500 baht for everyday during which the 

contravention continued.  

5.3 A listed company failed to prepare and submit 

the financial statements for Q4/2012, the financial  

statements for the year 2012, annual registration  

statement for 2012 (form 56-1) and financial  

statements for Q2/2013. An executive responsible  

for the company’s operation was also liable to 

the penalty. (The criminal complaint was filed on  

September 9, 2013.)

On March 31, 2014, the Criminal Court of 

Southern Bangkok ordered both defendants to 

pay a fine of 125,600 baht each and a further 

fine of 300 baht for everyday during which the 

contravention continued. 

5.4 A listed company failed to prepare and submit 

the financial statements for Q4/2012, the financial 

statements for the year 2012, annual registration 

statement for 2012 (form 56-1), and annual report for 

2012 (form 56-2). An executive responsible for the 

company’s operation was also liable to the penalty. 

(The criminal complaint was filed on July 31, 2013.)

On February 12, 2014, the Criminal Court of 

Southern Bangkok ordered both defendants to 

pay a fine of 168,500 baht each and a further 

fine of 100 baht for everyday during which the  

contravention continued.

5.5 A listed company failed to prepare and submit 

the financial statements for 2012, annual registration  

statement for 2012 (form 56-1). An executive  

responsible for the company’s operation was also  

liable to the penalty. (The criminal complaint was filed 

on July 31, 2013.)

On March 26, 2014, the Criminal Court of  

Southern Bangkok ordered both defendants to 

pay a fine of 55,100 baht each. 
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Offences Sections Judgments

5.6 A listed company failed to prepare and submit 

the financial statements for Q1 and Q2/2013. An 

executive responsible for the company’s operation 

was also liable to the penalty. (The criminal complaint 

was filed on September 19, 2013.)

-  the company violated Sections 

56 and 199 in conjunction with 

Section 56 of the SEA.

-the executive violated Section 

300 of the SEA.

On May 14, 2014, the Criminal Court of Southern  

Bangkok ordered both defendants to pay a 

fine of 83,600 baht each and a further fine 

of 100 baht  for everyday during which the  

contravention continued.

5.7 A listed company failed to prepare and submit 

the financial statements for 2012, annual registration  

statement for 2012 (form 56-1) and financial  

statements for H1/2013. An executive responsible  

for the company’s operation was also liable to 

the penalty. (The criminal complaint was filed on  

September 18, 2013.)

On February 27, 2014, the Criminal Court of 

Southern Bangkok ordered both defendants to 

pay a fine of 116,100 baht each and a further 

fine of 100 baht for everyday during which the  

contravention continued.

5.8 A listed company failed to prepare and submit 

the financial statements for Q1 and Q2/2013. An 

executive responsible for the company’s operation 

was also liable to the penalty. (The criminal complaint 

was filed on October 25, 2013.)

On March 24, 2014, the Criminal Court of  

Southern Bangkok ordered both defendants 

to pay a fine of 70,100 baht each and a further 

fine of 100 baht for everyday during which the 

contravention continued.

5.9 A listed company failed to prepare and submit 

the financial statements for Q1 and Q2/2013. An 

executive responsible for the company’s operation 

was also liable to the penalty. (The criminal complaint 

was filed on October 22, 2013.)

On March 19, 2014, the Criminal Court of 

Southern Bangkok ordered both defendants to 

pay a fine of 173,750 baht each and a further 

fine of 1,500 baht for everyday during which the 

contravention continued.

5.10 A listed company failed to prepare and submit 

the financial statements for Q1 and Q2/2013. An 

executive responsible for the company’s operation 

was also liable to the penalty. (The criminal complaint 

was filed on October 22, 2013.)

On May 14, 2014, the Criminal Court of Southern 

Bangkok ordered both defendants to pay a fine 

of 83,500 baht each and a further fine of 100 

baht for everyday during which the contravention  

continued.

5.11 A listed company failed to prepare and submit 

the financial statements for H1/2013. An executive 

responsible for the company’s operation was also  

liable to the penalty. (The criminal complaint was filed 

on October 3, 2013.)

On May 30, 2013, the Criminal Court of Southern  

Bangkok ordered both defendants to pay a 

fine of 83,500 baht each and a further fine 

of 100 baht  for everyday during which the  

contravention continued.

5.12 A listed company failed to prepare and submit 

the financial statements for H1/2013. An executive 

responsible for the company’s operation was also  

liable to the penalty. (The criminal complaint was filed 

on December 17, 2013.)

On March 24, 2014, the Criminal Court of Southern  

Bangkok ordered both defendants to pay a fine 

of 178,500 baht each and a further fine of 500 

baht for everyday during which the contravention  

continued.
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Offences Sections Judgments

5.13 A listed company failed to prepare and submit  

the financial statements for Q4/2012, financial  

statements for 2012, annual registration statements 

for 2012 (form 56-1), annual report for 2012 (form 

56-2), financial statements for Q1 and Q2/2013. Two 

executives responsible for the company’s operation 

were also liable to the penalty. (The criminal complaint 

was filed on November 14, 2013.)

-  the company violated Sections 

56 and 199 in conjunction with 

Section 56 of the SEA.

-the executive violated Section 

300 of the SEA.

On March 12, 2014, the Criminal Court of 

Southern Bangkok ordered the first and second 

defendant to pay a fine of 166,300 baht each and 

a further fine of 1,000 baht for everyday during 

which the contravention continued  and ordered 

the third defendant to pay a fine of 104,300 baht 

and a further fine of 1,000 baht for everyday  

during which the contravention continued.

5.14 A listed company failed to prepare and submit 

the financial statements for Q3/2013. An executive 

responsible for the company’s operation was also  

liable to the penalty. (The criminal complaint was filed 

on February 4, 2014.)

On July 29, 2014, the Criminal Court of Southern 

Bangkok ordered both defendants to pay a fine 

of 71,200 baht each and a further fine of 200 

baht for everyday during which the contravention  

continued.

5.15 A listed company failed to prepare and submit 

the financial statements for Q3/2013. An executive 

responsible for the company’s operation was also  

liable to the penalty. (The criminal complaint was filed 

on January 10, 2014.)

On June 27, 2014, the Criminal Court of  

Southern Bangkok ordered both defendants 

to pay a fine of 32,500 baht each and a further 

fine of 100 baht  for everyday during which the  

contravention continued.

5.16 A listed company failed to prepare and submit 

the financial statements for Q3/2013. An executive 

responsible for the company’s operation was also  

liable to the penalty. (The criminal complaint was filed 

on February 7, 2014.)

On October 7, 2014, the Criminal Court of  

Southern Bangkok ordered both defendants to 

pay a fine of 343,000 baht each and a further 

fine of 1,000 baht for everyday during which the 

contravention continued.

5.17 A listed company failed to prepare and submit 

the financial statements for Q3/2013. An executive 

responsible for the company’s operation was also  

liable to the penalty. (The criminal complaint was filed 

on February 7, 2014.)

On May 27, 2014, the Criminal Court of Southern  

Bangkok ordered both defendants to pay a 

fine of 29,300 baht each and a further fine 

of 100 baht for everyday during which the  

contravention continued.

5.18 A listed company failed to prepare and submit 

the annual report for 2012 (form 56-2). An executive 

responsible for the company’s operation was also  

liable to the penalty. (The criminal complaint was filed 

on March 8, 2014.)

On November 19, 2014, the Criminal Court of 

Southern Bangkok ordered both defendants to 

pay a fine of 60,750 baht each and a further 

fine of 500 baht for everyday during which the 

contravention continued.

5.19 A listed company failed to prepare and submit 

the annual registration statements for 2012 (form 

56-1). An executive responsible for the company’s 

operation was also liable to the penalty. (The criminal 

complaint was filed on March 16, 2014.)

On September 17, 2014, the Criminal Court of 

Southern Bangkok ordered both defendants to 

pay a fine of 200,000 baht each and a further 

fine of 1,000 baht for everyday during which the 

contravention continued.
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Statistical highlights of the Stock Exchange of Thailand (SET)

 2012 2013 2014

Stock Exchange of Thailand

SET Index  1/ 1,391.93 1,298.71 1,497.67

Total trading value (million baht) 7,615,638 11,777,210 10,193,179

Average daily trading value (million baht) 31,084 48,070 41,605

Turnover ratio (%) 2/ 75.26 100.97 80.41

Market capitalization 1/ (million baht) 11,831,448 11,496,765 13,856,283

No. of listed companies 1/ 477 489 502

No. of listed securities  1/ 948 1,099 1,592

P/E ratio (times) 1/ 18.25 14.60 17.81

P/BV ratio (times) 1/ 2.41 2.02 2.13

Dividend yield (%) 1/ 2.98 3.24 2.94

Source: The Stock Exchange of Thailand

Notes: 1/ At the end of period

 2/ Turnover ratio = 

Trading values of the SET 

2012 2013 2014

Net buying value 1/

Local institutional investor −24,302 108,163 71,424

Proprietary trading 7,256 −1,723 3,581

Proprietary trading -59,342 87,471 −38,421

Foreign investor 76,388 −193,911 −36,584

Buying and selling value 2/ 15,231,276 23,554,420 20,386,358

Local institutional investor 1,229,402 2,099,097 1,944,010

Proprietary trading 2,050,721 3,091,690 1,925,982

Local non-institutional investor 8,124,145 13,021,186 12,049,002

Foreign investor 3,827,007 5,342,447 4,467,364

Percentage of buying and selling value (%) 3/ 100.00 100.00 100.00

Local institutional investor 8.1 8.9 9.5

Proprietary trading 13.5 13.1 9.5

Local non-institutional investor 53.3 55.3 59.1

Foreign investor 25.1 22.7 21.9

Source: The Stock Exchange of Thailand

Notes: 1/ Net buying value  =  buying value - selling value

 2/ Buying and selling value  =  buying value + selling value

 3/ Percentage of buying and selling value  = 

trading value 

average market capitalization
X  100( )

buying value + selling value 

total market buying and selling value
X  100( )
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Statistical highlights of the Market for Alternative Investment (mai)

 2012 2013 2014

mai Index 1/ 415.68 356.80 700.05

Total trading value (million baht) 298,929 553,459 946,112

Average daily trading value (million baht) 1,220 2,259 3,862

Turnover ratio (%) 2/ 284.25 356.63 338.63

Market capitalization (million baht) 1/ 133,017 177,365 383,075

No. of listed companies 1/ 81 95 111

No. of listed securities 1/ 100 127 150

P/E ratio (times) 1/ 22.80 28.32 69.63

P/BV ratio (times) 1/ 3.24 2.69 5.64

Dividend yield (%) 1/ 1.58 1.46 0.87

Source: The Stock Exchange of Thailand

Notes: 1/ At the end of period

 2/ Turnover ratio  =

Trading values of the mai 

2012 2013 2014

Net buying value 1/

Local institutional investor -614 -561 -1,814

Proprietary trading -72 -20 20

Local non-institutional investor 177 1,372 906

Foreign investor 509 -791 888

Buying and selling value  2/ 597,857 1,106,917 1,892,224

Local institutional investor 1,405 5,106 7,169

Proprietary trading 6,320 18,416 7,359

Local non-institutional investor 580,586 1,065,160 1,834,252

Foreign investor 9,546 18,235 43,444

Percentage of buying and selling value (%) 3/ 100.00 100.00 100.00

Local institutional investor 0.2 0.5 0.4

Proprietary trading 1.1 1.7 0.4

Local non-institutional investor 97.1 96.2 96.9

Foreign investor 1.6 1.6 2.3

Source: The Stock Exchange of Thailand

Notes: 1/ Net buying value   =   buying value - selling value

 2/ Buying and selling value   =   buying value + selling value

 3/ Percentage of buying and selling value  =  

trading value 

average market capitalization

X  100( )

buying value + selling value 

total market buying and selling value
X  100( )
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Statistical highlights of the Thai bond market

 2012 2013 2014p

Government Bond Total Return Index 1/ 219.23 223.90 244.94

Average Government Bond Yield (%) 1/ 3.28 3.92 3.18

Investment Grade Corp. Bond Total Return Index 1/ 184.39 191.59 204.39

Average Investment Grade Corp. Bond Yield (%) 1/ 4.56 4.19 3.38

Total trading value (million baht) 2/ 19,774,230 20,896,779 18,867,218

 Government debt securities 19,348,310 20,362,200 18,238,424

 Corporate debt securities 2/ 403,228 498,255 592,560

 Foreign bond 22,692 36,324 36,234

Average daily trading value (million baht) 3/ 80,711 85,293 77,009

Turnover ratio (%) 3/ 252.04 237.84 206.43

 Government debt securities 307.69 294.73 260.91

 Corporate debt securities  27.44 28.16 28.97

 Foreign bond 25.82 33.76 34.86

Outstanding value of registered securities (million baht) 1/ 8,579,961 8,991,819 9,287,288

 Government debt securities 6,825,611 6,991,899 6,988,684

 Corporate debt securities  1,655,656 1,883,446 2,207,230

 Foreign bond 98,694 116,474 91,374

No. of registered securities 1/ 2,302 2,358 2,879

 Government debt securities 639 647 622

 Corporate debt securities 1,627 1,667 2,218

 Foreign bond 36 44 39

Percentage of trading value (%) 100.00 100.00 100.00

 Inter-dealer 34.55 32.22 28.80

 Dealer-to-client 65.45 67.78 71.19

  Non-dealer license financial institution 2.21 1.49 2.58

  Mutual fund 35.88 36.15 43.68

  Insurance company 3.01 2.82 3.29

  Domestic company 6.86 6.90 4.67

  Foreign company 12.49 11.99 9.46

  Retail investor 0.33 0.17 0.21

  Other 4.67 8.27 7.32

Source: The Thai Bond Market Association

Notes: 1/ At the end of period
 2/ Only outright trading value

 3/ Turnover Ratio  =   

p = preliminary data

trading value

average outstanding
X  100( )
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Statistical highlights of the Thailand Futures Exchange (TFEX)

 unit: contract 

 2012 2013 2014

SET50 Index Futures

Open interest * 36,920 37,496 177,704

Average daily trading volume 16,467 23,217 58,790

SET50 Index Options

Open interest * 1,569 1,640 3,543

Average daily trading volume 221 267 444

Single Stock Futures 

Open interest * 154,366 282,282 704,176

Average daily trading volume 8,849 34,350 80,100

Metal Futures

Open interest * 33,312 13,485 19,819

Average daily trading volume 14,927 9,014 6,293

Interest Rate Futures 

Open interest * 0 0 0

Average daily trading volume 0.1 0 0

Brent Crude Oil Futures 

Open interest * 744 253 449

Average daily trading volume 603 189 133

USD Futures 

Open interest * 12,065 5,622 12,496

Average daily trading volume 2,751 976 1,265

Sector Index Futures 

Open interest * 5 0 0

Average daily trading volume 4 0 0

Source: Thailand Futures Exchange Plc.

Note: * At the end of period.   
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Trading volumes of TFEX 

 unit: contract

 2012 2013 2014

Trading volume (long and short) 1/ 20,915,854 33,328,252 72,042,300

Local institutional investor 8,129,210 11,972,926 25,916,251

Local non-institutional investor 11,168,449 18,672,749 39,769,129

Foreign investor 1,618,195 2,682,577 6,356,920

Percentage of trading volume (%) 2/ 100.00 100.00 100.00

Local institutional investor 38.87 35.94 35.98

Local non-institutional investor 53.40 56.02 55.20

Foreign investor 7.74 8.04 8.82

Source: Thailand Futures Exchange Plc

Notes: 1/ Trading volume  =  long volume + short volume

 2/ Percentage of trading volume  =  long volume + short volume 

total trading volume
X  100( )
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Report of the SEC Board on Internal Control over 
Financial Reporting

The SEC Board oversees the operations of the Securities and Exchange Commission, Thailand (SEC) by having arranged the 

establishment and maintenance of appropriate, adequate and effective internal control over financial reporting in accordance with the 

criteria in the Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission 

(COSO).  Such internal control serves to provide reasonable assurance that financial reports are accurate and complete and are prepared 

in accordance with the Thai Financial Reporting Standards, assets are safeguarded, and any weakness is detected on a timely basis to 

prevent material irregular operations.

The SEC Board has assigned the Audit Committee, consisting of independent members, to review the quality of financial reports and 

the effectiveness of the internal control. The Audit Committee reports to the SEC Board and the Audit Committee’s Report addressing 

these matters also appears in the annual report.

The SEC Board has considered the report on review of the quality of financial reports and the effectiveness of internal control over 

financial reporting for 2014.  In the Board’s opinion, the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Thai Financial  

Reporting Standards, using appropriate accounting policies, and due care has been exercised in forming judgments and making  

reasonable estimations, and all information of significance has been adequately disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

The SEC Board is of the opinion that the overall internal control over financial reporting of the SEC is effective and provides  

reasonable assurance on the reliability of the SEC’s financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2014. 

(Mr. Achaporn Charuchinda)
Chairman

(Mr. Vorapol Socatiyanurak)
Secretary-General
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The Audit Committee performs duties pursuant to the Securities and Exchange Act B.E.2535 (1992) and the 

Audit Committee Charter, which include supervision and oversight of the SEC management in accordance with 

the Securities and Exchange Act and other laws related to the capital market. In addition, the Audit Committee  

complies with applicable laws and regulations and the SEC governance, and provides independent  

recommendations on good governance, risk management and internal control. This is to ensure the SEC operation 

is appropriate, transparent and reliable. 

Appointed by the SEC Board, the 2014 Audit Committee consisted of three independent expert members of 

the SEC Board, namely Somchai Kuvijitsuwan as chair with Vikrom Koompirochana and Sopawadee Lertmanaschai, 

who succeeded Nontaphon Nimsomboon on February 22, 2014, as members. 

In 2014, the Audit Committee convened 13 scheduled meetings, all of which formed a quorum.  The 

results of the SEC operation, as recommended by the Audit Committee were monitored, as well as fully and 

clearly recorded in the minutes of the meetings. The Audit Committee also had a private group session with  

Secretary-General and Deputy Secretaries-General to discuss internal audit activities, the SEC management and 

the Audit Committee’s engagement. 

The Audit Committee reported to the SEC Board, the quarterly performance and the annual results of the 

group performance evaluation. 

The Audit Committee’s performance 
In supporting the SEC board’s supervision and oversight of the SEC administration, the Audit Committee 

discharged key responsibilities in 2014 as follows:

1. Financial Reporting Review
The Audit Committee reviewed the quality of the SEC financial reports and assessed the effectiveness of 

the internal control over financial reporting to assure that the SEC has established and maintained appropriate, 

adequate and effective internal control over financial reporting, and that the financial statements are accurate and 

complete and have been prepared in accordance with the Thai Financial Reporting Standards.

2. Internal Control and Compliance with Applicable Laws
In consistent with the international practices stipulated by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of 

the Treadway Commission (“COSO”), the Audit Committee in 2014 reviewed the internal audit reports on the  

effectiveness, adequacy and appropriateness of internal control, risk management, compliance with  

applicable laws and standards of operations related to: (1) supervision, administration and management of the SEC’s  

website, (2) implementation of the Checking System for Drafting Status (CSDS) as a tool for drafting notifications 

and public hearing processes, (3) IT general controls and IT risk management, (4) compliance with the Notification 

of the Electronic Transaction Commission on Policy and Practice Statement of Government Information Security 

B.E.2553 (2010), and (5) follow-up audit on the consideration procedure related to contravention of the Securities 

and Exchange Act regarding unfair securities trading practices, and the administrative sanction procedure, on which 

the Audit Committee provided significant recommendations for more efficiency of enforcement case management. 

Audit Committee Report 2014
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3. Risk Management
The Audit Committee placed an importance on risk management by determining that a risk-based audit plan 

align with the SEC’s enterprise risk management and strategic plan, and reviewing the effectiveness of the risk 

management processes to assure that the SEC identified all significant risks and put appropriate processes in place. 

4. SEC Governance 
In 2014, the Audit Committee reviewed the SEC’s good governance. Specifically, the Audit Committee 

considered the SEC’s Anti-Corruption Policy and a roadmap for the SEC’s sustainable development as well as 

the Internal Audit’s reports, as follows: (1) the assessment report on the SEC’s Ethics Status, (2) the reports on 

reporting of securities and derivatives holding of the Capital Market Supervisory Board members, (3) the revision 

of the Audit Committee Charter, and (4) the results of the evaluation of the Audit Committee’s 2014 annual group 

performance which showed an overall excellence.  

5. Internal Audit Supervision
The Audit Committee supervised the internal audit performance pursuant to the annual audit plan by monitoring  

quarterly and annual performance, and gave recommendations for improving quality and adding value to the 

internal audit performance pursuant to the professional standards of the Institute of Internal Auditors and relevant 

institutions. The Audit Committee also approved (1) an IT audit road map, (2) a guideline for improving auditors’ 

competency, (3) development of audit findings’ risk level and follow-up audit process, and  (4) identification of  

standard for other internal audit performance and the quality assessment review (QAR) by an external reviewer 

in 2015.

Upon completion of its responsibilities over the year, the Audit Committee is of the opinion that the SEC 

internal control system as a whole was adequate and functioned properly.  For the areas which required  

improvement, the SEC has continuously taken remedy actions. The SEC has also performed its duties  

completely in compliance with the applicable laws and regulations and has laid out a good corporate  

governance policy that is complete and in line with international standards. 

Additionally, the SEC �nancial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Thai Financial  

Reporting Standards, appropriate accounting policies have been used, due care has been exercised in forming 

judgments and making reasonable estimations, and information of signi�cance has been adequately disclosed 

in the notes to the �nancial statements.

 (Mr. Somchai  Kuvijitsuwan)
 Chair of the Audit Committee
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To the Minister of Finance
The Office of the Auditor General (OAG) has audited the accompanying financial statements of the Securities and Exchange  

Commission (SEC), which comprise the statement of financial position as at December 31, 2014, and the statement of comprehensive 

revenues and expenses, statement of changes in fund balances and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of 

significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with Thai Financial  

Reporting Standard, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial  

statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility
The OAG’s responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on the OAG’s audit. The OAG conducted its 

audit in accordance with Thai Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that the auditor complies with ethical requirements and 

plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The 

procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 

statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s 

preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, 

but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. 

An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 

made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

The OAG believes that the audit evidence the auditor has obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion
In the OAG’s opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of SEC as of December 31, 

2014, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Thai Financial Reporting Standards.

Report of the Auditor
(Unofficial Translation)

(Mrs. Sarunya  Toneon)
Auditor In-charge

(Miss Khamanat  Jiteaviriyakull)
Director of Auditor Office

Office of the Auditor General

February 23, 2015
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unit: baht

Notes 2014 2013

Assets

Current assests

 Cash and cash equivalents 4 225,747,200.25 106,819,548.07

 Short-term investments 5 4,673,487,817.76 4,322,813,549.73

 Accrued revenues 6 476,433,206.15 425,761,854.79

 Receivable - The Revenue Department - 2,627,595.35

 Other current assets 9,724,690.62 12,754,966.25

  Total current assets 5,385,392,914.78 4,870,777,514.19

Non-current assets

 Loans to employees 8,433,560.00 12,974,814.07

 Property, plant and equipment 7 1,165,406,191.46 1,206,748,899.56

 Intangible assets 8 40,835,819.02 32,811,513.86

 Other non-current assets 256,752.76 9,003,202.76

  Total non-current assets 1,214,932,323.24 1,261,538,430.25

Total assets 6,600,325,238.02 6,132,315,944.44

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

Securities and Exchange Commission, Thailand 
Statement of Financial Position
As at December 31, 2014 
(Unofficial Translation)
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Securities and Exchange Commission, Thailand
Statement of Financial Position
As at December 31, 2014 
(Unofficial Translation)

(Mr. Vorapol Socatiyanuruk)
Secretary-General

(Miss Nidaporn Assawateerakiat)
Director, General Administration Department

unit: baht

Notes 2014 2013

Liabilities and funds

Current liabilities

 Accounts payable 55,891,580.47 112,677,576.93

 Accrued Expenses 26,970,804.51 33,323,442.89

 Payable - The Revenue Department 5,286,100.10 -

 Other current liabilities 1,351,734.94 4,210,570.45

  Total current liabilities 89,500,220.02 150,211,590.27

Non - current liabilities

 Employee benefit obligations 9 276,143,735.54 182,246,884.18

 Other non-current liabilities 21,530,389.29 20,560,033.58

  Total non-current liabilities 297,674,124.83 202,806,917.76

Total liabilities 387,174,344.85 353,018,508.03

Funds

 Initial capital 1,250,532,337.10 1,250,532,337.10

 Special reserve for capital market development 10.1 1,476,254,548.79 1,422,563,313.93

 Reserve for a permanent parking building 10.3 271,214,796.79 -

 General reserve 10.4 2,820,276,523.69 2,689,285,813.18

 Revenues over expenses 404,071,847.61 482,291,115.16

 Other components of funds 11 (9,199,160.81) (65,375,142.96)

Total Funds 6,213,150,893.17 5,779,297,436.41

Total liabilities and Funds 6,600,325,238.02 6,132,315,944.44

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Securities and Exchange Commission, Thailand
Statement of Comprehensive Revenues and Expenses
For the year ended December 31, 2014
(Unofficial Translation)

unit: baht

Notes 2014 2013

Revenues

 Fee income 12.1  744,693,351.58  710,966,548.12 

 Information service income  191,985.00  2,129,453.13 

 Deposit interest income  5,956,092.47  7,134,401.44 

 Investment income 12.2  144,186,292.82  124,619,131.98 

 Contribution from the Exchange of Thailand 12.3  470,482,618.45  517,337,750.51 

 Revenue from the sale of assets donated by Fiscal Policy Office  -  1,090,700.00 

 Other income  5,876,596.36  10,164,787.80 

Total revenues  1,371,386,936.68  1,373,442,772.98 

Expenses

 Human resources expenses  670,394,865.71  596,302,070.18 

 Administrative expenses  267,658,055.02  264,105,972.77 

 SEC Board and sub-committees remuneration 13  89,349,872.45  84,434,849.73 

Total expenses  1,027,402,793.18  944,842,892.68 

Revenues over expenses from operating activities  343,984,143.50  428,599,880.30 

Revenues and expenses for capital market development 14

 Revenues for capital market development  77,105,955.59  72,281,948.38 

 Expenses for capital market development  17,018,251.48  18,590,713.52 

Revenues over expenses for capital market development  60,087,704.11  53,691,234.86 

Revenues over expenses  404,071,847.61  482,291,115.16 

Other comprehensive revenues and expenses

 Gain (loss) on change in value of available-for-sale investments  56,175,982.15 (91,033,148.18)

 Actuarial losses (26,394,373.00)  -

Other comprehensive revenues over (under) expenses for the year  29,781,609.15 (91,033,148.18)

Total comprehensive revenues over expenses  433,853,456.76  391,257,966.98 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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unit: baht 

2014 2013

Cash �ows from operating activities

 Revenues over expenses 404,071,847.61 482,291,115.16

Adjustments to reconcile revenues over expenses to net cash from (used in) 

operating activities

 Interest income (120,616,276.16) (111,279,946.45)

 Dividend income (21,865,913.13) (23,755,616.73)

 Gain on sales of investments (81,092,692.43) (61,611,451.62)

 Gain on sales of property, plant and equipment - (1,937,902.93)

 Depreciation and amortization 88,276,968.85 61,719,670.65

 Contribution for employee benefit 67,502,478.36 62,406,013.95

 Revenue from the sale of assets donated by Fiscal Policy Office - (1,090,700.00)

Revenues over expenses from operating activities

 before changing in operating assets and liabilities 336,276,413.10 406,741,182.03

Operating assets (increase) decrease

 Short-term investments 9,633,600.00 3,964,000.00

 Accrued revenues (52,203,614.36) (61,778,775.24)

 Advances (130,856.51) (172,906.00)

 Other current assets 3,161,132.14 (7,962,451.23)

 Loans to employees 4,541,254.07 2,360,259.00

 Receivable - The Revenue Department 7,295,543.68 (2,627,595.35)

 Receivable - contract deposit 8,746,450.00 (50,000.00)

Operating liabilities increase (decrease)

 Accounts payable 926,260.61 6,715,529.02

 Accrued expenses (6,352,638.38) 20,799,852.32

 Unearned revenues 121,775.00 (171,613.26)

 Payable - The Revenue Department 618,151.77 (2,431,866.28)

 Other current liabilities (2,920,610.51) (1,167,546.03)

 Payable - contract deposit (60,000.00) (40,000.00)

Net cash flow from operating activities 309,652,860.61 364,178,068.98

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

Securities and Exchange Commission, Thailand
Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended December 31, 2014 
(Unofficial Translation)
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unit: baht

2014 2013

Cash �ows from investing activities

Proceeds from withdrawal of private funds 69,189,440.47 220,000,000.00

Investments in private funds (462,113,577.55) (671,426,011.69)

Proceeds from withdrawal fixed deposits 94,000,000.00 56,000,000.00

Proceeds from redemption of short-term bonds - 34,680,673.50

Interest received 122,148,539.16 112,724,844.37

Dividend received 21,865,913.13 23,755,616.73

Net proceeds from sale of investments 81,092,692.43 61,611,451.62

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment - 1,949,320.00

Proceeds from deposit and guarantees 970,355.71 7,860,929.04

Proceeds  from the  advance for the purchase of property, plant and equipment - 9,201,391.66

Acquisition of  property, plant and equipment (27,013,372.72) (211,730,212.75)

Acquisition of intangible assets (13,657,600.00) (2,115,324.50)

Paid on  demolition of the leasehold building - (10,501,655.50)

Payment of investment liabilities (9,664,304.00) -

Payment of  property, plant and equipment (67,543,295.06) (37,483,287.85)

Payment of  intangible assets - (2,380,750.00)

Net cash flow used in investing activities (190,725,208.43) (407,853,015.37)

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalent 118,927,652.18 (43,674,946.39)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of year 106,819,548.07 150,494,494.46

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of year 225,747,200.25 106,819,548.07

Supplemental cash �ow information

Items not effecting cash flow

 Payable for purchase securities 5,207,748.80 9,664,304.00

 Payable for purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 14,287,593.19 96,297,743.91

Total 19,495,341.99 105,962,047.91

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

Securities and Exchange Commission, Thailand
Statement of Cash Flows 
For the year ended December 31, 2014
(Unofficial Translation)
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1. General information

The Securities and Exchange Commission, Thailand (SEC) was established on May 16, 1992 under the Securities and Exchange Act 

B.E. 1992 (SEA). Its responsibilities are to supervise and develop the Thai capital market in the following areas:

•	 Issuance	and	public	offering	of	securities

•	 Securities	businesses	and	related	businesses

•	 Securities	exchange,	over-the-counter	center,	and	institutions	related	to	securities	businesses

•	 Acquisition	of	securities	for	business	takeovers

•	 Prevention	of	unfair	securities	trading	practices

The SEC is located at 333/3, Vibhavadi Road, Chom Phon, Chatuchak, Bangkok 10900.

2. Basis of preparation of financial statements

2.1 Financial statements 
The SEC’s financial statements have been prepared in compliance with the accounting standards of the Federation of Accounting 

Professions under the Accounting Act B.E 2000, including the accounting standards under the Accounting Professions Act B.E 2004 and 

interpretations of accounting standards promulgated by the Federation of Accounting Professions. The financial statements are stated at 

cost on an accrual basis except when stated otherwise. In addition, the accounting policies and methods of computation are consistent 

with those applied in the financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2013.

2.2 New accounting standards, new financial reporting standards, new interpretations of financial reporting  
  standards and amended accounting standards

Effective for the periods beginning on or after January 1, 2015 and the SEC has not applied the following accounting standards and 

interpretations before the standards come into effect:

Accounting Standards

The Conceptual Framework of Financial Reporting (revised 2014)

TAS 1 (revised 2014) Presentation of Financial Statements

TAS 2 (revised 2014) Inventories

TAS 7 (revised 2014) Statement of Cash Flows

TAS 8 (revised 2014) Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors

TAS 10 (revised 2014) Events after the Reporting Period

TAS 11 (revised 2014) Construction Contracts

TAS 12 (revised 2014) Income Taxes

Securities and Exchange Commission, Thailand
Notes to financial statements
For the year ended December 31, 2014
(Unofficial Translation)
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TAS 16 (revised 2014) Property, Plant and Equipment

TAS 17 (revised 2014) Leases 

TAS 18 (revised 2014) Revenue  

TAS 19 (revised 2014) Employee Benefits

TAS 20 (revised 2014) Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of Government Assistance

TAS 21 (revised 2014) The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates

TAS 23 (revised 2014) Borrowing Costs

TAS 24 (revised 2014) Related Party Disclosures

TAS 26 (revised 2014) Accounting and Reporting by Retirement Benefit Plans

TAS 27 (revised 2014) Separate Financial Statements

TAS 28 (revised 2014) Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures

TAS 29 (revised 2014) Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economics : Disclosures

TAS 33 (revised 2014) Earnings per Share

TAS 34 (revised 2014) Interim Financial Reporting 

TAS 36 (revised 2014) Impairment of Assets

TAS 37 (revised 2014) Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

TAS 38 (revised 2014) Intangible Assets

TAS 40 (revised 2014) Investment Property

Financial Reporting Standards

TFRS 2 (revised 2014) Share-based Payment

TFRS 3 (revised 2014) Business Combinations

TFRS 5 (revised 2014) Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations

TFRS 6 (revised 2014) Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral Resources

TFRS 8 (revised 2014) Operating Segments 

TFRS 10   Consolidated Financial Statements

TFRS 11   Joint Arrangements

TFRS 12   Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

TFRS 13   Fair Value Measurement

Interpretations of Accounting Standards

TSIC 10 (revised 2014) Government Assistance - No specific Relation to Operating Activities

TSIC 15 (revised 2014) Operating Leases – Incentives

TSIC 25 (revised 2014) Income Taxes - Changes in the Tax Status of an Entity or its Shareholders

TSIC 27 (revised 2014) Evaluating the Substance of Transactions in the Legal Form of a Lease

TSIC 29 (revised 2014) Disclosures – Service Concession Arrangements

TSIC 31 (revised 2014) Revenue - Barter Transactions Involving Advertising Services

TSIC 32 (revised 2014) Intangible Assets – Web Site Costs
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Interpretations of Financial Reporting Standards

TFRIC 1 (revised 2014) Changes in Existing Decommissioning, Restoration and Similar Liabilities 

TFRIC 4 (revised 2014) Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease 

TFRIC 5 (revised 2014) Rights to Interests arising from Decommissioning, Restoration and Environmental Rehabilitation Funds

TFRIC 7 (revised 2014) Applying the Restatement Approach under TAS 29 (revised 2014) Financial Reporting in 

    Hyperinflationary Economies

TFRIC 10 (revised 2014) Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment

TFRIC 12 (revised 2014) Service Concession Arrangements

TFRIC 13 (revised 2014) Customer Loyalty Programmes

TFRIC 14   The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding Requirements and their Interaction under 

    TAS 19 Employee Benefits

TFRIC 15 (revised 2014) Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate

TFRIC 17 (revised 2014) Distributions of Non-cash Assets to Owners

TFRIC 18 (revised 2014) Transfers of Assets from Customers

TFRIC 20   Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of the Surface Mine

Effective for the periods beginning on or after January 1, 2016 and the SEC has not applied the following accounting standards and 

interpretations before the standards come into effect:

Financial Reporting Standards

TFRS 4 (revised 2014) Insurance Contracts

The SEC management has determined that the above accounting standards, financial reporting standards and interpretations will 

not significantly impact the financial statements being presented.

3. Significant accounting policies

3.1 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents are cash on hand, check in transit, bank deposits with high liquidity (without restrictions on use), short-term 

highly liquid investments that are due within a period of three months or less from the date of acquisition and are ready to be converted 

into cash in the amount of the notes with no significant risks to change in value.

3.2 Investments
3.2.1 Category of investments

 Investments in bank deposits and debt instruments held for less than one year are classified as short-term investments. The 

investments held for more than one year are classified as long-term investments.

 Investments in private funds considered as short-term investment fund is divided into two funds. The SEC has hired the 

asset management company that has been licensed by the SEC to manage these private funds.  The funds are independently managed by 

the selected private fund managers to invest in marketable securities of both debt and equity instruments and in alternative investments.
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3.2.2 Valuation for investments

 Investments in held-to-maturity debt securities are measured at amortized cost.

 The SEC private funds invest in marketable securities of both debt and equity instruments and in alternative investments 

which are classified as available-for-sale on the statement of financial position, and measured at fair value. The fair value of marketable equity 

instruments is based on the closed price on the Stock Exchange of Thailand (SET) as of financial position statement date. 

 Changes in the carrying amount of the available-for-sale securities are recognized as gain or loss on changes in value of 

available-for-sale investments and presented under  other  comprehensive  revenues  and  expenses  on  the  statement  of  comprehensive  

revenues and expenses. 

 Cost of investments in debt and equity securities sold is calculated using the weighted average method. Gains or losses on 

disposal of investments are recognized in the statement of comprehensive revenues and expenses.

3.3 Accrued revenues are stated as net realizable value. 

3.4 Property, plant and equipment
Land is stated at cost. Plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses 

(if any). 

The costs include expenditures that are attributable to the acquisition of the assets. The cost of self-built asset comprises the cost 

of materials, direct labor and any costs directly attributable to bringing the assets to a working condition for their intended use, the costs 

of decommissioning or removal of the element, as well as the rehabilitation of the location of assets. Software that controls the equipment 

and is integral to the functionality of the related equipment shall be capitalized as part of equipment.

Parts of an item of property, plant and equipment having different consumption patterns or useful lives are recognized separately.

The gains or losses on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment are the difference between the net disposal proceeds 

and the carrying amount of the assets at the date of disposal and are recognized on a net basis as revenues or expenses in the statement 

of comprehensive revenues and expenses. 

Subsequent costs due to the replacement component are recognized as a part of the carrying amount of property, plant and  

equipment if it is probable that SEC obtain the future economic benefits derived therefore and the cost of the asset can be measured 

reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognized. Costs of the daily maintenance of property, plant and equipment are 

expensed as incurred.

Depreciation is allocated using the straight-line method, except for computer equipment that uses sum of the years digits method, 

over their estimated useful lives as follows:

 Office building and buildings 5 - 35 years

 Furniture and fixtures 5 - 10 years

 Office equipment 5 - 10 years

 Vehicles and equipment         6 years

Land and assets under construction are not depreciated.

Depreciation method, the useful lives and residual values are reviewed at least at the end of each financial year and adjusted if  

appropriate.
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3.5 Intangible assets
Intangible assets include costs that are directly attributable to system development and licensed software products controlled by 

the SEC and are expected to generate future economic benefits beyond one year. They are stated at cost less accumulated amortization 

and accumulated impairment losses (if any). Cost of intangible assets comprises the purchase price and other directly attributable costs 

necessary to prepare the assets to be capable to operating as intended. The amortization amount is allocated using the straight-line 

method over their estimated useful lives as follows:

 Licensed software fee  10 years

 System development costs   5 years

3.6 Impairment of assets
The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed when there is any indication of impairment in value of the asset. If such indication exists, 

SEC shall estimate the recoverable amount of the asset. 

An impairment losses are recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount. 

The impairment loss is recognized in the statement of comprehensive revenues and expenses, unless it reverses a previous revaluation 

credited to equity, in which case it is charged to equity.

When a decline in the fair value of an available-for-sale financial asset has been recognized directly in equity and there is objective  

evidence that the values of the assets are impaired, the cumulative losses that had been recognized directly in equity is recognized  

in the statement of comprehensive revenues and expenses even though the financial asset has not been derecognized. The amount 

of the cumulative loss that is recognized in the statement of comprehensive revenues and expenses is the difference between the  

acquisition cost and current fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognized in the statement of  

comprehensive revenues and expenses.

3.7 Employee benefits
The SEC provides contributions to the provident fund for the post-employment benefits and other long-term employee benefits to 

which the employees are entitled as follows:

(a) Post-employment benefit (Defined contribution plan)

 The SEC has established and registered  a master fund, namely “Registered Provident Fund of the Securities and  

Exchange Commission” registered under Provident Fund Act B.E.1987 since August 9, 1993. The Fund's investment three policy has options 

for members. Employees contribute 3 - 10 percent of their base salaries while the SEC contributes 10 percent to the provident fund. The 

provident fund has been managed by investment professional. Contributions from the SEC are recognized as an expense in the statement 

of comprehensive revenues and expenses in each accounting period as incurred.

(b) Post-employment benefit (Defined benefit plan)

 The SEC’s obligations concerning post employment benefits under “Defined benefit plan” and other long-term employee 

benefits are recognized in the financial statements based on calculations performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected unit 

credit method. 

 The SEC’s liabilities concerning post-employment benefits and other long-term employee benefits as of January 1, 2011 

were at 187.45 million baht. The SEC has recognized such liabilities using the straight-line method within five years starting from effective 

date of TAS 19 and recognized obligations incurred in each year as an expense in the statement of comprehensive revenues and expenses.

 Actuarial gains and losses are recognized immediately under other comprehensive revenues and expenses in the statement 

of comprehensive revenues and expenses.
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3.8 Revenue recognition
Major revenues of the SEC and revenue recognition are as follows:

3.8.1 Fee income 

•	 Application	fees:	Revenue	is	recognized	when	application	form	and	fee	are	received	by	the	SEC.

•	 Registration	 fees:	 30	 percent	 of	 the	minimum	 fee	 requirement	 for	 registration	 is	 recognized	when	 the	SEC	 received	 

registration statement together with the fee, and the remaining balance will be recognized when the registration statement becomes effective. 

The registration fee which is paid annually in proportion to the shareholders’ equity is recognized on an accrual basis. 

•	 License	fees	and	business	undertaking	fees:	Such	revenues	are	recognized	according	to	accrual	basis.

•	 Other	fees:	Revenue	is	recognized	when	request	form	and	fee	are	received	by	the	SEC.

3.8.2 Contribution from the SET Under the SEA, for the purpose of facilitating the operation of the SEC at the rate specified by 

the SEC, is recognized on an accrual basis.

3.8.3 Investment income or other income

•	 Interest	income	is	recognized	using	the	effective	interest	method	in	accordance	with	the	proportion	of	the	period.

•	 Dividend	income	is	recognized	when	the	SEC’s	right	to	receive	payments	is	established.

•	 Other	income	is	recognized	on	an	accrual	basis.

3.9 Financial risk management
To manage investment risk, the SEC has a policy to specify its investment proportion at a risk level of VaR

α 0.05 = 3 percent (a probability  

of less than 5 percent to have a loss more than 3 percent) and expected returns not lower than inflation rate. At least 60 percent of the 

portfolio is to be invested in low risk assets comprising local and foreign bank deposits and debt securities with no currency exchange 

risk while the remaining portion can be invested in high risk assets comprising local and foreign bank deposits, debt securities, equity 

securities, property funds, infrastructure funds, commodities funds and real estate investment funds.

3.10 Operating leases
Expenditures under operating leases are recognized in the statement of comprehensive revenues or expenses on a straight line basis 

over the lease term. Potential rents that must be paid during the remaining period of the lease under criteria set out in the rental agreement 

must be included in the calculation of the minimum lease payments.

4. Cash and cash equivalents
unit: million baht

2014 2013

Cash, check in transit and petty cash 0.62 1.10

Bank deposits 80.74 80.76

Bonds and treasury 144.39 24.96

Total 225.75 106.82
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5. Short-term investments
unit: million baht

2014 2013

Managed by private fund managers

 - Current and saving deposits 3.10 33.10

 - Fixed deposits 100.00 180.00

 - Receivables from the sale of securities 0.54 31.64

 - Investment in debt and equity instruments and alternative investments 4,188.66 3,595.22

 - Accrued interest and dividend 27.22 25.25

4,319.52 3,865.21

Managed by the SEC

 - Fixed deposits (due date within 1 year) 353.97 457.60

Total 4,673.49 4,322.81

Fixed deposits with Government Housing Bank (GHB) maturity within a year were used as collateral for housing loan of employee that 

borrowed from GHB. The deposit amount was 108.97 million baht and 118.61 million baht as of the end of 2014 and 2013 respectively.

Investment in debt and equity instruments and alternative investments
unit: million baht

2014 2013

Cost Fair value Cost Fair value

Debt instruments 3,440.85 3,492.31 2,641.03 2,709.31

Equity instruments 574.19 583.15 564.00 569.74

Alternative investments 104.48 113.20 326.24 316.17

4,119.52 4,188.66 3,531.27 3,595.22

Accrued interest from debt instruments 27.00 27.00 23.00 23.00

Accrued dividend from equity instruments 0.22 0.22 2.25 2.25

Alternative investments are investments in property funds, infrastructure funds, commodities funds and real estate investment trust.

Debt instruments
unit: million baht

2014 2013

Available-for-sale securities

 :  Bonds 1,859.25 1,402.31

 :  Debentures 1,521.23 1,280.00

 :  Promissory notes and other debt instruments 111.83 27.00

Total 3,492.31 2,709.31
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6. Accrued revenues
unit: million baht

2014 2013

Interest income from saving and fixed deposits 1.66 3.20

Interest income from Fixed deposits with Government Housing Bank 0.97 1.16

Interest income from Government bonds 0.35 0.02

Contribution from the SET 138.32 84.40

Business undertaking fee 333.57 334.57

Annual disclosure fee 1.50 0.37

Others 0.06 2.04

Total 476.43 425.76

7. Property, plant and equipment 
unit: million baht

Balance

as at Dec 31, 2013

Increase  Decrease Balance

as at Dec 31, 2014

Property, plant and equipment (cost)

Land 136.75 - - 136.75

Office Building 816.96 2.28 - 819.24

Buildings 0.72 - - 0.72

Leasehold improvement 0.06 - - 0.06

Furniture and fixtures 57.61 1.87 - 59.48

Office equipment 358.40 34.70 - 393.10

Vehicles and parts 23.14 - - 23.14

Total 1,393.64 38.85 -. 1,432.49

Less Accumulated depreciation

Office building and buildings (18.99) (23.62) - (42.61)

Leasehold improvement (0.01) (0.01) - (0.02)

Furniture and fixtures (11.15) (8.22) - (19.37)

Office equipment (140.16) (47.37) - (187.53)

Vehicles and parts (16.58) (0.97) - (17.55)

Total (186.89)  (80.19) - (267.08)

Property, plant and equipment 1,206.75 1,165.41

Depreciation 54.39 80.19

The SEC on September 9, 2010 obtained legal ownership of the land and building in the amount of 690 million baht. The building 

was renovated and decorated to be a new office building of the SEC. Such building began using on July 2, 2013.

The gross values of the property, plant and equipment that are fully depreciated but still in use are 15.04 million baht and 82.51 

million baht as of the end of 2014 and 2013 respectively.
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8. Intangible assets 
unit: million baht

Balance

as at Dec 31, 2013

Increase Decrease Balance

as at Dec 31, 2014

Intangible assets

Licensed software 72.40 13.93 - 86.33

System developments 7.53 - - 7.53

CIP - Licensed software - 2.18 - 2.18

Total 79.93 16.11 - 96.04

Less Accumulated amortization

Licensed software (40.43) (7.50) - (47.93)

System developments (6.69) (0.58) - (7.27)

Total (47.12) (8.08) - (55.20)

Intangible assets 32.81 40.84

Amortization 7.32 8.08

9. Employee benefit obligations 

unit: million baht

2014 2013

Unrecognized transitional obligations as at January 1 74.98 112.47

Recognized as expenses for the year (37.49) (37.49)

Unrecognized transitional obligations as at December 31 37.49 74.98

Changes in present value of employee bene�t obligations during period

Present value of obligations at the beginning of year 182.25 119.84

Recognition of obligations during changes 37.49 37.49

Less Benefits paid (0.46) (0.49)

Current service cost 18.30 15.67

Interest cost 12.17 9.74

Actuarial losses  26.39 -

Obligations at the end of year 276.14 182.25

Amount recognized on statement of comprehensive of revenues 

and expenses for the year ended December 31, 2014 and 2013

Recognition of obligations during changes 37.49 37.49

Current service cost 18.30 15.67

Interest cost 12.17 9.74

Total 67.96 62.90
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unit: million baht

2014 2013

Actuarial assumptions

Discount rate 4.3% 4.2%

Inflation rate 3.0% 3.0%

Salary increase rate 5-12% 3-12%

Medical inflation rate 6.0% 7.0%

Impact from medical cost rate decrease or increase 1 percent of the obligation under 2014 
medical benefit plan

unit: million baht

Medical in�ation rate

5% 7%

Unrecognized transitional obligations as at January 1 72.80 72.80

Recognized as expenses for the year (36.40) (36.40)

Unrecognized transitional obligations as at December 31 36.40  36.40

Components of cost and medical bene�t plan obligations

Recognition of obligations during changes 36.40 36.40

Current service cost 13.04 24.11

Interest cost  9.04 15.88

Total 58.48 76.39

Less  Benefits paid (0.46) (0.46)

Balance  58.02 75.93

10. Reserve

Minister of Finance has approved the SEC’s reserve under SEA section 26 according to the document of Minister of Finance No. 

1007/21406 dated December 7, 2011 and No. 1007/19634 dated November 21, 2013. The rules and method to reserve are as follows. 

1. Special reserve for capital market development  is to set aside as priority before other reserves in the amount equal to net 

amount of revenues to the Capital Market Development Fund consisting of the income from investment for the capital market development,  

administrative fine of Derivatives Act and the Trust for Transactions in Capital Market Act, less Capital market development expenses such 

as the knowledge and understanding for the individuals involved through various media, etc. The set aside amount must not exceed the 

SEC’s profit (revenues over expenses) in each year.
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2. Special purpose reserves are as follow

 2.1 Reserve for a permanent office building is to set aside after special reserve for capital market development. In accordance 

with the SEC resolution at the Meeting No.7/2012 dated July 5, 2012, the SEC board increased amount of the reserve from 850 million 

baht to 1,254.70 million baht and set aside the reserve from the SEC’s profit of 2013 and 2014. It has fully reserved as of the end of 2014

 2.2 Reserve for a permanent parking building is to set aside after reserve for a permanent office building until the full amount of 

500 million baht is reserved.

3. General reserve  is the last type of reserve to be set aside from the remaining profit (revenues over expenses) after special reserve 

for capital market development and special purpose reserve until the full amount of 4,107 million baht is reserved.

 If the set aside amount has reached the amount approved by the Minister of Finance, the remaining revenue shall be sent to the 

Government under SEA section 27. And such reserve rule was effective since the reserve of the financial result of the year 2012. Types 

of reserve are as follows:

10.1 Special reserve for capital market development
unit: million baht

2014 2013

Beginning balance 1,422.56 1,357.26

Add Additional allocation 53.69 65.30

Total 1,476.25 1,422.56

10.2 Reserve for a permanent office building 
unit: million baht

2014 2013

Beginning balance - -

Add Additional allocation 157.39 384.82

157.39 384.82

Less Transfer to general reserve (157.39) (384.82)

Total - -

On January 1, 2014 amount of reserve for a permanent office building set aside from revenues over expenses was 1,097.31 million 

baht and in 2014 the reserve amount was increased by 157.39 million baht from revenues over expenses of the year 2013, totaling to 

1,254.70 million baht.
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10.3 Reserve for a permanent parking building
unit: million baht

2014 2013

Beginning balance - -

Add Additional allocation 271.21 -

Total 271.21 -

10.4 General reserve
unit: million baht

2014 2013

Beginning balance 2,689.29 2,304.47

Add Transfer from reserve for a permanent office building 157.39 384.82

2,846.68 2,689.29

Less Actuarial losses (26.39) --

Total 2,820.29 2,689.29

Due to office building payment, the reserve for a permanent office building amount 157.39 million baht was transferred to general 

reserve.

11. Other components of funds
unit: million baht

2014 2013

Beginning balance (65.37) 25.66

Changes during the year 56.17 (91.03)

Ending balance (9.20) (65.37)

Other components of fund balances in the amount of 9.20 million baht were differences arising from value changes between carrying 

amount and fair value of investments in private funds in accordance with the SEC accounting policy in note 3.2. 



118

12. Revenues

12.1 Fee income
unit: million baht

2014 2013

Annual fees from

 Securities businesses 251.06 263.03

 Asset management businesses 115.79 108.07

 Listed company 80.01 71.16

 Limited brokerage, dealing and underwriting of investment units (LBDU) businesses 12.97 13.50

 Others 38.50 39.00

Total 498.33 494.76

Other fees 246.36 216.21

Total 744.69 710.97

12.2 Investment incomes
unit: million baht

2014 2013

Income from investment in funds managed by private fund managers

 Interest income 112.90 102.11

 Dividend income 21.86 23.76

 Gain on sale of investments 76.50 58.70

Total* 211.26 184.57

 Income from direct investments 7.72 9.17

Total* 218.98 193.74

 Less   Income from investment for capital market development1 (74.79) (69.12)

Balance 144.19 124.62

1 As of the end of 2014 and 2013, income from investment for capital market development balances were excluding gain on exchange 

rate on sale of overseas investment in the amount of 1.64 million baht and 1.12 million baht respectively. 
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12.3 Contribution from the Exchange of Thailand
unit: million baht

2014 2013

Contribution collected based on

 Trading value 445.58 493.24

 Listed company’s equity value 22.90 22.10

 Fixed rate 2.00 2.00

Total 470.48 517.34

13. SEC Board and Sub-Committees remuneration
unit: million baht

2014 2013

Remuneration for commissioners and executives

Remuneration for commissioners

 Committees /Sub-committee benefits 18.96 19.93

Remuneration for executives

 Salary and other short-term benefits 67.68 61.99

 Long-term benefits 2.71 2.51

Total 89.35 84.43

14. Revenues and expenses for capital market development
unit: million baht

2014 2013

Revenues for capital market development

 Income from investment for capital market development 76.43 70.24

 Administrative fines 0.68 2.04

Total 77.11 72.28

Expenses for capital market development

 Financial literacy, investor education and other activities 17.02 18.59

Total 17.02 18.59
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15. Commitments and contingent liabilities

The SEC office and/or the SEC Board and/or Capital Market Supervisory Board were named in four pending administrative cases 

with claims as follows:

1. The case involves the allegedly unlawful denial of the plaintiff’s name from listing on the publicly traded companies’ executive list, 

maintained by the SEC Office with a 50 million baht claim. Such denial is based on the SEC Office’s opinion that the plaintiff possesses 

prohibited characteristics as specified by the SEC Notification. The case is dismissed by the Central Administrative Court and pending 

the Supreme Administrative Court’s consideration.

2. The second case, with a 159.89 million baht claim, involves the allegedly unlawful revocation of the SEC-approved auditor status. 

The case is dismissed by the Central Administrative Court and pending the Supreme Administrative Court’s consideration.

3. The third case, with 0.48 million baht claim, involves the alleged negligence to properly supervise the complaint about the price of 

the warrants to purchase shares of listed companies being significantly reduced. The case is pending the Central Administrative Court’s 

consideration.

4. The last one is two cases of alleged infringer with 17.06 million baht claim that involves the plaintiffs, SPA Mec Co., Ltd. and 

Damrongchai Products Co., Ltd, as a subcontractors not getting paid by the contractor of the SEC Office's building renovation, TWC 

decoration Co. Ltd., and claiming for compensation from SEC Office 4.56 million baht and 12.50 million baht respectively. SEC Office’s 

opinion was not a legal relationship with the plaintiffs or any proceeding to infringe according to the claims of the plaintiffs. The cases are 

pending the Civil Court’s consideration.

Nevertheless, due to the fact that the SEC Office and/or the SEC Board and/or Capital Market Supervisory Board have carried out 

their duties with prudence and care, strictly observing the established legal framework, on an equitable basis and not acting inconsistently 

with the law, they are confident that it is very likely that their cases will be successfully defended without any damages required to be paid.

16. Approval of financial statements

Secretary-General of the SEC approved the financial statements on February 23, 2015.
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Sub-Committees
1. Sub-Committee on Consideration of Regulations on Supervision of  
 Securities and Derivatives Business Operators

(1) To consider and give advice on issuance of regulations on supervision of securities and derivatives  

 business operators, securities exchange, over-the-counter centers, derivatives exchange, securities-related  

 agencies, derivatives clearing house, and related business operators;

(2) To perform other duties as assigned by the Capital Market Supervisory Board.

 Comprises:

(1) Mr. Kampanart Lohacharoenvanich     Chairman

(2) Representative from the Stock Exchange of Thailand   member

(3) Representative from the Thailand Futures Exchange Plc.   member

(4) Representative from the Association of Thai Securities Companies   member

(5) Representative from the Thai Investors Association   member

(6) Representative from the Association of Investment Management   member

 Companies

(7) Representative from the Investment Analysts Association   member

 (in case of relevant matters only)

(8) Mr. Ayuth Krishnamara      member

 (in case of regulations governing securities companies licensed to 

 undertake securities brokerage, securities dealing and underwriting 

 of investment units)

(9) SEC director of the department     member and Secretary

 in charge of supervision of securities and derivatives 

 businesses operators

Appointed on March 7, 2014 to serve a term from April 1, 2014 to March 31, 2016.

2. Sub-Committee on Consideration of Regulations on Issuance and Offering  
 of Equity Instruments and Governance of Securities Issuing Companies

(1) To consider and give advice on: 

(a) Issuance of regulations on issuance and offering of equity instruments;

(b) Issuance of regulations on governance of securities issuing companies under Division 3/1 of the  

 Securities and Exchange Act B.E. 2535;

(c) Issuance of other regulations attached and related to (a) or (b);

(2) To perform other duties as assigned by the Capital Market Supervisory Board.

 Comprises:

(1) Mr. Pratib Yongvanich      Chairman

(2) Representative from the Stock Exchange of Thailand   member
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(3) Representative from the Association of Thai Securities Companies member

(Investment Banking Club)

(4) Representative from the Thai Listed Companies Association  member

(5) Representative from the Thai Investors Association   member 

(6) Representative from the Investment Analysts Association   member

(7) Mrs. Patraporn Milindasuta      member

(8) Mr. Suchat Boonbanjerdsri      member

(9) Mrs. Pantip Suratin      member

(10) SEC director of the department      member and Secretary

 in charge of the supervision of equity, hybrid instruments,

 and warrants, or SEC director of the department 

 in charge of governance of securities 

 issuing companies, as the case maybe 

Appointed on March 7, 2014 to serve a term from April 1, 2014 to March 31, 2016.

3. Sub-Committee on Consideration of Regulations on Issuance and  
 Offering of Debt Securities and Sukuk 

(1) To consider and give advice on issuance of regulations governing issuance and offering of debt 

 securities, sukuk, and other related regulations; 

(2) To perform other duties as assigned by the Capital Market Supervisory Board.

 Comprises:

(1) Mr. Pratib Yongvanich (April 1 – May 15, 2014)    Chairman

 Assoc. Prof. Pornanong  Budsaratragoon(since May 16, 2014)

(2) Representative from the Thai Listed Companies Association  member

(3) Representative from the Thai Bond Market Association   member

(4) Representative from the Thai Investors Association   member

(5) Mr. Arsa Indaravijaya      member

(6) Ms. Ada Ingawanij       member

(7) Mr. Konthee Prasertwongse      member

(8) Mr. Sakares Khamwalee      member

(9) SEC director of the department     member and Secretary

 in charge of the supervision of debt securities and sukuk

(7) – (8) involved in case of regulations related to sukuk only.

Appointed on March 7, 2014 to serve a term from April 1, 2014 to March 31, 2016.
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4. Sub-Committee on Consideration of Regulations on Issuance and Offering  
 of Derivatives or Derivatives-Embedded Instruments or Structured Products

(1) To consider and give advice on issuance of regulations on issuance and offering of derivatives or  

 derivatives-embedded instruments, and other related regulations;

(2) To perform other duties as assigned by the Capital Market Supervisory Board.

 Comprises:

(1) Mr. Pratib Yongvanich (April 1 – May 15, 2014)    Chairman

 Ms. Pornanong  Budsaratragoon(since May 16, 2014)

(2) Representative from the Thai Listed Companies Association  member

(3) Representative from the Thai Investors Association   member

(4) Representative from the Association of Thai Securities Companies  member

 (Investment Banking Club)

(5) Representative from the Thai Bond Market Association   member

 (in case of derivatives-embedded instruments 

 or structured products only)

(6) Representative from the Stock Exchange of Thailand   member

 (in case of instruments that may be listed on the SET only)

(7) Mr. Arsa Indaravijaya      member

(8) Mr. Bhudinan Sethanandha      member

(9) Mr. Yingyong Nilasena      member

(10) SEC director of the department     member and Secretary

 in charge of the supervision of derivatives, 

 derivatives-embedded instruments or structured products

Appointed on March 7, 2014 to serve a term from April 1, 2014 to March 31, 2016.

5.  Sub-Committee on Consideration of Regulations on Asset Management

(1) To consider and give advice on: 

(a) Issuance of regulations on the establishment and management of mutual funds  excluding property  

 funds and infrastructure funds;

(b) Issuance of regulations on the establishment and management of private funds including provident  

 funds, venture capital management, and derivatives fund management;

(c) Issuance of other regulations attached and related to (a) or (b);

(2) To perform other duties as assigned by the Capital Market Supervisory Board.

 Comprises:

(1) Mr. Kampanart Lohacharoenvanich(April 1 – May 15, 2014)  Chairman

 Ms. Suchada Pavananunt (since May 16, 2014)
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(2) Representative from the Association of Investment Management  member

 Companies

(3) Representative from the Thai Investors Association   member

(4) Representative from the Custodian Club selected from   member

 mutual fund supervisors

(5) Representative from the Association of Provident Funds   member

 (in case of related matters)

(6) Mrs. Pornanong  Budsaratragoon    member

(7) SEC director of the department     member and Secretary

 in charge of the establishment of mutual funds and 

 the supervision of mutual fund management and 

 private fund management

Appointed on March 7, 2014 to serve a term from April 1, 2014 to March 31, 2016. 

6.  Sub-Committee on Consideration of Regulations on Proper ty Funds,  
 Infrastructure Funds and Real Estate Investment Trusts

(1) To consider and give advice on: 

(a) Issuance of regulations on the establishment and management of property 

     funds and infrastructure funds; 

(b) Issuance of regulations on real estate investment trusts;

(c) Issuance of other regulations attached and related to (a) or (b);

(2) To perform other duties as assigned by the Capital Market Supervisory Board.

 Comprises:

(1) Mr. Pratib Yongvanich (April 1 – May 15, 2014)    Chairman

 Ms. Pornanong  Budsaratragoon(since May 16, 2014)

(2) Representative from the Stock Exchange of Thailand   member 

(3) Representative from the Association of Securities Companies  member

 (Investment Banking Club)

(4) Representative from the Association of Investment   member 

 Management Companies

(5) Representative from the Thai Investors Association    member

(6) Representative from the Thai Real Estate Association   member 

(7) Representative from the Custodian Club    member 

 selected from mutual fund supervisors

(8) Representative from the State Enterprise Policy Office   member 

 (in case of infrastructure funds only)

(9) Mr. Pairat  Monthapan      member 

(10) Mr. Simon  Landy       member 

(11) Ms. Pornanong  Budsaratragoon (April 1 – May 15, 2014)  member
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(12) SEC director of the department     member and Secretary

 in charge of the supervision of financial instruments to invest 

 in property funds, infrastructure funds and real estate 

 investment trusts

Appointed on March 7, 2014 to serve a term from April 1, 2014 to March 31, 2016. 

7. Sub-Committee on Consideration of Regulations on Business Takeovers

(1) To consider and give advice on the issuance of regulations on business takeovers; 

(2) To perform other duties as assigned by the Capital Market Supervisory Board.

 Comprises:

(1) Mr. Pratib Yongvanich      Chairman

(2) Representative from the Stock Exchange of Thailand   member

(3) Representative from the Association of Securities Companies  member

 (Investment Banking Club)

(4) Representative from the Association of Investment   member

 Management Companies

(5) Mrs. Patraporn Milindasuta      member

(6) Mr. Suparerk Auychai       member

(7) SEC director of the department     member and Secretary

 in charge of business takeovers

Appointed on March 7, 2014 to serve a term from April 1, 2014 to March 31, 2016.

8. Sub-Committee on Business Takeovers (Takeovers Panel)

(1) To make decisions on waiver of tender offers for business takeovers, rules on application for tender offers or  

 any other decisions under the regulations on acquisition of securities for business takeovers;

(2) To make decisions regarding any action or omission of action that may have an impact on tender offers  

 under the regulations issued by virtue of Section 250/1 of the SEA;

(3) To comment or give advice to the SEC Board and the SEC Office on matters related to acting in concert  

 under Section 246 or 247 and any other matter concerning takeovers;

(4) To request any person to provide facts, explanation, advice and opinion or documents in support of  

 takeovers consideration, as deemed necessary. 

 Comprises:

 Category 1: Chairman

1) Khunying Jada  Wattanasiritham

2) Mr. Chanin  Vongkusolkit
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3) Prof.Emeritus Khunying Suchada Kiranandana

Category 2: Financial Experts as Member

1) Mr. Chavalit  Chindavanig

2) Assoc. Prof. Pornanong  Budsaratragoon

3) Mr. Paiboon  Nalinthrangkurn

4) Mr. Varah  Sucharitakul

5) Mr. Apichai  Boontherawara

Category 3: Legal Experts as Member

1) Mrs. Kulkanist  Khamsirivatchara

2) Mr. Charin  Satchayan

3) Mr. Pradit  Sahachaiyunta

4) Mrs. Pornpinant  Asawawattanaporn

5) Ms. Manida  Zinmerman

Category 4: SEC Representatives as Member and Secretary

1) Director of the Corporate Monitoring Department

2) Director of the Securities Regulation Department

Appointed on February 19, 2013 to serve a term from February 19, 2013 to February 18, 2015.

9. Legal Sub-Committee

To consider and give opinions to the SEC Board and the SEC Office on matters as assigned by the SEC Board  

 or as requested by the SEC Office, as follows:

(1) Legal issues under the SEA, the Derivatives Act and other laws;

(2) Criminal proceedings against offenders under the SEA, the Derivatives Act, and other laws as well as  

 acquisition for compensation or other benefits under a civil case related to a criminal case, and giving of advice  

 and assistance in relation to examination and sufficiency of evidence, conditions and elements of offense,  

 including legal proceedings against the offenders; 

(3) Seizure or attachment of assets of persons whose actions appear to be evidence of wrongdoing under  

 the SEA and the Derivatives Act;

(4) Requisition of criminal court order to prohibit the persons under (3) from leaving the Kingdom and  

 ordering of temporary prohibition of such act before the criminal court issues an order.

 Comprises:

(1) Mr. Kumchai  Jongjakapun       Chairman

(2) Mr. Tarit  Pengdith       member

 Director-General, Department of Special Investigation

(3) Mr. Nantasak Poolsuk (since December 20, 2013)   member

 Director-General, Department of Special Litigation

(4) Mr. Chukiert Ratanachaichan     member

 Secretary-General, Office of the Council of State
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(5) Pol. Gen. Watcharapol  Prasarnrajakit     member

 Deputy Commissioner General, the Royal Thai Police

(6) Mr. Vasant  Thienhom,       member

 Deputy Secretary-General, SEC Office

(7) Mr. Chanchai  Boonritchaisri      member

 Assistant Governor, the Bank of Thailand

(8) Mr. Krisada Chinavicharana      member

 Adviser in Economics and Financial Affairs, 

 the Fiscal Policy Office

The SEC shall appoint an officer to serve as secretary of the sub-committee and not more than two officers  

 to serve as assistant secretary. 

Appointed on May 15, 2013 to serve a term from May 13, 2013 to May 12, 2015.

10. Appellate Sub-Committee

(1) To make a conclusion on facts and legal issues and propose opinions on appeal cases against the SEC  

 Office’s administrative orders to the SEC Board;.

(2) To perform others duties as assigned by the SEC Board.

 Comprises: 

(1) Mr. Somchai  Kuvijitsuwan      Chairman

(2) Mr. Nontaphon  Nimsomboon     member

(3) Mr. Vichate Tantiwanich      member

Director of the SEC Administrative Appeals Center  shall serve as secretary of the sub-committee.

Appointed on March 26, 2013 to serve a term from May 12, 2013 to May 11, 2015.
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The arbitrators have the power to settle disputes between aggrieved clients and operators of securities  

business or derivatives business or related businesses for breach of contract or non-compliance with the securities 

law, derivatives law or provident fund law.

 They are:

1) Assoc. Prof. Kulpatra Sirodom

2) Assoc. Prof. Gasinee Witoonchart

3) Assoc. Prof. Paiboon Sareewiwatthana, PhD

4) Mr. Thinawat  Bukhamana

5) Mr. Tawat Ananthothai

6) Asst. Prof. Tithiphan Chuerboonchai

7) Mr. Patchara Surajaras, PhD

8) Asst. Prof. Patcharavalai Jayapani

9) Mr. Punlop Pisitsungkakarn

10) Prof. Phijaisakdi Horayangkura 

11) Mrs. Pattera Dilokrungthirapop

12) Prof. Warapatr Todhanakasem, PhD

13) Mr. Vichate Tantivanich

14) Assoc. Prof. Wai  Chamornmarn

15) Mr. Somjin Sornpaisarn, PhD

16) Assoc. Prof. Somjai Phagaphasvivat

17) Mr. Suparb Vongkiatkachorn

18) Mr. Athueck Asvanund

19) Assoc. Prof. Anan Chantara-Opakorn

Appointed on November 30, 2013 to serve a term until November 29, 2015.

List of Arbitrators 
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